
Next Ord: 1795-14 
Next Res: 	900-14 

VISION STATEMENT  
SEDRO-WOOLLEY IS A FRIENDLY cm" THAT IS CHARACTERIZED BY CITY GOVERNMENT AND CITIZENS WORKING TOGETHER TO 

ACHIEVE A PROSPEROUS, VIBRANT AND SAFE COMMUNITY 

MISSION STATEMENT 

TO PROVIDE SERVICES AND OPPORTUNITIES WHICH CREATE A COMMUNITY WHERE PEOPLE CHOOSE TO 
LIVE, WORK AND PLAY 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
June 11, 2014 

7:00 PM 
Sedro-Woolley Municipal Building 

Council Chambers 
325 Metcalf Street 

1. 	Call to Order 
2. 	Pledge of Allegiance 
3. 	Consent Calendar 	 1-26 

NOTE: 	 Agenda items on the Consent Calendar are considered routine in nature and may be adopted by the council by a single motion, 
unless any Councilmember wishes an item to be removed. The Council on the regular agenda will consider any item so removed after the Consent 
Calendar. 

a. Approval of Agenda 
b. Minutes from Previous Meeting 
c. Finance 

- Claim Checks #179365 to #179441 in the amount of $832,015.27  
- Payroll Checks #58158 to #58177 plus EFT'S in the amount of $282,847.44  

d. Proposed Skagit County Public Works Reimbursable Job Number Request Approval — Job 
RD97-124 — 2014 Chip Seal Project 

e. Proposed Amendment 1 to the Interlocal Agreement with PUD No. 1 of Skagit County Re 
2014 Third Street Sidewalk and Pavement Improvements Project 

4. 	Public Comment 	 27 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS  
5. 	Unpaid Holidays for Reasons of Faith or Conscience (2nd  reading) 	 .29-45 
6. 	Proposed WSDOT Property Transfer — Contract 2013-PW-01 SR20/Cook Road Realignment and 

Extension Project (Includes Claim Checks #179423 & #179428) 	 47-73 
7. 	SCOG Agreement & Bylaws (2nd  reading) 	 75-118 
NEW BUSINESS  
8 	Preliminary Approval of the Amended Plat of Arbor Glen (File #06-SD-02) 	reading)....119-169 
9. Proposed Modification to the Municipal Code Regarding Sidewalk Dining in the Central Business 

District (1 1  reading) 	  .171-177 
10. Code Enforcement (Discussion) (no materials) 
COMMITTEE REPORTS AND REPORTS FROM OFFICERS  

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

There may be an Executive Session immediately preceding, during or following the meeting. 



 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

JUN 1 1 2014 

7:00 P.M. COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
AGENDA NO. 	I  

  

  

DATE: 	June 11, 2014 

TO: 
	

Mayor Anderson and City Council 

FROM: 	Patsy Nelson, Finance Director 

SUBJECT: 1) CALL TO ORDER; 2) PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE; 3) CONSENT 
CALENDAR 

1. CALL TO ORDER - The Mayor will call the June 11, 2014 
Regular Meeting to Order. 	The Finance Director will note 
those in attendance and those absent. 

Ward 1 

Ward 2 

Ward 3 

Ward 4 

Ward 5 

Ward 6 

Councilmember Kevin Loy 

Councilmember Germaine Kornegay 

Councilmember Brenda Kinzer 

Councilmember Keith Wagoner 

Councilmember Hugh Galbraith 

Councilmember Rick Lemley 

At-Large Councilmember Brett Sandstrom 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - The Mayor will lead the City Council 
and citizens in the Pledge of Allegiance to the United States 
of America. 

3. CONSENT CALENDAR - Mayor will ask for Council approval of 
Consent Calendar items. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

   

JUN 1 1 2014 

7:00 P.M. COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
AGENDA NO 	  

 

CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 

 

Regular Meeting of the City Council 
May 28, 2014 — 7:00 P.M. — Council Chambers 

ROLL CALL: Present: Mayor Mike Anderson, Councilmembers: Kevin Loy, Brenda 
Kinzer, Keith Wagoner, Rick Lemley and Brett Sandstrom. Staff: Recorder Brue, 
Finance Director Nelson, City Supervisor/Attorney Berg, Planning Director Coleman, 
Fire Chief Klinger and Police Lt. Tucker. 

The Meeting was called to order at 7:00 P.M. by Mayor Anderson. 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Consent Calendar 

• Approval of Agenda 
• Minutes from Previous Meeting 
• Finance 

o Claim Checks #179282 — 179364 plus EFT's in the amount of 
$264,742.90 

o Payroll Checks #58144 to #58157 plus EFT's in the amount of 
$184,289.97 

• Change Order 11 — Contract 2013-PW-01 SR20/Cook Road Realignment and 
Extension Project — Strider Construction Co., Inc. 

• Change Order 12 — Contract 2013-PW-01 SR20/Cook Road Realignment and 
Extension Project — Strider Construction Co., Inc. 

• Ordinance 1793-14 — 2014 Budget Amendment #2 

Councilmember Wagoner moved to approve the consent calendar Items A through F. 
Seconded by Councilmember Lemley. Motion carried (5-0). 

Swearing in of Police Chief Lin Tucker 

Mayor Anderson administered the Oath of Office to Lin Tucker as Police Chief. Pinning 
of his badge was done by his wife, Carla Tucker. Chief Tucker was given a standing 
ovation and closed by saying a few words. 

Swearing in of Code Enforcement Officer, Laura Can 

Mayor Anderson administered the oath of office to Laura Carr, Code Enforcement 
Officer. Her husband Bill had the honor of pinning her badge. Carr received a round of 
applause. 

Public Comment 

No comment received. 



UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

2013 Comprehensive Plan Docket 

Planning Director Coleman reviewed the 2013 Comprehensive Plan Updates. He noted 
the discussions and work done on the housing plan, including Accessory Dwelling Units. 
Coleman noted the direction of the Council was to not include language for Accessory 
Dwelling Units. He also directed their attention to a letter from DeVere Bunke regarding 
Accessory Dwelling Units. The proposed ordinance updates the Housing Element with 
no language regarding Accessory Dwelling Units. 

Councilmember Wagoner moved to adopt Ordinance 1794-14 to adopt amendments to 
the Housing Element of the Comprehensive Plan. Seconded by Councilmember Loy. 
Motion carried (5-0). 

NEW BUSINESS 

Possible Contract Award — Contract 2013-PW-032, 2014 Third Street Sidewalk and 
Pavement Improvements  

City Supervisor/Attorney Berg introduced Contract 2013-PW-032 2014 Third Street 
Sidewalk and Pavement Improvements. The low bid was received from Strider 
Construction Co. Inc., of Bellingham in the amount of $685,235.94. He noted they would 
like to get the work started right away and there is a provision for no demolition work 
between Jameson and State Streets during Loggerodeo. 

Councilmember Wagoner moved to award the 2014 Third Street Sidewalk and Pavement 
Improvements Project Contract 2013-PW-03 with Strider Construction Co Inc., of 
Bellingham, WA in the amount of $685,235.94, including sales tax. Seconded by 
Councilmember Sandstrom. Motion carried (5-0). 

Unpaid Holidays for Reasons of Faith or Conscience 

City Supervisor/Attorney Berg reviewed Washington State Legislation action that 
requires the adoption of an unpaid holiday policy for reasons of faith or conscience. No 
action will be taken until the next meeting. 

COMMITTEE REPORTS AND REPORTS FROM OFFICER 

Planning Director Coleman informed the Council of an inquiry for sewer on Prospect 
Street by some of the residents. A letter is going out to the parties explaining the process, 
which includes annexation. He noted the City is not looking to annex this area, it would 
have to be at the residents request. 

City Supervisor/Attorney Berg — reviewed a memo from Public Works Director 
Freiberger which requests approval of Change Order 15 to complete sidewalk 
improvements within Bingham Park. He noted the cost is approximately $30,000. The 



Park would then be ready to open. He also addressed the demolition of structures 
previously used by Food Bank. 

Councilmember Wagoner moved to add quantities to the existing bid items for the 5 foot 
wide sidewalk in Bingham Park for approximately $30,000 with Strider Construction. 
Seconded by Councilmember Lemley. Motion carried (5-0). 

City Supervisor/Attorney Berg — reported on the radio communication issues in which 
progress is being made. He requested Council approval to purchase the shelter at a 
considerable savings. He noted the physical location at the site is still to be determined 
and that preliminary approval has been received for radio frequency. 

Council questions regarding discussions held earlier in the fall about the shelter took 
place. 

Councilmember Loy — reported on the Business Development meeting prior to the 
regular Council meeting. 

Councilmember Lemley — announced the upcoming Blast from the Past. He also noted 
that Sedro-Woolley was shown in a TV show "Revolution". 

Councilmember Sandstrom — congratulated new Police Chief Tucker and outgoing Police 
Chief Wood. 

Special Presentation — Retirement and Recognition of Police Chief, Doug Wood 

Mayor Anderson spoke on the retirement of Police Chief Doug Wood. He noted Wood 
was always respectful and was a great sounding board with great common sense. He 
brought stability and common sense to the job. Anderson said he has been honored to 
have worked with him and what he has given back to the community. 

Retiring Police Chief Wood was presented with a memento upon his retirement. He was 
also presented with a standing ovation and round of applause. 

Wood spoke highly of incoming Police Chief Tucker and humbly thanked those that have 
been instrumental throughout his career including former Mayor Sharon Dillon, Mayor 
Anderson, the City and Eron Berg for the opportunities. In closing he thanked the great 
bunch of Officers, stating he has been proud to have been their Chief. 

Skagit County Sheriff Reichardt — addressed the crowd regarding Police Chief Wood. He 
noted that as an officer, he had worked for a short time at the Sheriff's office but noted 
his heart was always in Sedro Woolley. Reichardt stated that Chief Wood is greatly 
respected in law enforcement circles. He presented Chief Wood with an Honorary 
Deputy award to honor his service. It was noted this award is voted on and presented by 
the front line deputies. 

Unidentified Audience Member — spoke of the kindness of Chief Wood and how he took 
care of the citizens. 



Councilmember Lemley presented Chief Wood on behalf of the Council and Sedro-
Woolley Rotary a rendition of him on his horse done by Chief Tucker. 

Councilmember Wagoner moved to adjourn. Seconded by Councilmember Lemley. 
Motion carried (5-0). 

The meeting adjourned at 7:37 P.M. 



CITY OF 

sOR97001.4,. 
coota os Num ciscitzsp. 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

JUN 1 1 2014 

7:00 P.M. COUNCIL — AMBERL 
AGENDA NO. 	c.  

DATE: 	June 11, 2014 

TO: 	Mayor Anderson and City Council 

FROM: 	Patsy Nelson, Finance Director 

SUBJECT: FINANCE - CLAIMS 

Attached you will find the Claim Checks register proposed for 
payment for the period ending June 11, 2014. 

Motion to approve Claim Checks #179365 to #179441 in the amount of 
$832,015.27. 

Motion to approve Payroll Checks #58158 to #58177 plus EFT'S in 
the amount of $282,847.44.  

If you have any comments, questions or concerns, please contact me 
for information during the working day at 855-1661. This will 
allow me to look up the invoices that are stored in our office. 



CHECK REGISTER 
City Of Sedro-Woolley 
MCAG #: 0647 

Trans Date 	Type 

06/11/2014 To: 06/11/2014 

Acct # 	Chk # 	Claimant 

Time: 	14:58:02 Date: 	06/05/2014 

	

Page: 	1 

Amount Memo 

4270 06/11/2014 Claims 2 	179365 AT & T 132.90 
001 - 512 50 42 020 - Telephone 	 0.66 
001 - 513 10 42 020 - Telephone 	 0.66 
001 - 514 23 42 020 - Telephone 	 15.94 
001 - 515 30 42 001 - Telephone 	 3.99 
001 - 518 80 42 020 - Telephone 	 1.32 
001 - 521 20 42 020 - Telephone 	 57.05 
001 - 522 20 42 020 - Telephone 	 14.61 
001 - 524 20 42 020 - Telephone 	 0.66 
401 - 535 80 42 020 - Telephone 	 2.74 
412 - 537 80 42 020 - Telephone 	 1.31 
103 - 542 30 42 020 - Telephone 	 0.66 
001 - 558 60 42 020 - Telephone 	 9.30 
105 - 572 20 42 020 - Telephone 	 2.74 
001 - 595 10 42 020 - Telephone 	 21.26 

4271 06/11/2014 Claims 2 	179366 All-Phase Electric 498.13 

103 - 542 64 31 002 - Traffic Signal Supplies 	 131.83 
101 - 576 80 48 002 - RV Park 	 366.30 

4272 06/11/2014 Claims 2 	179367 Alpine Fire & Safety 4,741.97 
001 - 514 23 31 000 	Supplies 	 150.37 
001 - 522 20 31 000 - Operating Supplies 	 356.09 
001 - 522 20 48 000 - Repairs/maint-equip 	 227.42 
401 - 535 50 48 000 - Maintenance Contracts 	 724.18 
401 - 535 80 31 010 - Operating Supplies 	 205.77 
102 - 536 20 35 010 - Safety Equipment 	 255.63 
102 - 536 20 35 010 - Safety Equipment 	 177.45 
412 - 537 80 31 000 - Operating Supplies 	 464.39 
412 - 537 80 48 000 - Repair/maintenance 	 305.26 
103 - 542 30 31 000 - Operating Supplies 	 202.84 
103 - 542 30 35 010 - Safety Equipment 	 377.31 
101 - 576 80 31 007 - Operating Sup - Library 	107.30 
101 - 576 80 48 004 - Community Center 	 527.45 
101 - 576 80 48 004 - Community Center 	 82.79 
101 - 576 80 48 005 - Senior Center 	 347.53 
101 - 576 80 48 005 - Senior Center 	 16.28 
101 - 576 80 48 015 - Library 	 57.94 
101 - 576 80 48 016 - City Hall 	 145.12 
101 - 576 80 48 016 - City Hall 	 10.85 

4273 06/11/2014 Claims 2 	179368 Aramark Uniform Services 25.68 

401 - 535 80 49 000 - Laundry 	 8.23 
401 - 535 80 49 000 - Laundry 	 8.23 
103 - 542 30 49 000 - Misc-laundry 	 4.61 
103 - 542 30 49 000 - Misc-laundry 	 4.61 

4274 06/11/2014 Claims 2 	179369 Assoc Petroleum Products 3,234.70 

001 - 518 20 32 000 - Auto Fuel 	 124.75 
001 - 521 20 32 000 - Auto Fuel 	 1,888.43 
001 - 522 20 32 000 - Auto Fuel/diesel 	 464.75 
401 - 535 50 48 050 - Maint Of General Equip 	281.64 
401 - 535 80 32 000 - Auto FueUdiesel 	 91.32 
103 - 542 30 32 000 - Auto Fuel/diesel 	 383.81 

4275 06/11/2014 Claims 2 	179370 Bay City Supply 1,491.35 

401 - 535 80 31 010 - Operating Supplies 	 80.56 
101 - 576 80 31 001 - Operating Sup - Riverfront 	171.60 
101 - 576 80 31 002 - Operating Sup - Rv Park 	37.94 
101 - 576 80 31 004 - Operating Sup - Comm Cente 	171.60 
101 - 576 80 31 005 - Operating Sup - Senior Ctr 	171.60 
101 - 576 80 31 006 - Operating Sup - City Hall 	686.42 



CHECK REGISTER 
City Of Sedro-Woolley 
MCAG #: 0647 

Trans Date 	Type 

06/11/2014 To: 06/11/2014 

Acct # 	Chk # 	Claimant 

Time: 	14:58:02 Date: 	06/05/2014 

	

Page: 	2 

Amount Memo 

101 - 576 80 31 007 - Operating Sup - Library 	 171.63 

4276 06/11/2014 Claims 2 	179371 	Capital One Commercial 846.89 

001 - 521 20 31 002 - Office/operating Supplies 	122.95 
001 - 522 20 35 000 - Small Tools & Minor Equip 	620.02 
001 - 595 10 49 011 - Safety Meetings 	 103.92 

4277 06/11/2014 Claims 2 	179372 Cascade Natural Gas Corp 246.03 

401 - 535 80 47 000 - Public Utilities 	 21.03 
412 - 537 80 47 000 - Public Utilities 	 64.65 
103 - 542 63 47 000 - Public Utilities 	 10.60 
103 - 542 63 47 000 - Public Utilities 	 7.43 
105 - 572 20 47 000 - Public Utilities 	 14.39 
101 - 576 80 47 010 - Community Ctr 	 45.69 
101 - 576 80 47 020 - Senior Center 	 49.49 
101 - 576 80 47 050 - Hammer Square 	 15.35 
101 - 576 80 47 052 - Bingham Caretaker 	 17.40 

4278 06/11/2014 Claims 2 	179373 Cenveo 327.19 

001 - 521 20 31 002 - Office/operating Supplies 	327.19 

4279 06/11/2014 Claims 2 	179374 Code Publishing Inc 100.52 

001 - 511 30 34 000 - Code Book 	 100.52 

4280 06/11/2014 Claims 2 	179375 	Collins Office Supply Inc 65.58 

001 - 514 23 31 000 - Supplies 	 65.58 

4281 06/11/2014 Claims 2 	179376 Comcast 130.70 

001 - 518 80 42 021 - Internet Services 	 130.70 

4282 06/11/2014 Claims 2 	179377 Department Of Commerce 630,562.59 

410 - 591 35 72 000 - Principal Payment - Pwtf 	350,000.00 
410 - 591 35 72 000 - Principal Payment - Pwtf 	38,277.86 
410 - 591 35 72 000 - Principal Payment - Pwtf 	202,081.91 
410 - 592 35 83 410 - Interest Payment - Pwtf 	22,750.00 
410 - 592 35 83 410 - Interest Payment - Pwtf 	2,296.67 
410 - 592 35 83 410 - Interest Payment - Pwtf 	15,156.15 

4283 06/11/2014 Claims 2 	179378 Dwayne Lane's North Cascade 31,001.63 
Ford 

501 - 594 21 64 501 - Vehicles - Public Safety 	31,001.63 

4284 06/11/2014 Claims 2 	179379 Dykstra Farms LLC 360.00 

412 - 537 60 47 020 - Recycling - Yard Waste 	 360.00 

4285 06/11/2014 Claims 2 	179380 E & E Lumber 373.38 

401 - 535 50 48 010 - Maintenance Of Lines 	 18.03 
401 - 535 80 31 010 - Operating Supplies 	 4.88 
412 - 537 80 31 000 - Operating Supplies 	 60.71 
101 -576 80 48 002 - RV Park 	 159.86 
101 - 576 80 48 002 - RV Park 	 29.56 
101 -576 80 48 002 - RV Park 	 5.08 
101 - 576 80 48 021 - Equipment 	 46.50 
101 - 594 76 61 001 - Bingham Park 	 48.76 

4286 06/11/2014 Claims 2 	179381 	Economy Fence Center 260.89 

001 - 522 45 49 000 - Training Facilities 	 260.89 

4287 06/11/2014 Claims 2 	179382 	Edge Analytical Inc 691.00 

401 - 535 80 41 000 - Professional Services 	 129.00 
401 - 535 80 41 000 - Professional Services 	 35.00 
401 - 535 80 41 000 - Professional Services 	 35.00 
401 - 535 80 41 000 - Professional Services 	 35.00 
401 - 535 80 41 000 - Professional Services 	 457.00 



CHECK REGISTER 
City Of Sedro-Woolley 
MCAG #: 0647 

Trans Date 	Type 

06/11/2014 To: 06/11/2014 

Acct # 	Chk # 	Claimant 

Time: 	14:58:02 Date: 	06/05/2014 

	

Page: 	3 

Amount Memo 

4288 06/11/2014 Claims 2 	179383 Elec Handbook Pub Inc 45.46 

105 - 594 72 64 000 - Books & Materials 	 45.46 

4289 06/11/2014 Claims 2 	179384 Emergency Medical Products 198.15 
Inc 

001 - 522 20 31 000 	Operating Supplies 	 198.15 

4290 06/11/2014 Claims 2 	179385 	Enterprise Office Systems 287.68 

001 - 512 50 31 000 - Supplies 	 218.04 
001 - 512 50 31 000 - Supplies 	 32,54 
001 - 521 20 31 002 - Office/operating Supplies 	 37.10 

4291 06/11/2014 Claims 2 	179386 Fastenal Company 474.01 

412 - 537 80 31 000 - Operating Supplies 	 56.22 
412 - 537 80 31 000 - Operating Supplies 	 14.81 
412 - 537 80 31 000 - Operating Supplies 	 126.53 
103 - 542 30 35 000 - Small Tools/minor Equip 	276.45 

4292 06/11/2014 Claims 2 	179387 	Federal Certified Hearing 20.00 

001 - 521 20 41 001 - Professional Services 	 20.00 

4293 06/11/2014 Claims 2 	179388 	Frontier 779.70 

001 - 521 20 42 020 - Telephone 	 56.72 
001 - 521 20 42 020 - Telephone 	 45.07 
401 - 535 80 42 020 - Telephone 	 219.39 
102 - 536 20 42 020 - Telephone 	 64.86 
412 - 537 80 42 020 - Telephone 	 86.77 
105 - 572 20 42 020 - Telephone 	 135.47 
101 - 576 80 47 070 - City Hall 	 57.99 
10! - 576 80 47 070 - City Hall 	 113.43 

4294 06/11/2014 Claims 2 	179389 	Great America Financial Svcs 146.89 

105 - 572 20 48 020 - Repair/maintenance-equip 	146.89 

4295 06/11/2014 Claims 2 	179390 Groeneveld 128.74 

412 - 537 50 48 000 - Repairs/maint-equip 	 128.74 

4296 06/11/2014 Claims 2 	179391 HB Jaeger Co LLC 5,134.33 

401 - 535 50 48 010 - Maintenance Of Lines 	 1,590.07 
401 - 535 50 48 010 	Maintenance Of Lines 	 3,544.26 

4297 06/11/2014 Claims 2 	179392 Honey Bucket 75.00 

101 - 576 80 47 090 - Portable Toilets 	 75.00 

4298 06/11/2014 Claims 2 	179393 	Ingram Library Services 99.54 

105 - 594 72 64 000 - Books & Materials 	 15.41 
105 - 594 72 64 000 - Books & Materials 	 84.13 

4299 06/11/2014 Claims 2 	179394 Leo Jacobs 260.25 

412 - 537 80 31 000 - Operating Supplies 	 260.25 

4300 06/11/2014 Claims 2 	179395 Job Shop Inc (The) 171.29 

412 - 537 80 34 000 - Containers 	 171.29 

4301 06/11/2014 Claims 2 	179396 	Kesselring Tactical Supply 3,107.44 

001 - 521 20 31 015 - Ammunition 	 3,107.44 

4302 06/11/2014 Claims 2 	179397 	Lakeside Industries 18,052.33 

401 - 535 50 48 010 - Maintenance Of Lines 	 241.72 
103 - 542 30 48 000 - Repair/maint-streets 	 208.06 
103 - 542 30 48 000 - Repair/maint-streets 	 639.08 
102 - 595 30 63 000 - Roadway Repairs 	 16,963.47 

4303 06/11/2014 Claims 2 	179398 	Lattice Communications 14,950.00 

001 - 594 21 64 001 - SWPD Repeater Tower 	14,950.00 



CHECK REGISTER 
City Of Sedro-Woolley 
MCAG #: 0647 

Trans Date 	Type 

06/11/2014 To: 06/11/2014 

Acct # 	Chk # 	Claimant 

Time: 	14:58:02 Date: 	06/05/2014 

	

Page: 	4 

Amount Memo 

4304 06/11/2014 Claims 2 	179399 Livingston Micrographics, LLC 4,108.82 

401 - 535 50 48 050 - Maint Of General Equip 	4,108.82 

4305 06/11/2014 Claims 2 	179400 	Lou's Gloves Inc. 178.00 

401 - 535 80 31 010 - Operating Supplies 	 178.00 

4306 06/11/2014 Claims 2 	179401 	Martin Marietta Materials 90.51 

103 - 542 30 48 000 - Repair/maint-streets 	 90.51 

4307 06/11/2014 Claims 2 	179402 Jack R Moore 127.11 

001 - 524 20 41 000 - Professional Services 	 127.11 

4308 06/11/2014 Claims 2 	179403 Motor Trucks Inc 57.86 

001 - 522 20 48 000 - Repairs/maint-equip 	 57.86 

4309 06/11/2014 Claims 2 	179404 Motorola 5,851.61 

001 - 594 21 64 000 - Machinery & Equipment 	5,851.61 

4310 06/11/2014 Claims 2 	179405 Serena Mynatt 60.00 

001 - 514 23 28 000 - Employee Wellness 	 60.00 

4311 06/11/2014 Claims 2 	179406 NW Communications Inc. 326.10 

001 - 594 21 64 000 - Machinery & Equipment 	163.05 
001 - 594 21 64 000 - Machinery & Equipment 	163.05 

4312 06/11/2014 Claims 2 	179407 Neofunds By Newpost 2,000.99 

001 - 512 50 42 010 - Postage 	 267.86 
001 - 514 23 42 010 - Postage 	 355.16 
001 - 514 23 45 000 - Operating Rentals/leases 	133.50 
001 - 515 30 42 000 - Postage 	 9.77 
001 - 521 20 42 010 - Postage 	 189.88 
001 - 521 20 42 010 - Postage 	 133.50 
001 - 522 20 42 010 - Postage 	 13.73 
001 - 522 20 42 010 - Postage 	 133.50 
001 - 524 20 42 000 - Postage 	 30.65 
001 - 524 20 42 000 - Postage 	 133.49 
425 - 531 50 31 000 - Operating Supplies 	 10.01 
401 - 535 80 42 015 - Postage 	 130.08 
102 - 536 20 42 010 - Postage 	 14.72 
412 - 537 80 42 010 - Postage 	 60.04 
001 - 558 60 42 010 - Postage 	 82.39 
001 - 558 60 42 010 - Postage 	 133.50 
001 - 595 10 42 000 - Postage 	 35.71 
001 - 595 10 42 000 - Postage 	 133.50 

4313 06/11/2014 Claims 2 	179408 Owen Equipment Company 10,849.21 

103 - 542 30 48 010 - Repair/maintenance-equip 	10,849.21 

4314 06/11/2014 Claims 2 	179409 	Pacific Power Batteries 229.15 

501 - 548 30 31 000 - Operating Supplies 	 229.15 

4315 06/11/2014 Claims 2 	179410 Pat Rimmer Tire Ctr Inc 3,561.35 

001 - 522 20 48 000 - Repairs/maint-equip 	 165.94 
001 - 522 20 48 000 - Repairs/maint-equip 	 1,628.54 
412 - 537 50 48 000 - Repairs/maint-equip 	 16.82 
412 - 537 50 48 000 - Repairs/maint-equip 	 1,750.05 

4316 06/11/2014 Claims 2 	179411 	Petty Cash-Debra Peterson 70.15 

105 -572 20 31 010 - Supplies 	 18.19 
105 - 572 20 41 000 - Professional Services 	 15.00 
105 - 572 20 42 010 - Postage 	 2.24 
105 - 594 72 64 000 - Books & Materials 	 34.72 

4317 06/11/2014 Claims 2 	179412 	Phillips Environmental Services 350.00 



CHECK REGISTER 
City Of Sedro-Woolley 
MCAG #: 0647 

Trans Date 	Type 

06/11/2014 To: 06/11/2014 

Acct # 	Chk # 	Claimant 

Time: 	14:58:02 Date: 	06/05/2014 

	

Page: 	5 

Amount Memo 

101 - 594 76 61 001 - Bingham Park 350.00 

4318 06/11/2014 Claims 2 	179413 Proquest 927.68 

105 - 572 20 51 000 - Wa Library System 927.68 

4319 06/11/2014 Claims 2 	179414 	Public Utility Dis Nol 1,238.59 

001 - 521 20 47 000 - Public Utilities 20.80 
401 - 535 80 47 000 - Public Utilities 307.26 
102 - 536 20 47 000 - Public Utilities 98.77 
412 - 537 80 47 000 - Public Utilities 40.63 
103 - 542 63 47 000 - Public Utilities 50.80 
105 - 572 20 47 000 - Public Utilities 27.58 
101 - 576 80 47 000 - Riverfront 213.99 
101 - 576 80 47 040 - Train 21.89 
101 - 576 80 47 050 - Hammer Square 108.43 
101 - 576 80 47 051 - Bingham / Memorial 94.87 
101 - 576 80 47 053 - Other Utilities 40.68 
101 - 576 80 47 070 - City Hall 212.89 

4320 06/11/2014 Claims 2 	179415 Puget Sound Energy 15,035.16 

001 - 521 20 47 000 - Public Utilities 19.76 
001 - 522 50 47 000 - Public Utilities 65.47 
425 - 531 50 47 000 - Public Utilities 177.72 
401 - 535 80 47 000 - Public Utilities 10,443.35 
102 - 536 20 47 000 - Public Utilities 57.77 
412 - 537 80 47 000 - Public Utilities 140.51 
103 - 542 63 47 000 - Public Utilities 69.89 
103 - 542 63 47 000 - Public Utilities 8.52 
103 - 542 63 47 000 - Public Utilities 156.95 
103 - 542 63 47 000 - Public Utilities 220.43 
108 - 557 30 41 000 - Advertising 31.38 
105 - 572 20 47 000 - Public Utilities 226.31 
101 - 576 80 47 000 - Riverfront 427.07 
101 - 576 80 47 010 - Community Ctr 135.56 
101 - 576 80 47 020 - Senior Center 378.36 
101 - 576 80 47 040 - Train 27.38 
101 - 576 80 47 050 - Hammer Square 177.86 
101 - 576 80 47 051 - Bingham / Memorial 10.81 
101 - 576 80 47 052 - Bingham Caretaker 48.35 
101 - 576 80 47 053 - Other Utilities 19.87 
101 - 576 80 47 053 - Other Utilities 10.81 
101 - 576 80 47 070 - City Hall 2,181.03 

4321 06/11/2014 Claims 2 	179416 Rick's Refrigeration Inc 250.64 

412 - 537 80 31 000 - Operating Supplies 250.64 

4322 06/11/2014 Claims 2 	179417 Ricoh USA Inc 345.61 

001 - 521 20 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 75.95 
001 - 521 20 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 96.86 
001 - 522 20 45 000 - Equipment Lease 75.95 
001 - 522 20 48 000 - Repairs/maint-equip 96.85 

4323 06/11/2014 Claims 2 	179418 Rodda Paint Co 2,930.31 

103 - 542 64 31 001 - Painting & Striping Supplies 2,930.31 

4324 06/11/2014 Claims 2 	179419 Rootx 260.35 

401 - 535 50 48 010 - Maintenance Of Lines 260.35 

4325 06/11/2014 Claims 2 	179420 SK Valley Bark & Topsoil Inc 104.16 

101 - 576 80 48 009 - Hammer Square 104.16 

4326 06/11/2014 Claims 2 	179421 Sedro-Woolley Auto Parts 523.05 

001 - 522 20 48 000 - Repairs/maint-equip 6.49 
401 - 535 50 48 040 - Maintenance Of Vehicles 15.85 



CHECK REGISTER 
City Of Sedro-Woolley 
MCAG #: 0647 

Trans Date 	Type 

06/11/2014 To: 06/11/2014 

Acct # 	Chk # 	Claimant 

Time: 	14:58:02 Date: 	06/05/2014 

	

Page: 	6 

Amount Memo 

401 - 535 
401 - 535 
102 - 536 
412 - 537 
103 - 542 
103 - 542 

50 
50 
20 
50 
30 
30 

48 
48 
31 
48 
35 
48 

040 - Maintenance Of Vehicles 	 95.69 
040 - Maintenance Of Vehicles 	189.29 
010 - Operating Supplies 	 27.10 
000 - Repairs/maint-equip 	 86.25 
000 - Small Tools/minor Equip 	 40.55 
010 - Repair/maintenance-equip 	61.83 

4327 06/11/2014 Claims 2 	179422 Sedro-Woolley Volunteer 9,602.00 
001 - 522 20 11 010 - Salaries-volunteers 	 9,602.00 

4328 06/11/2014 Claims 2 	179423 	Skagit County Auditor 302.00 

104 - 595 10 63 002 - Eng SR20 Cook Rd Reallign 	302.00 

4329 06/11/2014 Claims 2 	179424 Skagit County Auditor 1,792.00 

401 - 535 80 49 040 - Misc-filing Fees/lien Exp 	288.00 
401 - 535 80 49 040 - Misc-filing Fees/lien Exp 	608.00 
412 - 537 80 49 020 - Misc-filing Fees/lien Exp 	288.00 
412 - 537 80 49 020 - Misc-filing Fees/lien Exp 	608.00 

4330 06/11/2014 Claims 2 	179425 Skagit County Sheriff Office 2,105.63 

001 - 523 60 51 010 - Prisoner Transport 	 2,105.63 

4331 06/11/2014 Claims 2 	179426 Skagit County Treasurer 31,386.02 Jail Sales Tax Pass Through 2/10 

001 - 523 60 51 020 - Jail Sales Tax Pass Through 2 	31,386.02 

4332 06/11/2014 Claims 2 	179427 Skagit County Treasurer 81.35 

001 - 586 00 00 001 - Crime Vctm & Witnss Prog 	81.35 

4333 06/11/2014 Claims 2 	179428 Skagit County Treasurer 40.00 

104 - 595 10 63 002 - Eng SR20 Cook Rd Reallign 	40.00 

4334 06/11/2014 Claims 2 	179429 	Skagit Publishing 255.50 

001 - 558 60 41 011 - Advertising Reimbuseable 	255.50 

4335 06/11/2014 Claims 2 	179430 Smokey Point Concrete 334.62 

101 - 594 76 61 001 - Bingham Park 	 334.62 

4336 06/11/2014 Claims 2 	179431 	Staples Business Advantage 123.96 

001 - 521 20 31 002 - Office/operating Supplies 	123.96 

4337 06/11/2014 Claims 2 	179432 Sunnytech Inc 7,357.36 

001 - 594 18 64 001 - Network Hardware 	 4,503.63 
401 - 594 35 64 001 - Portable Equipment 	 2,853.73 

4338 06/11/2014 Claims 2 	179433 TKE Corp 789.67 

101 - 576 80 48 016 - City Hall 	 789.67 

4339 06/11/2014 Claims 2 	179434 The Seattle Times 400.40 

105 - 594 72 64 000 - Books & Materials 	 400.40 

4340 06/11/2014 Claims 2 	179435 True Value 335.09 

001 - 523 20 31 000 - Office/operating Supplies 	 8.13 
401 - 535 80 31 010 - Operating Supplies 	 23.57 
401 - 535 80 31 010 - Operating Supplies 	 10.30 
401 - 535 80 31 010 - Operating Supplies 	 73.30 
401 - 535 80 31 010 - Operating Supplies 	 40.13 
103 - 542 30 31 000 - Operating Supplies 	 29.28 
101 - 576 80 31 012 - Operating Sup - Hammer 	 30.29 
101 - 576 80 48 002 - RV Park 	 69.41 
101 - 576 80 48 002 - RV Park 	 9.93 
101 - 576 80 48 016 - City Hall 	 14.73 
101 - 576 80 48 021 - Equipment 	 20.59 
101 - 576 80 48 021 - Equipment 	 5.43 

4341 06/11/2014 Claims 	2 	179436 Trugreen Processing Center 
	

119.35 



CHECK REGISTER 
City Of Sedro-Woolley 
MCAG #: 0647 	 06/11/2014 To: 06/11/2014 

Trans Date 	Type 	Acct # 	Chic # 	Claimant 

Time: 	14:58:02 Date: 
Page: 

Amount Memo 

06/05/2014 
7 

102 - 536 20 48 030 - Repair/maintenance-land 	119.35 

4342 06/11/2014 Claims 	2 	179437 UPS 33.59 

001 - 522 20 42 010 - Postage 	 33.59 

4343 06/11/2014 Claims 	2 	179438 Valley Auto Supply 4.23 

412 - 537 50 48 000 - Repairs/maint-equip 	 0.26 
101 - 576 80 48 021 - Equipment 	 3.97 

4344 06/11/2014 Claims 	2 	179439 Verizon Wireless 2,979.74 

001 - 513 10 42 020 - Telephone 	 54.94 
001 - 514 23 42 020 - Telephone 	 54.94 
001 - 515 30 42 001 - Telephone 	 54.94 
001 -518 80 42 020 - Telephone 	 54.94 
001 - 521 20 42 020 - Telephone 	 440.11 
001 - 521 20 42 020 - Telephone 	 371.14 
001 - 521 20 42 020 - Telephone 	 369.65 
001 - 522 20 42 020 - Telephone 	 57.56 
001 - 522 20 42 020 - Telephone 	 440.11 
401 - 535 80 42 030 - Nextel Cell Phones 	 223.22 
102 - 536 20 42 020 - Telephone 	 49.89 
412 - 537 80 42 025 - Nextel Cell Phones 	 31.21 
412 - 537 80 42 025 - Nextel Cell Phones 	 272.27 
103 - 542 30 42 020 - Telephone 	 121.19 
101 -576 80 42 020 - Telephone 	 198.81 
001 - 595 10 42 025 - Cell Phones 	 184.82 

4345 06/11/2014 Claims 	2 	179440 WA St Off Of Treasurer 5,088.97 

001 - 386 90 00 000 	State Remittances-court 	-5,088.97 

4346 06/11/2014 Claims 	2 	179441 	Wood's Logging Supply Inc 385.44 

001 - 523 20 31 000 - Office/operating Supplies 	 81.38 
425 - 531 50 31 000 - Operating Supplies 	 273.70 
102 - 536 20 48 040 - Repair/maint-equip & Bldg 	8.67 
102 - 536 20 48 040 - Repair/maint-equip & Bldg 	7.60 
101 	576 80 31 001 - Operating Sup - Riverfront 	14.09 

001 Current Expense Fund 89,548.83 
101 Parks & Facilities Fund 9,792.01 
102 Cemetery Fund 17,845.28 
103 Street Fund 16,876.76 
104 Arterial Street Fund 342.00 
105 Library Fund 2,096.61 
108 Stadium Fund 31.38 
401 Sewer Fund 27,581.99 
410 Sewer Capital Projects Reserve 630,562.59 
412 Solid Waste Fund 5,645.61 
425 Stormwater 461.43 
501 Equipment Replacement Fund 31,230.78 

Claims: 832,015.27 
* Transaction Has Mixed Revenue And Expense Accounts 832,015.27 



CHECK REGISTER 
City Of Sedro-Woolley 	 Time: 14:58:02 Date: 06/05/2014 
MCAG #: 0647 
	

06/11/2014 To: 06/11/2014 
	

Page: 	8 

Trans Date 	Type 
	

Acct # Ch.k # Claimant 	 Amount Memo 

CERTIFICATION: 1, the undersigned do hereby certify under penalty of perjury, that the materials have 
been furnished, the services rendered or the labor performed as described and that the claim is a due and 
unpaid obligation against the City of Sedro-Woolley and that I am authorized to authenticate and certify 
to said claim. 

Finance Director 	 Date 

Finance Committee Member 	 Date 

Finance Committee Member 	 Date 

Finance Committee Member 	 Date 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

JUN 1 1 2014 
CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 

7:00 P.M. COUNCIL_CipkilvIBERS Sedro-Woolley Municipal Building 
AGENDA NO 	 325 Metcalf Street 

Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284 
Phone (360) 855-0771 

Fax (360) 855-0733 

Mark A. Freiberger, PE 
Director of Public Works 

MEMO TO: 	City Council and Mayor Mike Anderson 

FROM: 	Mark A. Freiberger, PE 

RE: 	 Proposed Skagit County Public Works Reimbursable Job Number Request 
Approval — Job RD97-124 
2014 Chip Seal Project 

DATE: 	June 3, 2014 (for Council action June 11, 2014) 

ISSUE 
Should Mayor Anderson execute the attached Reimbursable Job Number Request Form with Skagit 
County Public Works to provide Chip Seal services related to the 2014 City Chip Seal Project? 

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION 
The 2014 Budget includes the following street and Cemetery chip seal projects: 
Street Projects though Account 103 

• Thresher, Jeanette and Clifford Streets 
• Dunlop Street - 700 and 800 Blocks 
• 6th  Street -1600 Block 
• 3rd  Street, Sterling to South City Limits 

Cemetery Road Restoration through Account 102 
• Chip Seal Entrance and Exit Roads 

City Public Works Operations Department is preparing the streets by grading the shoulders and installing 
asphalt preleveling. Skagit County will perform the chip seal under the proposed Job Number Request. 

ANALYSIS TOTAL CEMETERY STREETS 
Account 103 Budget 	- Contracted Overlay $ 75,000 $ 75,000 
Account 102 Budget Roadway Repairs $ 34,000 $34,000 
Subtotal $109,000 $34,000 $ 75,000 

City work 
Prelevel Streets $ 14,812 $ 14,812 
Prelevel Cemetery Roads $ 21,000 $ 21,000 
SR9 Patch Repairs (complete) $ 	7,717 $ 	7,717 
Subtotal $ 43,529 $ 21,000 $ 22,529 

Skagit County Chip Seal $ 31,639 $ 16,262 $ 15,377 

Total Estimate Cost $ 75,168 $ 37,262 $ 37,906 

Remaining Budget $ 33,832 ($ 	3,262) $ 37,094 

MOTION: 

Move to authorize Mayor Anderson to execute the attached Reimbursable Job Number Request 
Form with Skagit County Public Works to provide Chip Seal services related to the 2014 City Chip 
Seal Project in the amount of $31,638.85. 

2014-6-11 Skagit County Reimbursible Job Number Request Approval. doe 
	

Page 1 of I 	6/3/2014 11 -52:40 AM 



REIMBURSABLE JOB NUMBER REQUEST FORM 
Skagit County Public Works Department 

CUSTOMER NAME: 

ADDRESS: 

 

City of Sedro-Woolley  

325 Metcalf Street  

Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284 

 

Job #: /ed 41 7-4- 1 

    

    

     

CUSTOMER SIGNATURE: 

      

Budget Coding: 

      

        

For County Departments only 

ESTIMATED START DATE: 	07/15/2014 ESTIMATED COMPLETION DATE: 08/29/2014 

    

ESTIMATED COST: 

   

Labor/Fringes 

Inventory 

Equipment 

Purchases 

Admin @ 9% 
g.5v.4 

Sales Tax @.8- -2- % \.1,6  

TOTAL ESTIMATED COST: 

$26,752.50 

$2,407.73 

$2,478.62 

$31,638.85 
This is nol a firm bid. 

DESCRIPTION OF WORK TO BE PERFORMED 

Chipseal - Please see attached sheet. 

ESTIMATE PREPARED BY: 

PW DIVISION MANAGER: 

PW ADMINISTRATIVE APPROVAL: 

PROJECT APPROVED BY: 

 

A,u DATE: -V- if  - 

DATE: ,542,  

DATE: 5'  
DATE: C7/ 41-  

  

Director, Skagit County Public Works 

  

ad nintmv2 \pw \Users\teresam \Desktapl,Reimb Job Number Request 



Road Name 
Square 
Yards 

Total Amount @ 
$2.50/sq yrd 

Cemetary 5,500 $13,750.00 

Thresher Avenue 1,638 $4,095.00 

Clifford Street 467 $1,167.50 

Jeanette Street 467 $1,167.50 

Dunlop Avenue 1,222 $3,055.00 

Third Street 800 $2,000.00 

Sixth Street 607 $1,517.50 

Admin @ 9% $2,407.73 ✓ 

•Sales Tax @ 8.5% $2,478.62 ‘/ 

Total Square Yards: 10,701 

Total: $31,638.85 ✓ 

i3:150.01  

(3(002.5z 

2-C4, -75 S 

2-V60.29 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

JUN 1 1 2014 

7:00 P.M. COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
AGENDA NO  73e--  

CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 
Sedro-Woolley Municipal Building 

325 Metcalf Street 
Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284 

Phone (360) 855-0771 
Fax (360) 855-0733 

David Lee, PE 
City Engineer 

MEMO TO: City Council and Mayor Mike Anderson 

FROM: 	David Lee, PE 

RE: 	 Proposed Amendment 1 to the Interlocal Agreement between the City of 
Sedro-Woolley and Public Utility District No. 1 of Skagit County Re 2014 
Third Street Sidewalk and Pavement Improvements Project 

DATE: 	June 5, 2014 (for Council review June 11, 2014) 

ISSUE 
Should the city council authorize Mayor Anderson to execute the attached Amendment 1 to the 
Interlocal Agreement between the City of Sedro-Woolley and Public Utility District No. 1 of 
Skagit County for purpose of reimbursing the city for the construction phase of water main 
improvements to be constructed in conjunction with the 2014 Third Street Sidewalk and 
Pavement Improvements Project, totaling $224,166? 

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION 
The City and PUD entered into an Interlocal Agreement on March 4, 2014 to provide design 
phase services for the water main upgrades associated with the 2014 Third Street Sidewalk and 
Pavement Improvements Project. The Interlocal reserved construction phase work for a future 
amendment, once the scope of the work was confirmed by the design. With PUD approval, we 
went to advertisement for the project with the final design for the water main included. The 
contract has been awarded to Strider Construction Co., Inc. at their bid price, including the 
water main work, again with PUD approval. The attached Amendment updates the Interlocal to 
include the construction phase cost, plus construction engineering and city administrative costs. 

MOTION 
Authorize Mayor Anderson to execute the attached Amendment 1 to the Interlocal 
Agreement between the City of Sedro-Woolley and Public Utility District No. 1 of Skagit 
County for purpose of reimbursing the city for the construction phase of water main 
improvements to be constructed in conjunction with the 2014 Third Street Sidewalk and 
Pavement Improvements Project, totaling $224,166. 

2014-6-11 Proposed Amendment 1 to Interlocal - City-PUD 1 Third Street.doc 



AMENDMENT NO. 1 

To the 	1NTERLOCAL COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT 
Dated 	March 4, 2014 
Between 	The City of Sedro-Woolley, Washington 
And 	 Public Utility District No. 1 of Skagit County 

This Amendment revises the above contract as follows: 

STATEMENT OF WORK is revised as follows: 

1. 	The City will assist the PUD in conducting the following: 

BID SCHEDULE C 
PUD NO.1 WATER LINE UPGRADE 

Spec. 
Item Sectio 
No. n Item Unit Quantity 

Unit 
Nice 

Total 
Amount 

1 1-09 Mobilization LS 1 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 
2 1-10 Project Traffic Control LS 1 $7,500.00 $7,500.00 
3 2-02 Removal of Conc. Walk & Ramp (NE Warner) SY 20 $4.00 $80.00 
4 2-02 Abandon Ex. AC Pipe At Crossings LF 56 $75.00 $4,200.00 

5  5-04 HMA CL 1/2" PG 64-22 TN 204 $130.00 $26,520.00 
6 7-09 Water Main 2-In. Diam. PVC LF 75 $10.00 $750.00 
7 7-09 Water Main 4-In. Diam. PVC LF 3 $60.00 $180.00 
8 7-09 Water Main 6-In. Diam. PVC LF 49 $22.00 $1,078.00 
9 7-09 Water Main 6-In. Diam. Ductile Iron LF 49 $120.00 $5,880.00 
10 7-09 Water Main 8-In. Diam. Ductile Iron LF 1492 $48.00 $71,616.00 
11 7-12 Tapping Sleeve and Valve Assembly, 2-inch EA 1 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 
12 7-12 Gate Valve 4-In EA 1 $725.00 $725.00 
13 7-12 Gate Valve 6-In EA 4 $950.00 $3,800.00 
14 7-12 Gate Valve 8-In EA 15 $1,250.00 $18,750.00 

15 7-14 Hydrant Assembly EA 3 $4,500.00 $13,500.00 

16 7-14 Moving Existing Hydrant EA 2 $1,400.00 $2,800.00 

17 7-14 Removing Existing Hydrant EA 1 $375.00 $375.00 

18 7-14 Adding a Storz Adapter to Ex. Hydrant EA 1 $300.00 $300.00 
Install and Reconnect 1-1/4 —in. PE Far Side 

19 7-15.5 Service Line (Trenchless Method) EA 6 $1,350.00 $8,100.00 
Install and Reconnect 1-1/4 —in. PE Near Side 

20 7-15.5 Service Line EA 1 $1,150.00 $1,150.00 

21 7-08 Trench Excavation Safety Systems LS 1 $100.00 $100.00 

Public Utility District No. 1 of Skagit County 
Interlocal Cooperative Agreement 
Amendment 1 
Page 1 of 2 



By: 	 

BID SCHEDULE C 
PUD NO.1 WATER LINE UPGRADE 

	

Unit 	Total 

	

Unit Quantity- Price 	Amotiht 

22 8-14 Monolithic Conc. Curb and Sidewalk SY 6 $110.00 $660.00 

23 8-14 Sidewalk Ramp Perpendicular EA 2 $1,000.00 $2,000.00 

24 1-07 Force Acct. - Unanticipated Conflicts EST EST $5,000.00 $5,000.00 

Construction Phase - Schedule C SUB-TOTAL $178,564.00 
Tax at 8.5% $15,177.94 
Total Schedule C including tax $193,741.94 
Contingency 5% $9,687.10 
Contract Administration 5% $9,687.10 
Design Engineering - By City Staff Actual $5,150.00 
Construction Engineering Coordination EST $1,200.00 
Construction Surveying (estimated) EST $3,600.00 
Soils Testing (estimated) EST $1,100.00 
TOTAL (ROUNDED) $224,166.00 

COMPENSATION is revised as follows: 

2. 	City will charge PUD for its portion of the services described above at its actual costs plus 
5% for Administration for a maximum compensation not to exceed $224,166.00 without 
further authorization from PUD. Requests by PUD for any other services by the City shall 
be negotiated as a mutually agreed amendment to this Agreement prior to the City 
providing the service. Upon reaching the maximum compensation, the City will have no 
further responsibility or obligation regarding the provision of services under this Agreement 
unless it is amended by mutual written agreement to authorize additional compensation. 

DATED this 	th day of 	 , 2014. 

CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 
A Washington municipal corporation 

By: 	  
Mike Anderson, Mayor 

CONTRACTOR: 

Public Utilty Distr No. 1 of Skagit County 

Robert B. Powell, General Manager 

Public Utility District No. 1 of Skagit County 
Interlocal Cooperative Agreement 
Amendment 1 
Page 2 of 2 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

JUN 1 1 2014 

SUBJECT: PUBLIC COMMENT 

Name: 
Address: 
Narrative: 

Name: 
Address 
Narrative: 

Name: 
Address: 
Narrative: 

Name: 
Address: 
Narrative: 

Name: 
Address: 
Narrative: 

7:00 RM. COUNCIL 91AMBER5.-, 
AGENDA NO 	  



7:00 P.M. COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
AGENDA NO. 	47-  

2ND READING 

OLD BUSINESS 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

JUN 1 1 2014 
CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 

Sedro-Woolley Municipal Building 
325 Metcalf Street 

Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284 
Phone (360) 855-9922 

Fax (360) 855-9923 

Eron M. Berg 
City Supervisor/Attorney 

MEMO TO: City Council 
FROM: 
	

Eron Berg 
RE: 
	

Unpaid holidays (2nd  reading) 
DATE: 
	

May 28, 2014 

ISSUE: 	Should the Council adopt a new policy relating to unpaid holidays for 
reasons of faith or conscience? 

BACKGROUND: 	The Washington State Legislature requires that you do! A new 
law, which goes into effect on June 12. 2014. requires the adoption of an unpaid holiday policy 
for reasons of faith or conscience. MRSC prepared a model policy for cities; that policy is 
incorporated into an employment policy and is attached for your approval. 

Also attached is the bill as it passed the legislature and the final bill report. 

REQUEST: Motion to adopt the attached personnel policy establishing process and 
procedures for allowing unpaid holidays for reasons of faith or conscience. 



Issue Date: 
	

June 11, 2014 
Issued By: 
	

Eron Berg, City Supervisor 
Approved By: 
	

City Council (at meeting on June,11, 2014) 
Effective: 
	

June 12, 2014 

Policy 	Unpaid Holidays for Reasons of Faith or Conscience 

A. The City of Sedro-Woolley, in compliance with Washington State law, allows 
employees to take two unpaid holidays per calendar year for a reason of faith or 
conscience or an organized activity conducted under the auspices of a religious 
denomination, church, or religious organization, and subject to the following rules and 
procedures: 

1. Unpaid Holidays. Unpaid holidays are available to all employees subject to the 
following: 

a. Two Unpaid Holidays are available to each employee per calendar year; 

b. Unpaid Holidays may not carry over from year to year if unused; 

c. Use of Unpaid Holidays is subject to pre-approval of the employee's supervisor 
who shall consider the desires of the employee, scheduled work, anticipated 
peak workloads, response to unexpected emergencies, the availability, if any, 
of a qualified substitute, and consideration of the meaning of "undue hardship" 
developed by rule of the Office of Financial Management; and 

d. Use of Unpaid Holidays is to be designated as such on the Payroll Time Sheet 
and the applicable approval attached to the timesheet. 

B. This policy is subject to annual review by the Mayor and may be modified or 
eliminated to meet the needs of the City at any time. 



MRSC MODEL POLICY 
May 20, 2014 

Wo recommend that you have this policy reviewed by your own legal counm.q before it is adapted. 

UNPAID HOLIDAYS FOR REASONS OF FAITH OR CONSCIENCE 

Employees are entitled to two unpaid holidays per calendar year for a reason of faith or conscience or an 
organized activity conducted under the auspices of a religious denomination, church, or religious 
organization. 

The employee may select the days on which he or she desires to take the two unpaid holidays after 
consultation with his or her supervisor. If an employee prefers to take the two unpaid holidays on 
specific days, then the employee will be allowed to take the unpaid holidays on the days he or she has 
selected unless the absence would unduly disrupt operations, impose an undue hardship, or the employee 
is necessary to maintain public safety. The term "undue hardship" has the meaning contained in the 
rule established by the Office of Financial Management. 

If possible, an employee should submit a written request for an unpaid holiday provided for by this 
section to the employee's supervisor a minimum of 	(days/weeks) prior to the requested 
day. Approval of the unpaid holiday shall not be deemed approved unless it has been authorized in 
writing by the employee's supervisor. The employee's supervisor shall evaluate requests by considering 
the desires of the employee, scheduled work, anticipated peak workloads, response to unexpected 
emergencies, the availability, if any, of a qualified substitute, and consideration of the meaning of 
"undue hardship" developed by rule of the Office of Financial Management. 

The two unpaid holidays allowed by this section must be taken during the calendar year, if at all; they do 
not carry over from one year to the next. 

s" 

MRSC 
	

MRSC.org  



FINAL BILL REPORT 
SSB 5173 

C 168 L 14 
Synopsis as Enacted 

Brief Description: Respecting holidays of faith and conscience. 

Sponsors: Senate Committee on Commerce & Labor (originally sponsored by Senators 
Hasegawa. Kline, Frockt and Chase). 

Senate Committee on Commerce & Labor 
House Committee on Judiciary 
House Committee on Appropriations 

Background: The following are current legal state holidays: Sunday. New Year's Day, 
Martin Luther King Jr. Day, President's Day, Memorial Day. Independence Day, Labor Day, 
Veteran's Day, Thanksgiving and the day following, and Christmas. State employees are 
entitled to one paid holiday per calendar year in addition to these legal holidays. State 
employees can select the day to take this additional paid holiday after consultation with their 
employer. 

Children must attend public school between the ages of 8 and up to 18 with some exceptions. 
Some of these exceptions include the following: the child is attending a private school, the 
child is being home-schooled, the child is attending an education center, the child is 16 years 
of age and is employed, or the child has met graduation requirements. Parents can request 
that a child be temporarily excused from school for purposes agreed upon by the school 
authorities and the parent, provided that the absences do not cause serious adverse effect 
upon the student's educational progress. Students excused for these temporary, agreed-upon 
absences can be claimed as full-time equivalent students to the extent they would otherwise 
have been claimed, for the purposes of annual basic education allocation compliance, basic 
education minimum instructional requirements, and enrollment calculations. 

Summary: Employees of the state and its political subdivisions, including employees of 
school districts and nonclassified employees of higher education institutions who hold 
appointments or are employed under contracts for less than 12 consecutive months. are 
entitled to two unpaid holidays per calendar year for reasons of faith or conscience or for an 
organized activity conducted under the auspices of a religious denomination, church. or 
religious organization. Employees of public institutions of higher education, including 
community colleges, technical colleges, and workforce training programs are included in the 
group of employees who can take the two unpaid days. An employer must allow an 
employee to take an unpaid holiday unless the employee's absence would impose an undue 

This analysis was prepared by non-partisan legislative staff for the use of legislative 
members in their deliberations. This analysis is not a part of the legislation nor does it 
constitute a statement of legislative intent. 

Senate Bill Report - I - 	 SSB 5173 



hardship on the employer or the employee is necessary to maintain public safety. The Office 
of Financial Management must establish a definition for undue hardship. 

Subject to approval by the students' parents, students are excused from school for reasons of 
faith or conscience or for an organized activity conducted under the auspices of a religious 
denomination, church, or religious organization for up to two days per academic year without 
penalty. Students excused for these absences may still be claimed as full-time equivalent 
students. The student absences will not affect school district compliance with basic 
education minimum instructional requirements. annual basic education allocation 
requirements, or enrollment calculations. The student absences may not mandate school 
closures. 

Institutions of higher education and state-funded workforce training programs must develop 
policies to accommodate student absences for reasons of faith or conscience to prevent 
adverse effects on students' grades. 

Votes on Final Passage: 

Senate 47 0 
House 64 32 (House amended) 
Senate 49 0 	(Senate concurred) 

Effective: June 12. 2014 

Senate Bill Report 	 - 2 - 	 SSB 5173 



CERTIFICATION OF ENROLLMENT 

SUBSTITUTE SENATE BILL 5173 

Chapter 168, Laws of 2014 

63rd Legislature 
2014 Regular Session 

STATE EMPLOYEES--UNPAID HOLIDAYS 

EFFECTIVE DATE: 06/12/14 

Passed by the Senate March 11, 2014 	 CERTIFICATE 
YEAS 49 NAYS 0 

I, Hunter G. Goodman, Secretary of 
the Senate of the State of 
Washington, do hereby certify that 
the attached is SUBSTITUTE SENATE 
BILL 5173 as passed by the Senate 
and the House of Representatives 
on the dates hereon set forth. 

HUNTER G. GOODMAN 

Secretary 

BRAD OWEN 

President of the Senate 

Passed by the House •arch 6, 2014 
YEAS 64 NAYS 32 

FRANK CHOPP 

Speaker of the House of Representatives 

Approved March 31, 2014, 3:16 p.m. 	 FILED 

March 31, 2014 

JAY INSLEE 	 Secretary of State 
State of Washington 

Governor of the State of Washington 



SUBSTITUTE SENATE BILL 5173 

AS AMENDED BY THE HOUSE 

Passed Legislature - 2014 Regular Session 

State of Washington 
	

63rd Legislature 	2014 Regular Session 

By 	Senate Commerce & Labor (originally sponsored by Senators 
Hasegawa, Kline, Frockt, and Chase) 

READ FIRST TIME 02/07/14. 

	

1 	AN ACT Relating to the respecting holidays of faith and conscience 

	

2 	act; amending RCW 1.16.050 and 28A.225.010; adding a new section to 

	

3 	chapter 43.41 RCW; adding a new section to chapter 28B.10 RCW; and 

	

4 	adding a new section to chapter 28C.18 RCW. 

	

5 	BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON: 

	

6 	Sec. 1. RCW 1.16.050 and 2013 c 5 s 1 are each amended to read as 

	

7 	follows: 

	

8 	The following are legal holidays: 	Sunday; the first day of 

	

9 	January, commonly called New Year's Day; the third Monday of January, 

	

10 	being celebrated as the anniversary of the birth of Martin Luther King, 

	

11 	Jr.; the third Monday of February to be known as Presidents' Day and to 

	

12 	be celebrated as the anniversary of the births of Abraham Lincoln and 

	

13 	George Washington; the last Monday of May, commonly known as Memorial 

	

14 	Day; the fourth day of July, being the anniversary of the Declaration 

	

15 	of Independence; the first Monday in September, to be known as Labor 

	

16 	Day; the eleventh day of November, to be known as Veterans' Day; the 

	

17 	fourth Thursday in November, to be known as Thanksgiving Day; the day 

	

18 	immediately following Thanksgiving Day; and the twenty-fifth day of 

	

19 	December, commonly called Christmas Day. 

p. 1 	 SSB 5173.SL 



	

1 	Employees of the state and its political subdivisions, except 

	

2 	employees of school districts and except those nonclassified employees 

	

3 	of institutions of higher education who hold appointments or are 

	

4 	employed under contracts to perform services for periods of less than 

	

5 	twelve consecutive months, shall be entitled to one paid holiday per 

	

6 	calendar year in addition to those specified in this section. Each 

	

7 	employee of the state or its political subdivisions may select the day 

	

8 	on which the employee desires to take the additional holiday provided 

	

9 	for herein after consultation with the employer pursuant to guidelines 

	

10 	to be promulgated by rule of the appropriate personnel authority, or in 

	

11 	the case of local government by ordinance or resolution of the 

	

12 	legislative authority. 

	

13 	Employees of the  state and its  political subdivisions, including 

	

14 	employees of school districts and those nonclassified employees of 

	

15 	institutions of higher education who hold appointments or are employed  

	

16 	under contracts  to perform  services  for  periods of less than twelve  

	

17 	consecutive months, are  entitled to two  unpaid holidays per  calendar  

	

18 	year for a reason of faith or conscience or an organized activity  

	

19 	conducted under the  auspices of a  religious denomination, church,  or 

	

20 	religious organization. This includes employees of public institutions  

	

21 	of higher education, including community colleges, technical colleges,  

	

22 	and workforce training programs. The employee may select the days on  

	

23 	which the employee desires to take the two unpaid holidays after 

	

24 	consultation with the employer pursuant to guidelines to be promulgated  

	

25 	by rule of the appropriate personnel authority, or in the case of local 

	

26 	government b./ ordinance or resolution of the legislative authority. If  

	

27 	an employee  prefers to  take the  two unpaid  holidays on  specific days  

	

28 	for a reason of faith or conscience, or an organized activity conducted  

	

29 	under the auspices  of a religious  denomination, church, or  religious 

	

30 	organization, the employer must allow the employee to do so unless the  

	

31 	employee's absence would impose an undue hardship on the  employer or  

	

32 	the employee is necessary to maintain  public safety. Undue hardship  

	

33 	shall have the meaning established in rule by the office of financial  

	

34 	management under section 2 of this act.  

	

35 	If any of the above specified state legal holidays are also federal 

	

36 	legal holidays but observed on different dates, only the state legal 

	

37 	holidays shall be recognized as a paid legal holiday for employees of 

	

38 	the state and its political subdivisions except that for port districts 

SSB 5173.SL 	 p. 2 



	

1 	and the law enforcement and public transit employees of municipal 

	

2 	corporations, either the federal or the state legal holiday, but in no 

	

3 	case both, may be recognized as a paid legal holiday for employees. 

	

4 	Whenever any legal holiday, other than Sunday, falls upon a Sunday, 

	

5 	the following Monday shall be the legal holiday. 

	

6 	Whenever any legal holiday falls upon a Saturday, the preceding 

	

7 	Friday shall be the legal holiday. 

	

8 	Nothing in this section shall be construed to have the effect of 

	

9 	adding or deleting the number of paid holidays provided for in an 

	

10 	agreement between employees and employers of political subdivisions of 

	

11 	the state or as established by ordinance or resolution of the local 

	

12 	government legislative authority. 

	

13 	The legislature declares that the thirteenth day of January shall 

	

14 	be recognized as Korean-American day but shall not be considered a 

	

15 	legal holiday for any purposes. 

	

16 	The legislature declares that the twelfth day of October shall be 

	

17 	recognized as Columbus day but shall not be considered a legal holiday 

	

18 	for any purposes. 

	

19 	The legislature declares that the ninth day of April shall be 

	

20 	recognized as former prisoner of war recognition day but shall not be 

	

21 	considered a legal holiday for any purposes. 

	

22 	The legislature declares that the twenty-sixth day of January shall 

	

23 	be recognized as Washington army and air national guard day but shall 

	

24 	not be considered a legal holiday for any purposes. 

	

25 	The legislature declares that the seventh day of August shall be 

	

26 	recognized as purple heart recipient recognition day but shall not be 

	

27 	considered a legal holiday for any purposes. 

	

28 	The legislature declares that the second Sunday in October be 

	

29 	recognized as Washington state children's day but shall not be 

	

30 	considered a legal holiday for any purposes. 

	

31 	The legislature declares that the sixteenth day of April shall be 

	

32 	recognized as Mother Joseph day and the fourth day of September as 

	

33 	Marcus Whitman day, but neither shall be considered legal holidays for 

	

34 	any purpose. 

	

35 	The legislature declares that the seventh day of December be 

	

36 	recognized as Pearl Harbor remembrance day but shall not be considered 

	

37 	a legal holiday for any purpose. 

P. 3 
	

SSB 5173.SL 



	

1 	The legislature declares that the twenty-seventh day of July be 

	

2 	recognized as national Korean war veterans armistice day but shall not 

	

3 	be considered a legal holiday for any purpose. 

	

4 	The legislature declares that the nineteenth day of February be 

	

5 	recognized as civil liberties day of remembrance but shall not be 

	

6 	considered a legal holiday for any purpose. 

	

7 	The legislature declares that the nineteenth day of June be 

	

8 	recognized as Juneteenth, a day of remembrance for the day the slaves 

	

9 	learned of their freedom, but shall not be considered a legal holiday 

	

10 	for any purpose. 

	

11 	The legislature declares that the thirtieth day of March be 

	

12 	recognized as welcome home Vietnam veterans day but shall not be 

	

13 	considered a legal holiday for any purpose. 

	

14 	NEW SECTION. Sec. 2. A new section is added to chapter 43.41 RCW 

	

15 	to read as follows: 

	

16 	The director of the office of financial management shall by rule 

	

17 	establish a definition of "undue hardship" for the purposes of RCW 

	

18 	1.16.050. 

	

19 	Sec. 3. RCW 28A.225.010 and 1998 c 244 s 14 are each amended to 

	

20 	read as follows: 

	

21 	(1) All parents in this state of any child eight years of age and 

	

22 	under eighteen years of age shall cause such child to attend the public 

	

23 	school of the district in which the child resides and such child shall 

	

24 	have the responsibility to and therefore shall attend for the full time 

	

25 	when such school may be in session unless: 

	

26 	(a) The child is attending an approved private school for the same 

	

27 	time or is enrolled in an extension program as provided in RCW 

	

28 	28A.195.010(4); 

	

29 	(b) The child is receiving home-based instruction as provided in 

	

30 	subsection (4) of this section; 

	

31 	(c) The child is attending an education center as provided in 

	

32 	chapter 28A.205 RCW; 

	

33 	(d) The school district superintendent of the district in which the 

	

34 	child resides shall have excused such child from attendance because the 

	

35 	child is physically or mentally unable to attend school, is attending 

	

36 	a residential school operated by the department of social and health 

SSB 5173.SL 	 p. 4 



	

1 	services, is incarcerated in an adult correctional facility, or has 

	

2 	been temporarily excused upon the request of his or her parents for 

	

3 	purposes agreed upon by the school authorities and the parent: 

	

4 	PROVIDED, That such excused absences shall not be permitted if deemed 

	

5 	to cause a serious adverse effect upon the student's educational 

	

6 	progress: PROVIDED FURTHER, That students excused for such temporary 

	

7 	absences may be claimed as full-time equivalent students to the extent 

	

8 	they would otherwise have been so claimed for the purposes of RCW 

	

9 	28A.150.250 and 28A.150.260 and shall not affect school district 

	

10 	compliance with the provisions of RCW 28A.150.220; ((e- )) 

	

11 	(e) The  child is excused from school subject  to approval  by  the 

	

12 	student's parent for a reason of faith or conscience, or an  organized  

	

13 	activity conducted under the auspices of a religious denomination,  

	

14 	church, or religious organization, for up to two days per school  Year 

	

15 	without any penalty. Such absences may not mandate school  closures.  

	

16 	Students excused for  such temporary absences  may be claimed  as full- 

	

17 	time equivalent students to the extent they would otherwise  have been  

	

18 	so claimed for the purposes of RCW 28A.150.250 and 28A.150.260 and may 

	

19 	not affect school district compliance with the provisions of RCW 

	

20 	28A.150.220; or  

	

21 	(f) The child is sixteen years of age or older and: 

	

22 	(i) The child is regularly and lawfully employed and either the 

	

23 	parent agrees that the child should not be required to attend school or 

	

24 	the child is emancipated in accordance with chapter 13.64 RCW; 

	

25 	(ii) The child has already met graduation requirements in 

	

26 	accordance with state board of education rules and regulations; or 

	

27 	(iii) The child has received a certificate of educational 

	

28 	competence under rules and regulations established by the state board 

	

29 	of education under RCW 28A.305.190. 

	

30 	(2) A parent for the purpose of this chapter means a parent, 

	

31 	guardian, or person having legal custody of a child. 

	

32 	(3) An approved private school for the purposes of this chapter and 

	

33 	chapter 28A.200 RCW shall be one approved under regulations established 

	

34 	by the state board of education pursuant to RCW 28A.305.130. 

	

35 	(4) For the purposes of this chapter and chapter 28A.200 RCW, 

	

36 	instruction shall be home-based if it consists of planned and 

	

37 	supervised instructional and related educational activities, including 

	

38 	a curriculum and instruction in the basic skills of occupational 

p. 5 
	

SSB 5173.SL 



	

1 	education, science, mathematics, language, social studies, history, 

	

2 	health, reading, writing, spelling, and the development of an 

	

3 	appreciation of art and music, provided for a number of hours 

	

4 	equivalent to the total annual program hours per grade level 

	

5 	established for approved private schools under RCW 28A.195.010 and 

	

6 	28A.195.040 and if such acti•ities are: 

	

7 	(a) Provided by a parent who is instructing his or her child only 

	

8 	and are supervised by a certificated person. A certificated person for 

	

9 	purposes of this chapter and chapter 28A.200 RCW shall be a person 

	

10 	certified under chapter 28A.410 RCW. For purposes of this section, 

	

11 	"supervised by a certificated person" means: The planning by the 

	

12 	certificated person and the parent of objectives consistent with this 

	

13 	subsection; a minimum each month of an average of one contact hour per 

	

14 	week with the child being supervised by the certificated person; and 

	

15 	e•aluation of such child's progress by the certificated person. The 

	

16 	number of children supervised by the certificated person shall not 

	

17 	exceed thirty for purposes of this subsection; or 

	

18 	(b) Provided by a parent who is instructing his or her child only 

	

19 	and who has either earned forty-five college level quarter credit hours 

	

20 	or its equivalent in semester hours or has completed a course in home- 

	

21 	based instruction at a postsecondary institution or a vocational- 

	

22 	technical institute; or 

	

23 	(c) Provided by a parent who is deemed sufficiently qualified to 

	

24 	provide home-based instruction by the superintendent of the local 

	

25 	school district in which the child resides. 

	

26 	(5) The legislature recognizes that home-based instruction is less 

	

27 	structured and more experiential than the instruction normally provided 

	

28 	in a classroom setting. Therefore, the provisions of subsection (4) of 

	

29 	this section relating to the nature and quantity of instructional and 

	

30 	related educational activities shall be liberally construed. 

	

31 	NEW SECTION.  Sec. 4. A new section is added to chapter 28B.10 RCW 

	

32 	to read as follows: 

	

33 	Institutions of higher education must develop policies to 

	

34 	accommodate student absences for up to two days per academic year, to 

	

35 	allow students to take holidays for reasons of faith or conscience or 

	

36 	for organized activities conducted under the auspices of a religious 

SSB 5173.SL 	 p. 6 



	

1 	denomination, church, or religious organization, so that students' 

	

2 	grades are not adversely impacted by the absences. 

	

3 	NEW SECTION.  Sec. 5. A new section is added to chapter 28C.18 RCW 

	

4 	to read as follows: 

	

5 	State-funded workforce training programs must develop policies to 

	

6 	accommodate student absences for up to two days per academic year, to 

	

7 	allow students to take holidays for reasons of faith or conscience or 

	

8 	for organized activities conducted under the auspices of a religious 

	

9 	denomination, church, or religious organization, so that students' 

	

10 	grades are not adversely impacted by the absences. 

Passed by the Senate March 11, 2014. 
Passed by the House March 6, 2014. 
Approved by the Governor March 31, 2014. 
Filed in Office of Secretary of State March 31, 2014. 

p. 7 
	

SSB 5173.SL 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

JUN 1 1 2014 

7:00 P.M. COUNCHT  CHAMBERS 
AGENDA NO. 	  

CITN' OF SEDRO-WOOLLEN' 
Sedro-Woolley Municipal Building 

325 Metcalf Street 
Sedro-Woolley. WA 98284 

Phone (360) 855-0771 
Fax (360) 855-0733 

Mark A. Freiberger. PE 
Director of Public Works 

MEMO TO: City Council and Mayor Mike Anderson 

FROM: 	Mark A. Freiberger, PE 

RE: 	Proposed WSDOT Property Transfer 
Contract 2013-PW-01 SR20/Cook Road Realignment and 
Extension Project 

DATE: 	June 3, 2014 (for Council action June 11, 2014) 

ISSUE 
Should Mayor Anderson execute the attached quitclaim deeds from the State of Washington to 
the City of Sedro-Woofley to transfer property required for construction of the SR20/Cook Road 
Realignment and Extension Project? 

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS 
As part of the SR20/Cook Road Project, WSDOT agreed to provide right of way for the 
realignment of Cook Road and for construction of the new Edward R. Murrow Street. The 
attached quitclaim deeds formalize this commitment. The transfer is pursuant to the provisions 
of RCW 47.12.080 in conjunction with chapter 306, laws of 2013 (ESSB 5024, Section 213(5)). 

Also attached is a map and summary of parcels being transferred. We are verifying the 
accuracy of the deed descriptions with our surveyor, Skagit Surveyors & Engineers. 

Certain limitations apply to the use of remnant portions of the property based on the 
Constitution. In effect, the use of the property is limited to roadway and street purposes only. 
Should the city elect to dispose of the property in the future, the costs of the appraisal and 
division would be the requirement of the city, with proceeds from a sale divided between the 
state and the city on a proportional basis. Use of the property for non-transportation purposes 
requires approval of WSDOT (Northwest Region, Mount Baker Area office). 

MOTION: 

Move to authorize Mayor Anderson to execute the attached quitclaim deeds from the 
State of Washington to the City of Sedro-Woolley to transfer property required for 
construction of the SR20/Cook Road Realignment and Extension Project, and issue 
Check #1119!payable to Skagit County Auditor for $302.00 and Check  #179412$  payable 
to Skagit County Treasurer for $40.00 for property transfer fees. 

2014-6-11 WSDOT Property Transfer for Approval.doc 
	

Page 1 of 1 	 6 4/2014 3:41:34 PM 



SR 20/COOK ROAD ROUNDABOUT 
WSDOT R/W PARCELS REQUIRED 

MARCH 5, 2013 

SR20/COOK ROAD REALIGNMENT AND EXTENSION PROJECT 

WSDOT PROPERTIES TO BE CONVEYED TO THE CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 

Updated 4/7/2013; 8/9/13; 9/18/13 

WSDOT Parcel Parcel Number Area, Acres 	 Notes 
R AF558582 1.48 	4 parts 1 
Al AF558705 2.20 DOT Parcel T is the same as Parcel Al 2 
HANSON TO DOT AF9003050072 - 	Already City ROW 3 
B1 AF558703 0.44 4 

E AF557480 0.43 5 

S AF558702 0.55 6 

0 AF557920 0.51 7 

C AF557406 0.45 8 

M AF557919 0.50 9 

L AF557997 0.66 10 

El S.C. Cause24376 3.12 Skagit Cnty Sup. Cause 24376 11 

D AF557411 0.22 12 

51 AF9003050079 0.10 13 

B AF557408 1.20 14 

D1 AF560323 0.07 15 

F AF557409 0.14 16 

J AF557685 0.02 17 

17028 

TOTAL 

AF564507 0.01 20'x20' Triangle located at SW corner Tract Al and north of Cook Road, 

12.10 

18 

9/20/2013 



0 
0 

0 

0010  
F557919 

0 50 BC 

DOT 0 
AFS51020 
0.51 Re 

0010  
Al 55700 
0.55 me 

DOT BI 
0555100 

COIL 
A1561097 
cum 

001 C 
0.550701 
0.45 me. 

150 300 450 0 

Skagit Surveyors and Engineers 
806 Metcalf St., Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284 	360.8552121 

JN 212039 
8APRI3 Redd 09AUG13-Rev'd 14AUG13 

AANDON 
TO TOT 

AF0001150012 
0.05. 

DDT El 
Sup! CM,. Super. Cowl 

CeuRe 011711 
DOT 0 - 00550701 

MOWNWWWWWWWW WAWA WWW:mmxkivccm..a. 

DOT E 
0357100 
023.e. 

WESTERN AVE. 

DOT I've 
AF50.100/ 
0.01 Fa. 

MAP OF WSDOT PROPERTIES TO BE 
CONVEYED TO THE CITY OF 

SEDRO-WOOLLEY 

P
A

SS
1
 

C
ar

ls
on

‘2
12

13
39

-D
av

id
Ev

an
s  

a
nd

 As
so

c  
\ R

igh
t  O

f  W
ay

  M
at

te
rs

  \
 D

O
T

 R
W

 Pa
rc

el
s.

th
vg

,  L
a
pu

ll
,  8

/1
4
/2

0
1
3
 73

9:
5
8
 A

M
 

WESTERN AVE. 

0 
z 
m 

001 R 
AF5511502 

MD or 
0.05 me. 

<.) 	 MT DI 

PO  

C'JP  

C°.  



at Washington State 
WI  Department of  Transportation 

Lynn Peterson 
Secretary of Transportation 

•Thansportation Building 
310 Maple Park Avenue S.E. 
P.O. Box 47300 
Olympia, WA 98504-7300 

360-705-7000 
TTY: 1-800-833-6388 
www.wsdotwa.gov  

May 16, 2014 

City of Sedro Woolley 
Attn: Mark Freiberger, P.E. 
325 Metcalf St. 
Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284-1007 

RE: I. C. #: Cook Road Project (IC#'s 1-29-02716, 1-29-04438, 1-29-05137, 1-29-10012) 
Plan Title: SR 9, HOWEY ROAD TO SEDRO-WOOLLEY 

Dear Mr. Freiberger: 

Enclosed you will find 4 separate quitclaim deeds from the State of Washington to the City of 
Sedro-Woolley, sent for review and approval(s). Please provide the appropriate signatory 
approval(s) on the line(s) provided on page 4 of each of the enclosed documents. It is not 
necessary to have the signature(s) acknowledged. 

After the documents have been signed, please return them along with a check in the amount of 
$302.00 made payable to the Skagit County Auditor, and a check for the Excise Affidavit 
processing fee in the amount of $40.00 payable to the Skagit County Treasurer. We will then 
have the instrument(s) executed and recorded. They will be returned to you after recording and 
processing. 

Feel free to contact me if you have any questions regarding these matters. 

Debbie Ivers 
Property & Acquisition Specialist 
Real Estate Services 
360-705-6944 
iversd@wsdot.wa.gov  

DI 
	 MAY  9  

4114 
Enclosure(s) 4 



AFTER RECORDING RETURN TO: 

ATTN: REAL ESTATE SERVICES 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
P.O. BOX 47338 
OLYMPIA, WA 98504-7338 

Document Title: Quitclaim Deed 
Reference Number of Related Document: N/A 
Grantor: State of Washington, Department of Transportation 
Grantee: City of Sedro Woolley 
Legal Description: Ptn. NW-SW, Sec 24, T3N, R4E, W.M. 
Additional Legal Description is on Page 1 & 2 of document 
Assessor's Tax Parcel Number: P37511, P37503 & highway right of way 

QUIT CLAIM DEED 

SR 9, HOWEY ROAD TO SEDRO WOOLLEY 

The STATE OF WASHINGTON acting by and through its DEPARTMENT OF 

TRANSPORTATION, Grantor, at the direction of the legislature pursuant to chapter 306, Laws 

of 2013 (ESSB 5024, Section 213(5)), requiring the transfer of certain portions of the state's 

highway property located in the incorporated limits of Sedro-Woolley to facilitate completion of 

the SR 20/Cook Road realignment and extension project, to provide a more direct route from SR 

20 and SR 9 to 1-5, to reduce traffic and improve capacity on SR 20 and SR 9, hereby coveys and 

quitclaims unto CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY, a municipal corporation of the state of 

Washington, Grantee, all right, title, and interest, including all easement rights of access, light, 

view and air, in and to the following described real property: 

Tract A 

Beginning at a point 20 feet north and 180 feet east of the southwest corner of the 
northwest quarter of Section 24, Township 35 North, Range 4 East, W.M., in 
Skagit County, Washington; thence east 260 feet, more or less, to the west line of 
Nelson Street (now Western Avenue) as platted in West Addition to the Town of 
Woolley, according to the recorded plat thereof in the office of the Auditor of 

RES 411 
	

Page 1 of 4 Pages 	 IC#1-29-02716 
Revised 3/2013 



Skagit County, Washington, in Volume 2 of Plats, page 89; thence north along 
said west line of Nelson Street (now Western Avenue) 320 feet; thence west to a 
point directly north of the point of beginning; thence south 320 feet to the place of 
beginning. 

Tract B 

A 54-foot strip off the east side of the following described property in the 
southwest quarter of the northwest quarter of Section 24, Township 35 North, 
Range 4 East, in Skagit County, Washington: 

Beginning at a point 20 feet north of the southwest corner of said quarter section; 
thence north 320 feet; thence east 180 feet; thence south 320 feet; thence west 180 
feet to the point of beginning. 

Tract C 

That part of the following described PARCEL "B" lying southeasterly of the 
following described line: Beginning at a point on the east line of said PARCEL 
"B", 20 feet northerly of the southeast corner thereof; thence southwesterly to a 
point on the south line thereof 20 feet westerly of said southeast corner. 

PARCEL "B": Beginning at a point 20 feet north of the southwest corner of the 
southwest quarter of the northwest quarter of Section 24, Township 35 North, 
Range 4 East, W.M., in Skagit County, Washington; thence north 320 feet; thence 
east 126 feet; thence south 320 feet; thence west to the point of beginning. 

The specific details concerning all of which may be found on Sheet 4 of 4 sheets 
of that certain right of way plan entitled SR 9, (SSH 1 A), Howey Road to Sedro 
Woolley, now of record and on file in the Office of the Secretary of 
Transportation at Olympia, Washington, bearing date of approval July 9, 1957. 

The specific details concerning all of which may be found on sheet 4 of 4 of that certain 

plan entitled SR 9, (SSH 1 A), Howey Road to Sedro Woolley, now of record and on file in the 

office of the Secretary of Transportation at Olympia, Washington, bearing date of approval July 

9, 1957, revised December 12, 2013. 

Subject to all existing encumbrances, including easements, restrictions and reservations, 

if any. 

RES 411 	 Page 2 of 4 Pages 	 1C#1-29-02716 
Revised 3/2013 



The Grantee herein, on behalf of itself and its successors or assigns, waives and/or 

releases Grantor from any past, present, or future claims for damages directly or indirectly 

caused by highway drainage or runoff, and further, Grantee, its successors or assigns, shall have 

no right of compensation for damages to the property herein conveyed caused directly or 

indirectly by highway drainage or runoff. 

The Grantee understands and agrees that the above-referenced property is transferred for 

road and street purposes only. The Grantee shall not vacate, sell, rent or use the property (or any 

portion thereof) for nontransportation uses without first obtaining the Grantor's prior written 

approval. The Grantee agrees on behalf of itself and its successors or assigns, not to revise either 

the right of way lines or the access control without first obtaining the Grantor's prior written 

approval. Should the Grantor authorize the vacation, sale, rental or use of the property (or any 

portion thereof) for nontransportation uses, the Grantee agrees at its cost to determine by 

appraisal the fair market value/economic rent of the property (or any portion thereof), and the 

Grantee and state of Washington agree to proportionally share in the value of the property in the 

same proportion as the purchase costs were shared. 

The Grantee, its successors or assigns, as part consideration herein does hereby agree to 

comply with all civil rights and anti-discrimination requirements of Chapter 49.60 RCW as to the 

lands herein described. 

The lands herein described are not required for state highway purposes and are conveyed 

pursuant to the provisions of RCW 47.12.080 in conjunction with chapter 306, laws of 2013 

(ESSB 5024, Section 213(5)). 

Dated at Olympia, Washington, this 	day of 	 , 20 	 

STATE OF WASHINGTON 

Lynn Peterson 
Secretary of Transportation 

RES 411 
	

Page 3 of 4 Pages 	 IC#1-29-02716 
Revised 3/2013 



By: 
Assistant Attorney General 

APPRO D AS TO FORM: 

REVIEWED AS TO FORM: 
City of Sedro Woolley 

By: 	  

Name: 	  

Title: 

STATE OF WASHINGTON ) 

): ss 

County of Thurston 

On this 	 day of 	 , 20 	, before me personally 

appeared Lynn Peterson, known to me as the Secretary of Transportation, Washington State 

Department of Transportation, and executed the foregoing instrument, acknowledging said 

instrument to be the free and voluntary act and deed of the State of Washington, for the uses and 

purposes therein mentioned, and on oath stated that she was authorized to execute said 

instrument. 

Given under my hand and official seal the day and year last above written. 

Notary (print name) 	  

Notary Public in and for the State of Washington, residing 

at Olympia 

My Appointment Expires 	  

RES 411 	 Page 4 of 4 Pages 	 IC#1-29-02716 
Revised 3/2013 



AFTER RECORDING RETURN TO: 

ATTN: REAL ESTATE SERVICES 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
P.O. BOX 47338 
OLYMPIA, WA 98504-7338 

Document Title: Quitclaim Deed 
Reference Number of Related Document: N/A 
Grantor: State of Washington, Department of Transportation 
Grantee: City of Sedro-Woolley 
Legal Description: Ptn. NW-SW, Sec 24, T3N, R4E, W.M. 
Additional Legal Description is on Pages 1 - 3 of document 
Assessor's Tax Parcel Number: P37514, P37518, P37519. P37516, P37550, P37524, P37517 & 
P37515 

QUITCLAIM DEED 

SR 9, HOWEY ROAD TO SEDRO WOOLLEY 

The STATE OF WASHINGTON acting by and through its DEPARTMENT OF 

TRANSPORTATION, Grantor, at the direction of the legislature pursuant to chapter 306, Laws 

of 2013 (ESSB 5024, Section 213(5)), requiring the transfer of certain portions of the state's 

highway property located in the incorporated limits of Sedro-Woolley to facilitate completion of 

the SR 20/Cook Road realignment and extension project, to provide a more direct route from SR 

20 and SR 9 to 1-5, to reduce traffic and improve capacity on SR 20 and SR 9, hereby coveys and 

quitclaims unto CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY, a municipal corporation of the state of 

Washington, Grantee, all right, title, and interest, to the following described real property: 

All that part of the following described Tract "X" EXCEPT that portion 
described as follows: 

Begin at the West quarter corner of Section 24, Township 35 North, 
Range 4 East, W.M.; thence South 0° 54' 25" West along the West Line 
of said Section, 20 feet to the true point of beginning; Thence continue 
South 0° 54' 25" West 130 feet; thence South 89° 05' 35" East 122 feet, 

RES 411 
	

Page 1 of 5 Pages 	 IC#1-29-04438 
Revised 3/2013 



more or less, to a point opposite and 30 feet distant West, when measured 
radially from Highway Engineer's Station F3 7+70 on the F3 Line Survey 
of Secondary State Highway No. 1-A, Howey Road to Sedro Woolley; 
thence Northerly parallel with and 30 feet distant Westerly from said F3 
Line 110 feet, more or less, to a point 20 feet South of the South right of 
way line of the Cook County Road; thence North 44°09' 30" West 28 
feet, more or less, to the South right of way of said County road; thence 
Westerly along the South right of way line of the Cook County Road, 102 
feet, more or less, to the true point of beginning. 

And Except that portion conveyed to Gary L. Hanson and Linda S. 
Hanson, by deed recorded July 30, 1991 as Auditor's File No. 
9107300020, records of Skagit County, Washington; 

And Further Except that portion conveyed to the City of Sedro Woolley, 
by deed recorded March 9, 1992 as Auditor's File No. 9203090088, 
records of Skagit County, Washington. 

TRACT "X" 

Part of the NW1/4 of the SW1/4 of Section 24, Township 35 North, 
Range 4, East, W.M., described as follows: 

Beginning at a point on the West line of said Section 24, 20 feet South of 
the West quarter corner; thence South along the West section line 977.5 
feet to Seattle & Northern Railroad right of way; thence North 60°21 
East along the North side of the said right of way 216.6 feet; thence 
North parallel with the West section line 870.2 feet; thence West 188.6 
feet to place of beginning, EXCEPT roads and rights of way therefor and 

EXCEPT that portion thereof lying Southeasterly of a line drawn parallel 
with and 50 feet distant Northwesterly when measured at right angles 
from the center line of Secondary State Highway No. lA and 1F, Sedro-
Woolley Vicinity, as condemned by the State of Washington, under 
Superior Court Cause No.23448 for highway purposes. 

The Grantee understands and agrees the Grantor is retaining ownership of 
all rights of ingress and egress, to, from and between SR 20 along the 
Southeasterly line of the above described property and the C line of SR 9, 
(SSH 1 A), Howey Road to Sedro Woolley right of way plan lying 
Southerly of HES C 13+00 on said C line survey as shown on the above 
referenced state highway route and/or roadway facilities and the 
properties abutting said state highway route and/or roadway facilities, 

RES 411 
	

Page 2 of 5 Pages 	 IC#1-29-04438 
Revised 3/2013 



including all rights of access, light, view and air, and access control as 
shown by the access prohibition symbol on the SR 9, (SSH 1 A), Howey 
Road to Sedro Woolley right of way plan along said state route and/or 
roadway facilities and along abutting properties on said right of way 
plans. The Grantee, its successors or assigns, shall have no right of 
ingress or egress between the above referenced state route and abutting 
properties, or the state route and the lands abutting hereon that show the 
access prohibition symbol on said right of way plans. The Grantee, its 
successors or assigns, shall not be entitled to compensation for any loss 
of access, light, view, or air occasioned by the location, construction, 
reconstruction, maintenance, or operation of the above referenced state 
route and/or roadway facilities. 

The specific details concerning all of which may be found on sheet 4 of 4 of that certain 

plan entitled SR 9, (SSH 1 A), Howey Road to Sedro Woolley, now of record and on file in the 

office of the Secretary of Transportation at Olympia, Washington, bearing date of approval July 

9, 1957, revised April 25, 2014. 

Subject to all existing encumbrances, including easements, restrictions and reservations, 

if any. 

The Grantee herein, on behalf of itself and its successors or assigns, waives and/or 

releases Grantor from any past, present, or future claims for damages directly or indirectly 

caused by highway drainage or runoff, and further, Grantee, its successors or assigns, shall have 

no right of compensation for damages to the property herein conveyed caused directly or 

indirectly by highway drainage or runoff. 

The Grantee understands and agrees that the above-referenced property is transferred for 

road and street purposes only. The Grantee shall not vacate, sell, rent or use the property (or any 

portion thereof) for nontransportation uses without first obtaining the Grantor's prior written 

approval. The Grantee agrees on behalf of itself and its successors or assigns, not to revise either 

the right of way lines or the access control without first obtaining the Grantor's prior written 

approval. Should the Grantor authorize the vacation, sale, rental or use of the property (or any 

portion thereof) for nontransportation uses, the Grantee agrees at its cost to determine by 

appraisal the fair market value/economic rent of the property (or any portion thereof), and the 

RES 411 
	

Page 3 of 5 Pages 	 IC#1-29-04438 
Revised 3/2013 



APP 

By: 
Assi tant Attorne eneral 

ED AS TO FO 

0 
C....,.."■....-'t  - 

Grantee and state of Washington agree to proportionally share in the value of the property in the 

same proportion as the purchase costs were shared. 

The Grantee, its successors or assigns, as part consideration herein does hereby agree to 

comply with all civil rights and anti-discrimination requirements of Chapter 49.60 RCW as to the 

lands herein described. 

The lands herein described are not required for state highway purposes and are conveyed 

pursuant to the provisions of RCW 47.12.080 in conjunction with chapter 306, laws of 2013 

(ESSB 5024, Section 213(5)). 

Dated at Olympia, Washington, this 	day of 	 , 20 

STATE OF WASHINGTON 

Lynn Peterson 
Secretary of Transportation 

REVIEWED AS TO FORM: 
City of Sedro-Woolley 

By: 	  

Name: 

Title: 	  

RES 411 	 Page 4 of 5 Pages 	 IC#1-29-04438 
Revised 3/2013 



STATE OF WASHINGTON ) 

): ss 

County of Thurston 

On this 	 day of 	 , 20 	, before me personally 

appeared Lynn Peterson, known to me as the Secretary of Transportation, Washington State 

Department of Transportation, and executed the foregoing instrument, acknowledging said 

instrument to be the free and voluntary act and deed of the State of Washington, for the uses and 

purposes therein mentioned, and on oath stated that she was authorized to execute said 

instrument. 

Given under my hand and official seal the day and year last above written. 

Notary (print name) 	  

Notary Public in and for the State of Washington, residing 

at Olympia 

My Appointment Expires 	  

RES 411 
	

Page 5 of 5 Pages 	 1C#1-29-04438 
Revised 3/2013 



AFTER RECORDING RETURN TO: 

ATTN: REAL ESTATE SERVICES 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
P.O. BOX 47338 
OLYMPIA, WA 98504-7338 

Document Title: Quitclaim Deed 
Reference Number of Related Document: N/A 
Grantor: State of Washington, Department ofTransportation 
Grantee: City of Sedro Woolley 
Legal Description: Ptn. Lots 1-11, 13 & 14, 18-20 and Lot 10, Roetker's Addn. to Sedro 
Woolley V. 7, p. 44 
Additional Legal Description is on Pages 1 & 2 of document 
Assessor's Tax Parcel Number: P76855, P76834 & unassigned hwy r/w 

QUITCLAIM DEED 

SR 9, HOWEY ROAD TO SEDRO WOOLLEY 

The STATE OF WASHINGTON acting by and through its DEPARTMENT OF 

TRANSPORTATION, Grantor, at the direction of the legislature pursuant to chapter 306, Laws 

of 2013 (ESSB 5024, Section 213(5)), requiring the transfer of certain portions of the state's 

highway property located in the incorporated limits of Sedro-Woolley to facilitate completion of 

the SR 20/Cook Road realignment and extension project, to provide a more direct route from SR 

20 and SR 9 to 1-5, to reduce traffic and improve capacity on SR 20 and SR 9, hereby coveys and 

quitclaims unto CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY, a municipal corporation of the state of 

Washington, Grantee, all right, title, and interest, including all easement rights of access, light, 

view and air, in and to the following described real property: 

Tract 1 

All that portion of the following described PARCEL "A" lying southeasterly of a 
line drawn parallel with and 75 feet northwesterly, when measured at right angles 
and/or radially from the center line of Secondary State Highway No. 1-A (now SR 
9), Howey Road to Sedro Woolley. 

RES 411 
	

Page 1 of 4 Pages 	 IC#1-29-05137 
Revised 3/2013 



PARCEL "A": Lots 1 to 11 inclusive, the south half of Lot 13, and all of Lots 14 
to 22 inclusive, Roetker's Addition to Sedro Woolley, according to the recorded 
plat thereof in the office of the Auditor of Skagit County, Washington, in Volume 
7 of Plats, page 44. 

Tract 2 
A strip of land 60 feet in width being 30 feet wide on each side of the F-3 line of 
Secondary State Highway No. 1-A (now SR 9), Howey Road to Sedro Woolley, 
as surveyed over and across Lots 18, 19, and 20, Roetker's Addition to Sedro 
Woolley, according to the recorded plat thereof in the office of the Auditor of 
Skagit County, Washington, in Volume 7 of Plats, page 44. 

Tract 3 
All that portion of Lot 10, Roetker's Addition to Sedro Woolley, according to the 
recorded plat thereof in the office of the Auditor of Skagit County, Washington, 
in Volume 7 of Plats, page 44, lying northwesterly of a line drawn parallel with 
and 30 feet southeasterly, when measured at right angles and/or radially from the 
F-3 line of Secondary State Highway No. 1-A (now SR 9), Howey Road to Sedro 
Woolley. 

The specific details concerning all of which may be found on sheet 4 of 4 of that certain 

plan entitled SR 9, (SSH 1 A), Howey Road to Sedro Woolley, now of record and on file in the 

office of the Secretary of Transportation at Olympia, Washington, bearing date of approval July 

9, 1957, revised December 12, 2013. 

Subject to all existing encumbrances, including easements, restrictions and reservations, 

if any. 

The Grantee herein, on behalf of itself and its successors or assigns, waives and/or 

releases Grantor from any past, present, or future claims for damages directly or indirectly 

caused by highway drainage or runoff, and further, Grantee, its successors or assigns, shall have 

no right of compensation for damages to the property herein conveyed caused directly or 

indirectly by highway drainage or runoff. 

RES 411 
	

Page 2 of 4 Pages 	 IC#1-29-05137 
Revised 3/2013 



v.._ 
Assistant Attorney General 

By: 

The Grantee understands and agrees that the above-referenced property is transferred for 

road and street purposes only. The Grantee shall not vacate, sell, rent or use the property (or any 

portion thereof) for nontransportation uses without first obtaining the Grantor's prior written 

approval. The Grantee agrees on behalf of itself and its successors or assigns, not to revise either 

the right of way lines or the access control without first obtaining the Grantor's prior written 

approval. Should the Grantor authorize the vacation, sale, rental or use of the property (or any 

portion thereof) for nontransportation uses, the Grantee agrees at its cost to determine by 

appraisal the fair market value/economic rent of the property (or any portion thereof), and the 

Grantee and state of Washington agree to proportionally share in the value of the property in the 

same proportion as the purchase costs were shared. 

The Grantee, its successors or assigns, as part consideration herein does hereby agree to 

comply with all civil rights and anti-discrimination requirements of Chapter 49.60 RCW as to the 

lands herein described. 

The lands herein described are not required for state highway purposes and are conveyed 

pursuant to the provisions of RCW 47.12.080 in conjunction with chapter 306, laws of 2013 

(ESSB 5024, Section 213(5)). 

Dated at Olympia, Washington, this 

 

	day of 	 ,20 	 

 

     

STATE OF WASHINGTON 

Lynn Peterson 
Secretary of Transportation 

APPRO D AS TO FORM: 

RES 411 
	

Page 3 of 4 Pages 	 IC#1-29-05137 
Revised 3/2013 



REVIEWED AS TO FORM: 
City of Sedro Woolley 

By: 	  

Name: 	  

Title: 

STATE OF WASHINGTON ) 

): ss 

County of Thurston 

On this 	 day of 	 , 20 	, before me personally 

appeared Lynn Peterson, known to me as the Secretary of Transportation, Washington State 

Department of Transportation, and executed the foregoing instrument, acknowledging said 

instrument to be the free and voluntary act and deed of the State of Washington, for the uses and 

purposes therein mentioned, and on oath stated that she was authorized to execute said 

instrument. 

Given under my hand and official seal the day and year last above written. 

Notary (print name) 	  

Notary Public in and for the State of Washington, residing 

at Olympia 

My Appointment Expires 	  

RES 411 	 Page 4 of 4 Pages 	 IC#1-29-05137 
Revised 3/2013 



AFTER RECORDING RETURN TO: 

ATTN: REAL ESTATE SERVICES 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
P.O. BOX 47338 
OLYMPIA, WA 98504-7338 

Document Title: Quitclaim Deed 
Reference Number of Related Document: N/A 
Grantor: State of Washington, Department of Transportation 
Grantee: City of Sedro Woolley 
Legal Description: Ptn. NW-SW, Sec 24, T3N, R4E, W.M. 
Additional Legal Description is on Pages 1-3 of document 
Assessor's Tax Parcel Number: P77369, P37487, P37445, P37444 & unassigned hwy r/w 

QUITCLAIM DEED 

SR 9, HOWEY ROAD TO SEDRO WOOLLEY 

The STATE OF WASHINGTON acting by and through its DEPARTMENT OF 

TRANSPORTATION, Grantor, at the direction of the legislature pursuant to chapter 306, Laws 

of 2013 (ESSB 5024, Section 213(5)), requiring the transfer of certain portions of the state's 

highway property located in the incorporated limits of Sedro-Woolley to facilitate completion of 

the SR 20/Cook Road realignment and extension project, to provide a more direct route from SR 

20 and SR 9 to 1-5, to reduce traffic and improve capacity on SR 20 and SR 9, hereby coveys and 

quitclaims unto CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY, a municipal corporation of the state of 

Washington, Grantee, all right, title, and interest, including all easement rights of access, light, 

view and air, in and to the following described real property: 

Part of the southwest quarter of the northwest quarter of Section 24, Township 35 
North, Range 4 East, W.M., in Skagit County, Washington, described as follows: 

Beginning at a point on the north line of said southwest quarter of the northwest 
quarter where the same is intersected by the center line of Borseth Street in West 
Addition to the Town of Woolley, according to the recorded plat thereof in the 
office of the Auditor of Skagit County, Washington, in Volume 2 of Plats, page 

RES 411 
	

Page 1 of 5 Pages 	 IC#1-29-10012 
Revised 3/2013 



89, if said center line where projected north; thence west along the north line of 
said southwest quarter of the northwest quarter, 548 feet; thence south to the 
northeasterly right of way line of the Fairhaven & Southern Railway right of way; 
thence southeasterly along the said right of way to the west line of Nelson Street 
(now Western Avenue); thence north along the west line of Nelson Street (now 
Western Avenue) to the north line of Moore Street; thence east along the north 
line of Moore Street to intersect with the center line of Borseth Street; thence 
north to the point of beginning; 

EXCEPT the east 272 feet thereof; 

AND EXCEPT a strip of land along the right of way of the Fairhaven & Southern 
Railroad heretofore conveyed to Skagit County for road purposes. 

ALSO, that portion of the following described PARCEL "C" lying southerly of a 
line drawn as follows: 
Begin at Highway Engineer's Station P.T. F-3 21+69.0 on the F-3 center line of 
Secondary State Highway No. 1-A (now SR 9), Howey Road to Sedro Woolley; 
thence northerly and at right angles to the tangent thereof, 40 feet to the True 
Point of Beginning of this line description; thence North 88°44'30" West 100 feet, 
more or less, to the westerly boundary of the said PARCEL "C" and the end of 
this line description. 

PARCEL "C": That portion of the southwest quarter of the northwest quarter of 
Section 24, Township 35 North, Range 4 East, W.M., in Skagit County, 
Washington, where the same is intersected by the centerline of Borseth Street in 
West Addition to the Town of Sedro Woolley, according to the recorded plat 
thereof in the office of the Auditor of Skagit County, Washington, in Volume 2 of 
Plats, page 89, if same centerline were projected north; thence west along the 
north line of said southwest quarter of the northwest quarter to the northeasterly 
right of way line of the Fairhaven & Southern Railway right of way; thence 
southeasterly along the said right of way line of the Fairhaven & Southern 
Railway to the west line of Nelson Street (now Western Avenue); thence north 
along the west line of Nelson Street (now Western Avenue) to the north line of 
Moore Street; thence east along the north line of Moore Street to intersect with the 
centerline of Borseth Street; thence north to the point of beginning; 

EXCEPT the east 548 feet thereof; 

AND EXCEPT county roads. 

RES 411 
	

Page 2 of 5 Pages 	 IC#1-29-10012 
Revised 3/2013 



ALSO, Lots 1 and 2, the west one-half of Lot 3, the north 15 feet of the east half 
of Lot 3, and the north 15 feet of Lot 4, all in Block 1, West Addition to the Town 
of Woolley, according to the recorded plat thereof in the office of the Auditor of 
Skagit County, Washington, in Volume 2 of Plats, page 89. 

The specific details concerning all of which may be found on sheet 4 of 4 of that certain 

plan entitled SR 9, (SSH 1 A), Howey Road to Sedro Woolley, now of record and on file in the 

office of the Secretary of Transportation at Olympia, Washington, bearing date of approval July 

9, 1957, revised December 12, 2013. 

Subject to all existing encumbrances, including easements, restrictions and reservations, 

if any. 

The Grantee herein, on behalf of itself and its successors or assigns, waives and/or 

releases Grantor from any past, present, or future claims for damages directly or indirectly 

caused by highway drainage or runoff, and further, Grantee, its successors or assigns, shall have 

no right of compensation for damages to the property herein conveyed caused directly or 

indirectly by highway drainage or runoff. 

The Grantee understands and agrees that the above-referenced property is transferred for 

road and street purposes only. The Grantee shall not vacate, sell, rent or use the property (or any 

portion thereof) for nontransportation uses without first obtaining the Grantor's prior written 

approval. The Grantee agrees on behalf of itself and its successors or assigns, not to revise either 

the right of way lines or the access control without first obtaining the Grantor's prior written 

approval. Should the Grantor authorize the vacation, sale, rental or use of the property (or any 

portion thereof) for nontransportation uses, the Grantee agrees at its cost to determine by 

appraisal the fair market value/economic rent of the property (or any portion thereof), and the 

Grantee and state of Washington agree to proportionally share in the value of the property in the 

same proportion as the purchase costs were shared. 

The Grantee, its successors or assigns, as part consideration herein does hereby agree to 

comply with all civil rights and anti-discrimination requirements of Chapter 49.60 RCW as to the 

lands herein described. 

RES 411 
	

Page 3 of 5 Pages 	 1C#1-29-10012 
Revised 3/2013 



The lands herein described are not required for state highway purposes and are conveyed 

pursuant to the provisions of RCW 47.12.080 in conjunction with chapter 306, laws of 2013 

(ES SB 5024, Section 213(5)). 

Dated at Olympia, Washington, this day of 	 ,20 

STATE OF WASHINGTON 

Lynn Peterson 
Secretary of Transportation 

APPROV iD AS TO FORM: 

By: i 
Assistant Attorney eneral 

REVIEWED AS TO FORM: 
City of Sedro Woolley 

By: 	  

Name: 	  

Title: 

RES 411 
Revised 3/2013 

Page 4 of 5 Pages 	 IC#1-29-10012 



STATE OF WASHINGTON ) 

): ss 

County of Thurston 	) 

On this 	 day of 	 , 20 	, before me personally 

appeared Lynn Peterson, known to me as the Secretary of Transportation, Washington State 

Department of Transportation, and executed the foregoing instrument, acknowledging said 

instrument to be the free and voluntary act and deed of the State of Washington, for the uses and 

purposes therein mentioned, and on oath stated that she was authorized to execute said 

instrument. 

Given under my hand and official seal the day and year last above written. 

Notary (print name) 	  

Notary Public in and for the State of Washington, residing 

at Olympia 

My Appointment Expires 	  

RES 411 
	

Page 5 of 5 Pages 	 IC#1-29-10012 
Revised 3/2013 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

JUN 1 1 2014 

7:00 P.M. COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
AGENDA NO 	  

2ND READING 
OLD BUSINESS 

CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 
Sedro-Woolley Municipal Building 

325 Metcalf Street 
Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284 

Phone (360) 855-9922 
Fax (360) 855-9923 

Eron M. Berg 
City Supervisor/Attorney 

MEMO TO: City Council 
FROM: 
	

Eron Berg 
RE: 
	

SCOG agreement & bylaws 
DATE: 
	

June 11.2014 

ISSUE: 	Should the Council approve the attached agreement for the Skagit Council 
of Governments (SCOG) which includes the transportation policy board? 

BACKGROUND: 	This agreement and bylaws have been the topic of discussion for 
many months now. The SCOG board approved an earlier version which was rejected by the 
Sedro-Woolley City Council. This version is intended to address the primary concerns expressed 
by you at that time: the composition of the transportation policy board and related ability of the 
future TPB to modify the composition by changing the bylaws without a vote of the member 
entities. I believe both of those issues have been addressed with the voting structure 
modification and the changes to the agreement regarding the voting structure. 

The RTPO. MPO and SCOG board have all approved the updated agreement. It is 
SCOG's intent to seek ratification by the end of June for a July 1. 2014 effective date. Once the 
agreement is in place, the SCOG board and the TPB will separately take action on the bylaws. A 
draft of the bylaws is included for your information. No action by the city council is required on 
the bylaws. 

At the City Council's prior meeting on this topic two additional concerns were raised: 1. 
Why make the change at all? And, 2. Why call it a "Governance Agreement" versus an 
interlocal agreement? The answer to the first question has two parts: one is that the same 
geographic region is not allowed to have both an MPO and an RTPO. Therefore the two boards, 
which are comprised differently. must be harmonized in some fashion. The TPB is the proposed 
solution and the revised TPB includes a voting structure that more closely represents those 
entities that have eligible federally funded transportation projects. The second response to the 
first question is that the current governance agreements were very poorly drafted and not entirely 
ratified. The sole objective of these new agreements is to have a well-written set of documents 
to govern SCOG. Finally, the reason SCOG is proposing to call it a governance agreement is 
because the agreement will govern SCOG and it is formed pursuant to RCW 36.64.080 rather 
than the interlocal cooperation act. There is no question that the term "governance" has been 



confused by some as an attempt by SCOG to govern others. In this case. the word simply 
describes the agreement which will govern the formation and operation of SCOG and the TPB. 

I believe the amendments negotiated and incorporated in the current draft will work for 
the city and am recommending approval of the agreement. 

Also attached is the memo from Kevin Murphy to the SCOG board from last week which 
shows the changes in voting structure in more detail. 

REQUEST: Motion to authorize the Mayor to sign the attached agreement for the 
formation and operation of the Skagit Council of Governments. 



11, 11MWMI 

SCOG 
SKAGIT COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 

204 W Montgomery • Mount Vernon • WA • 98273 
	

www.scog.net  

ACTION ITEM 6.C. — REVISED SCOG AGREEMENT AND BYLAWS 

Document Histo 
MEETING 	 DATE 	 TYPE OF ITEM 	STAFF CONTACT 	PHONE 

Skagit MPO Policy 
Board 

5-6-2014 Action Kevin Murphy 360-416-7871 

Skagit Sub-RTPO 
Policy Board 

5-6-2014 Action Kevin Murphy 360-416-7871 

SCOG Board 5-21-2014 Action Kevin Murphy 360-416-7871 

RECOMMENDED ACTION 

Incorporate the revised Transportation Policy Board (TPB) structure, as adopted by the MPO 
Policy Board and Sub-RTPO Policy Board; revise the SCOG governance agreement (the 
linked version does not include signature pages) and bylaws, and recommend ratification by 
SCOG members. 

DISCUSSION 

The MPO Policy and Sub-RTPO Policy Boards met on May 6, 2014 and adopted the TPB 
voting structure shown in the table below and gave direction to staff to prepare necessary 
changes to the SCOG agreement bylaws to implement the revised TPB structure. 

Member/Agency Representatives Votes 

Skagit County 3 
(one for each Commissioner) 

3 

City of Anacortes 1 1 

City of Burlington 1 1 

City of Mount Vernon 1 1 

City of Sedro-Woolley 1 1 

Towns Representative Determined by Bylaws' 1 

Ports Representative Determined by Bylaws' 1 

Tribes Representative Determined by Bylaws' 1 

WSDOT 1 1 

Mayor Employer Representative 1 Ex officio 

Skagit PUD 1 Ex officio 

INIMC 
4IMMIE 



SCOG 
SKAGIT COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 

204 W Montgomery • Mount Vernon • WA • 98273 
	

www.scog.net  

Skagit transit Represented by the County, 
City and Town members 

Legislative Delegation 9 Ex officio 

Total Votes - 11 

Towns, Ports and Tribes each have a total of one vote. The number of representatives and 
sharing of the vote is determined by the Bylaws. 

Revisions to the SCOG agreement and bylaws are necessary to implement the adopted TPB 
structure and can be found at the hyperlinks earlier in the memo. The revisions to the 
agreement and bylaws states that the representative votes for the tribes, towns and ports will 
be determined by the representative group and notification be given to SCOG by July 11, 
2014. If the groups cannot decide, the SCOG Board shall determine the representation. The 
method by which each group determines their representation will be incorporated in to the 
bylaws for action in July and will allow for determining who is on the TPB for the July meeting. 

Ratification packets that include the SCOG agreement, bylaws, and adopting resolution would 
be sent to the members immediately after the May SCOG Board meeting. If the agreement is 
ratified by enough members by June 30, 2014 the agreement would go into effect on July 1, 
2014 and be in place for the July meetings. The bylaws would then be acted upon at the July 
meetings. 

Ratification takes place by members of the Council. In order for the agreement to go into 
effect the County, Cities and Towns councils must achieve the following thresholds: 

RTPO — The County and 60% of the Cities and Towns (5 of the 8), representing 75% of 
the incorporated population. 

MPO — Largest incorporated city (Mount Vernon) and jurisdictions representing at least 
75% of the affected (county) population. 



SKAGIT COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 

GOVERNACE AGREEMENT 

(Approved by the SCOG Board May 21, 2014) 

Pursuant to Chapter 36, Laws of 1959 as amended, and RCW 36.64.080 be it resolved that the Cities of 

Anacortes, Burlington, Mount Vernon, Sedro-Woolley, Towns of Concrete, Hamilton, La Conner, Lyman, 

Skagit County, Skagit PUD #1, Port of Anacortes, Port of Skagit County, Skagit Transit, Swinomish Tribal 

Community and the Samish Indian Nation (each, a "Member," collectively, the "Members"), do hereby 

organize and establish a regional agency, hereafter referred to as the Skagit Council of Governments. 

This Agreement terminates and supersedes in all respects the Skagit Council of Governments 

Intergovernmental Agreement dated May 18, 2011; The Interlocal Cooperation Agreement establishing 

the Skagit Metropolitan Planning Organization dated March 19, 2003; and the Amended Agreement for 

the Skagit Sub-Regional Transportation Planning Program dated September 21, 1994. 

RECITAL: 

WHEREAS, the signatories hereto desire to enter into and continue an agreement to make more 

efficient use of the powers granted to them; to cooperate and collaborate with each other as local 

governmental units, municipalities and organizations for mutual advantage; and, thereby to provide 

services, facilities and planning in a manner and in accordance with various geographic, economic and 

demographic factors influencing the needs and development of the entire communities covered by this 

Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, on July 6, 2012, the President of the United States signed the Moving Ahead for Progress in 

the 21st Century Act (MAP-21), which provided authorization for highways, highway safety, and mass 

transportation and enunciated a policy "No develop a National Intermodal Transportation System that 

is economically efficient, environmentally sound, provide the foundation for the nation to compete in 

the global economy and will move people and goods in an energy efficient manner;" and 

WHEREAS, Federal transportation legislation (Title 23 United States Code 134 and Title 49 United States 

Code 5303) required the establishment, by agreement between the Governor of the State of 

Washington and units of general purpose local government, of a Metropolitan Planning Organization 

(MPO), which in cooperation with the State of Washington was and is to develop transportation plans 

and programs for urbanized areas of Washington State; and 

WHEREAS, Chapter 47.80 RCW authorizes the formation of a Regional Transportation Planning 

Organization (RTPO) by voluntary association of local governments within a county; provided that each 

RTPO shall have as members the county and at least sixty percent of the cities and towns within the 

RTPO's boundaries, representing a minimum of seventy-five percent of the total population of cities and 

towns within the county and federal law authorizes formation of a MPO where seventy-five percent 

(75%) of the affected population, including the largest incorporated city ("RPTO and MPO 

Representation Threshold"); and 



WHEREAS, each RTPO formed by local governments is required to create a transportation policy board 

in accordance with RCW 47.80.040 to provide policy advice to the RTPO and shall allow representatives 

of major employers within the region, the department of transportation, transit districts, port districts, 

and member cities, towns, and counties within the region to participate in policy making; and 

WHEREAS, RCW 47.80.020 provides that the RTPO in an urbanized area shall be the same as the MPO 

designated for federal transportation planning purposes; and 

WHEREAS, 23 USC §134 and 49 USC §5303 require that a Metropolitan Planning Organization be 

established to develop transportation plans and programs in Skagit County and to establish a planning 

process which is continuing, cooperative, and comprehensive; and 

WHEREAS, the Growth Management Act, Chapter 36.70 RCW, requires local governments to adopt 

transportation plans that are consistent with comprehensive land use plans; and 

WHEREAS, the Members acknowledge the need to engage in cooperative planning and decision-making 

on transportation issues and the benefits to be derived therefrom; and 

WHEREAS, the Skagit Council of Governments was established to provide regional planning in Skagit 

County; and 

WHEREAS, the Skagit Council of Governments is named as a sub-recipient on grant funds provided to 

Skagit County by Washington Department of Community, Trade and Economic Development 

("CTED")under the Community Block Grant Program; and 

WHEREAS, the Skagit Council of Governments is named as a sub-recipient on federal and state 

transportation planning grant funds; and 

WHEREAS, Skagit Council of Governments is the recipient of grant funds from the United States 

Department of Commerce, Economic Development Administration ("USDOC"); and 

WHEREAS, Skagit Council of Governments has utilized the grant funds received from CTED and USDOC 

to establish and administer a revolving loan fund program to provide financial assistance to businesses 

and promote economic development in Skagit County; and 

WHEREAS, this Agreement is in fact a restatement, extension, and modification of prior Agreements for 

the organization formerly recognized as the "Skagit Council of Governments"; and 

WHEREAS, the parties are now desirous in setting forth this agreement, 

NOW THE PARTIES DO HEREBY AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 

Section I 

SKAGIT COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 	 Page 2 
GOVERANCE AGREEMENT 



The name of the council so organized and established shall be the Skagit Council of Governments (the 

"Council" or "SCOG"). The address and registered office shall be 204 W. Montgomery Street Mount 

Vernon WA, 98273 or such place as the Council shall designate by resolution. 

Section II 

PURPOSES 

The purposes which form the basis of this Agreement are set forth as follows: 

A. To implement and perform the functions of a Regional Transportation Planning Organization 

(RTPO) for Skagit County as set forth in Ch. 47.80 RCW and Ch. 468-86 WAC, as currently 

adopted or as amended; 

B. To implement and perform the functions of a Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) for the 

Mount Vernon Urbanized Area as such Area's boundaries are defined now or in the future, and 

as set forth in Title 23 United States Code and Title 49 United States Code as currently adopted 

or as amended and 23 CFR Parts 450 and 500 and 40 CFR Part 613, as currently adopted or as 

amended; 

C. To implement the Public Works and Economic Development Act of 1965, P.L. 89 136 42 USC 

3121et.seq. and all related/subsequent Federal and Washington State legislation relating to the 

purposes of the said Act; 

D. To study regional and governmental problems of mutual interest as agreed to by the Board and 

consistent with those set forth in Ch. 36.64.080 RCW, and pursue Transportation-related 

regional planning as set forth in RCW 39.92.050, as currently adopted or amended; 

E. To foster economic development by the administration of grant funds for the financing of 

business enterprises in Skagit County through the management of a revolving loan fund and 

other means as approved by the Board of Directors; 

F. Such other regional planning activities as directed by the Board. 

Section III 

FUNCTIONS and AUTHORITIES 

A. Transportation.  SCOG shall perform the duties and responsibilities of an RTPO and MPO as 

prescribed in Ch. 47.80 RCW and Title 23 USC §134 and 49 USC §5303 and as a conference pursuant to 

RCW 36.64.080,as currently adopted or as amended. 

1. Prepare a regional transportation plan ("RTP") as set forth in RCW 47.80.030 that is consistent 

with countywide planning policies. The RTP will establish planning direction for regionally 

significant transportation projects, as defined in state law and shall be consistent with the 

regional growth management strategy, including but not limited to: 

a. Certify that transportation elements of local comprehensive plans are consistent with 

the regional transportation plan. 

SKAGIT COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 	 Page 3 
GOVERANCE AGREEMENT 



b. Certify that all transportation projects within the region that have a significant impact 

upon regional facilities or services are consistent with the RTP. 

2. Carry out Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) functions as prescribed in Title 23 USC 

§134 and 49 USC §5303 for federally funded projects in the region and /or as required by federal 

and/or state laws and regulations that are applicable to the MPO, now or in the future. These 

functions include preparation of a RTP, an annual unified planning work program (UPWP), and a 

four-year capital plan (with an annual element). 

B. Economic Development. To further the purposes of regional economic development, pursuant to 

Chapter 39.34 RCW the Council shall: 

1. Cooperatively develop and maintain a regional economic development strategy that complies 

with the Federal requirements for a Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy (USC 42 

Chapter 38 Public Works and Economic Development), and is also consistent with the 

requirements of the state of Washington for comprehensive planning under the Growth 

Management Act Ch. 47.80 RCW. 

2. Contract for, administer and manage state and federal economic development loan programs as 

part of the revolving loan fund program. 

3. Prepare and maintain a revolving loan fund management plan. 

C. Regional Data Base Development. The Council shall provide for establishment and maintenance of a 

regional data base to: 

1. Support development of the RTP and other regional planning efforts of mutual concern to the 

various participants in the Council when requested to do so from time to time by the 

participants in the Council. 

2. Forecast and monitor economic, demographic, and travel conditions in the region. 

3. Develop the database jointly with relevant state agencies for use in the region by local 

governments and the State of Washington. 

D. Technical Assistance. As requested, the Council shall provide technical assistance to local, state and 

federal governments through regional data collection and forecasting services, consistent with the 

purpose, functions, and budget of the agency. In addition, the Council may provide general 

transportation or economic development planning assistance, consistent with the purpose and functions 

of the Council, to members of the agency. 

E. Discussion Forum. The Council may provide a forum for discussion among local and state officials and 

other interested parties of common regional issues. 

F. Research and Planning. The Council may act as a research and fact-finding agency of the members 

thereof. To that end, it may make such surveys, analyses, researches and reports as are generally 

authorized or requested by the Board. The Council, upon such authority or requests may also: 

SKAGIT COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 	 Page 4 
GOVERANCE AGREEMENT 



1. Make inquiries, investigations, and surveys concerning the resources of Skagit County. 

2. Assemble and analyze the data thus obtained, the systematic utilization and development 

thereof. 

3. Cooperate with other commissions and public and private agencies of Skagit County, 

Washington State, and the United States in planning endeavors. 

4. Develop programs of Intergovernmental cooperation for the benefit of members. 

G. Other Functions. The Council shall, insofar as possible: 

1. Coordinate general planning among and for the participating members; 

2. Provide a written report to the members each year; 

3. Prepare, approve and administer its own annual budget, which includes setting the amount 

Voting Members' and non-voting Members' dues, hire an Executive Director (who shall hire and 

supervise employees), hire consultants, engage professional accounting, legal and other services 

as needed; sue and be sued; and 

4. Other such additional, modified or removed functions and authorities as shall be authorized by 

the Board of Directors. 

Section IV 

BYLAWS  

The authority to make, amend, or repeal bylaws is vested in the Council so long as such bylaws are 

consistent with the provisions of these articles and applicable laws. Bylaws for the Council are included 

in Exhibit A and are adopted as part of this agreement. Amendments to that portion of the Bylaws 

applying to the Transportation Policy Board must be approved by TPB. New Bylaws and/or amendments 

to the Bylaws require a "first reading" at a regular meeting of the Board and adoption thereafter at a 

subsequent regular meeting. Amendment of the Bylaws shall require a two thirds vote of the entire 

SCOG Board of Directors. 

Section V 

BOUNDARIES 

The Council may be expanded to include areas and agencies which are economically and socially related 

to the Skagit County area. The initial boundaries of the regional planning district shall be conterminous 

with the boundaries of Skagit County, Washington. All references to the "region" in this agreement shall 

mean Skagit County unless changed by the Board. 

Section VI 

MEMBERSHIP 

A. Voting membership on the Council shall be open to Skagit County, all city and town governments, the 

Ports of Anacortes and Skagit County, federally recognized Indian tribes with principal locations in Skagit 

SKAGIT COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 	 Page 5 
GOVERANCE AGREEMENT 



County, Skagit Transit and public utility districts in Skagit County. Voting membership for each entity is 

established by its execution of this Agreement and payment of its dues. 

B. Associate membership shall be open to other governmental and non-governmental agencies 

interested in regional planning and shall be elected to membership by a majority of the Board of 

Directors and shall be effective upon its delivery of its written assurance that it will comply with this 

agreement and the Council Bylaws and payment of its dues. Such members shall be non-voting, but 

shall have all other privileges and duties of membership. Dues to be paid by associate members will be 

established by the Council through its normal budget setting process. 

C. Any member agency shall have the right to withdraw from the Council and this Agreement by giving 

sixty (60) days written notice to the Council. Withdrawal from the Agreement or non-execution of the 

Agreement by any one partly shall not affect the continuation of the Agreement with regard to the 

other parties; provided, that should the cumulative withdrawal of Members cause the organization to 

not meet the MPO and or RPTO Representation Threshold, SCOG shall thereafter not act as the Skagit 

MPO or RPTO until such time as it again meets the MPO and RPTO Representation Threshold. All 

financial obligations entered into with the Council while the withdrawing party was a member shall 

remain with the withdrawing party until these obligations are satisfied or a specific release from these 

obligations are approved by a majority of the whole Council. 

Section VII 

GOVERNING BODY, POLICY BOARDS and OFFICERS 

A. The Council shall be governed by a Board of Directors (also referred to as the "Board"). The Board 

shall be composed of representatives of the voting members of the county, cities, towns, ports other 

municipal corporations and Tribal governments and shall be represented on the Board by its duly 

elected chief executive or by an elected official designated by the governing body of the member. Each 

member shall have one vote on the Board, with the exception of Skagit County which shall have three 

votes, one for each Commissioner present or represented. 

1. The Board is the governing body for SCOG and makes the decisions related to the authorities 

and functions described in this Agreement with the exception of the MPO and RTPO functions and 

authorities. 

2. The Board has the powers and duties, including but not limited to, the following: 

a. To adopt Council budget and establish Member dues; 

b. To adopt and amend Bylaws; 

c. To approve expenditures; 

d. To address personnel policies and issues in cooperation with the Executive 

Director; 

e. To approve the revolving loan fund management plan; 

SKAGIT COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 	 Page 6 
GOVERANCE AGREEMENT 



f. To manage the revolving loan fund program; 

g. To establish a revolving loan fund (RLF) committee and appoint members of the 

corn mittee; 

h. To develop and approve a regional economic development strategy; 

i. To initiate, advise, and aid in the establishment of cooperative arrangements, 

including interlocal agreements, among local governments and member 

agencies within the region; 

j. To propose, initiate, or approve any study, policy discussion, plan, or other 

Council matters; 

k. To approve new memberships and resolve membership questions; 

I. To make recommendations to any local government or member agency, or to 

other appropriate agencies or entities; 

m. To propose amendments to the SCOG Agreement for ratification of members; 

n. To elect a Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson and other officers required; 

o. To establish committees; 

p. To hire, terminate and/or evaluate an Executive Director and set the 

compensation there for; and authorize such Director to engage, and set 

compensation with the framework of the Council's approved budget, such 

personnel, including planners, planning consultants, attorneys, accountants, 

engineers, or other firms or individuals as may be required to carry out the 

purposes of the Council. 

B. Transportation Policy Board. The Transportation Policy Board shall be composed of representatives 

and voting membership as shown in Table 1, provided the member has entered into this agreement, 

with the exception of WSDOT, which shall be a voting member of the TPB while not being a member of 

the Council. Each entity shall be represented on the Transportation Policy Board by its duly elected chief 

executive or by an official designated by the governing body of the member. The Transportation Policy 

Board is hereby designated a "governing body" for purposes of RCW 42.30.020 (2). 

Appointment to the TPB, representation on the TPB and the TPB voting allocations among 

representatives for the individual Ports, Tribes, and Towns shall be established and amended as set forth 

in the Bylaws, provided, that only member jurisdictions have entered into this agreement shall be 

members of the TPB. 

The composition of the TPB shall remain consistent with federal and state law as currently adopted or 

amended. Should such state or federal law change, the composition of the TPB shall be automatically 

adjusted to comply with such changes without requiring this agreement to be amended or approval by 

the membership. However, should a party hereto not accept such adjustment to the composition of the 

TPB, it may on thirty days' notice withdraw from the TPB. 

SKAGIT COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 	 Page 7 
GOVERANCE AGREEMENT 



Table 1 Transportation Policy Board Representation 

Member/Agency Representatives Votes 

Skagit County 3 
(one for each Commissioner) 

3 

City of Anacortes 1 1 

City of Burlington 1 1 

City of Mount Vernon 1 1 

City of Sedro-Woolley 1 1 

Towns Representative Determined by Bylaws' 1 

Ports Representative Determined by Bylaws' 1 

Tribes Representative Determined by Bylaws' 1 

WSDOT 1 1 

Mayor Employer Representative 1 Ex officio 

Skagit PUD 1 Ex officio 

Skagit transit Represented by the County, City 

and Town members 

Legislative Delegation 9 Ex officio 

Tota I 11 

'Towns, Ports and Tribes each have a total of one vote. The number representatives and sharing of the 

vote is determined by the Bylaws. 

1. The Transportation Policy Board has the authority to carry out the RTPO functions as set 

forth in Ch. 47.80 RCW and Ch. 468-86 WAC, as currently adopted or as amended for Skagit County and 

the MPO functions for the Mount Vernon Urbanized Area as set forth in Title 23 United States Code and 

Title 49 United States Code as currently adopted or as amended and 23 CFR Parts 450 and 500 and 40 

CFR Part 613, as currently adopted or as amended. 

2. The Transportation Policy Board shall function as the Skagit Sub-Regional Transportation 

Policy Board for the Skagit-Island Regional Transportation Planning Organization. 

SKAGIT COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 
	

Page 8 
GOVERANCE AGREEMENT 



3. The Transportation Policy Board has the powers and duties, including but not limited to, the 

following: 

a. To be the representatives of Skagit County to the SIRTPO Transportation Policy 

Board; 

b. To approve the transportation work program (Unified Planning and Work 

Program); 

c. To approve consultant contracts consistent with the Unified Planning and Work 

Program; 

d. To make recommendations to the SIRTPO Transportation Policy Board regarding 

the Skagit County components of: 

i. Regional Transportation Plan; 

ii. Projects to be considered for Transportation Alternative Program funds, 

that are adopted by the Skagit-Island Regional Transportation Policy 

Board; 

e. To certify local comprehensive plans are consistent with the Regional 

Transportation Plan; 

f. To select projects in Skagit County to be funded with regionally managed funds, 

except those projects seeking Transportation Alternative Program Funds; 

g. To manage the transportation improvement program for projects within Skagit 

County as per state and federal law; 

h. To elect a Transportation Policy Board Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson; 

i. To establish committees; 

j. To perform transportation planning activities for members as described in the 

approved work program. 

C. The officers of the Council shall consist of a Chairperson, Vice-Chairperson of the Board of Directors. 

The Executive Director or his or her designee shall act as Secretary to the Board and to the 

Transportation Policy Board. 

Section VIII 

Meetings  

Meetings of the Board of Directors of the Council and the Transportation Policy Board shall be held at 

such times and places as determined and specified in the Council's Bylaws. Meeting of both boards shall 

be called and held in compliance with Chapter 42.30 RCW, the Washington Open Public Meetings Act. 

SKAGIT COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 	 Page 9 
GOVERANCE AGREEMENT 



Section IX 

ALLOCATION OF COSTS 

A. Skagit County, cities, and towns, or any other entities holding membership in the Council shall 

contribute to the expenses of the Council if any, pursuant to the budgetary laws set forth in the Revised 

Code of Washington, to applicable resolutions and/or ordinances of such member entities, and to such 

bylaws as may be adopted by the Council; provided, however, that services and facilities may be 

provided by such participating agencies at a mutually agreed value in lieu of assessment. 

B. The County and all cities and towns shall be assessed dues according to a per capita ratio or through 

an equitable assessment established by the Board of Directors. Special purpose districts and the tribes 

and associate members in good standing shall be assessed at rates to be established annually by the 

Board of Directors. 

Section X 

DEPOSITS and DISBURSEMENTS 

Pursuant to RCW 43.09.285 all funds and appropriations paid to the Council shall be deposited with the 

Skagit County Treasurer to the account of the Skagit Council of Governments. Disbursements shall be 

made only by the Skagit County Treasurer upon warrants drawn by the Skagit County Auditor and 

approved in accordance with the Skagit Council of Governments Bylaws. 

Section XI 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR and CONSULTANTS 

The Council by action designated in the bylaws, may appoint an Executive Director and employ any 

attorneys, consultants and/or staff deemed necessary to carry out the purpose and functions of the 

Council. No part of the earnings or property of the Council shall inure to the benefit of any private 

person, except that the Council is authorized to pay reasonable compensation for services rendered and 

make payments in furtherance of its purposes. The Executive Director or his or her designee shall act as 

Secretary to the Board and Transportation Policy Board and carry other duties as assigned by the Board 

of Directors. 

Section XII 

CONTRACTS and CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 

The Council may contract generally and enter into any contract or reasonable agreement with the 

Federal Government, the State, any municipal corporation and/or other governmental or private agency 

consistent with its purposes of SCOG and may receive grants and gifts and make loans in furtherance of 

such programs. 

SKAGIT COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 	 Page 10 
GOVERANCE AGREEMENT 



Section XIII 

DURATION and DISSOLUTION,  

The Council shall have perpetual existence, until dissolved by: (1) a vote of 2/3 of the voting Members; 

provided, that all members shall receive one month written notice of the proposed dissolution, and all 

members provided an opportunity for comment on the motion; or (2) withdrawal of such members so 

that the MPO and RTPO ratification thresholds are no longer met as required by 47.80 RCW and Ch. 468-

86 WAC and/or Title 23 United States Code and Title 49 United States Code as currently adopted or as 

amended and 23 CFR Parts 450 and 500 and 40 CFR Part 613. 

Section XIV 

DISTRIBUTION OF ASSETS and LIABILITIES 

Upon termination of this Agreement, the debts, liabilities, and obligations shall be paid from the Council 

assets. The remaining net assets of the Council shall be distributed to member agencies in proportion to 

their respective contributions to the Council. 

Section XV 

LIABILITY  

No Member or Member representative shall be personally liable for any monetary damages for conduct, 

action, or inaction as a member representative, unless such conduct involves intentional misconduct or 

a knowing violation of law. 

Section XVI 

AMENDMENT 

This agreement may be amended by Board action in whatever manner the Council shall determine and 

specify in its bylaws, subject to ratification by the Governing Bodies of all the voting Members within 

one hundred eighty (180) days of action by the Board. 

Section XVII 

ADOPTION and EFFECTIVE DATE 

The effective date of this Agreement shall be upon ratification of this Agreement by the County and, at 

least, sixty percent (60%) of the cities and towns within the Council area that represent seventy-five 

percent (75%) of the cities' and towns' population ("Ratification"). This Agreement shall be binding upon 

the Members who have executed this Agreement, their successors and assigns; provide, that upon 

Ratification, all prior agreements and bylaws between the parties shall he deemed terminated and 

replaced herewith. Thereafter, no city, town, tribe or special district shall be a member of SCOG or the 

TPB until its governing body shall have approved this agreement. 

SKAGIT COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 	 Page 11 
GOVERANCE AGREEMENT 



Section XVIII 

INDEMNIFICATION and INSURANCE 

The Council shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless all employees. No member representative shall 

be personally liable for any monetary damages for conduct, action, or inaction as a member 

representative, unless such conduct involves intentional misconduct or a knowing violation of law. The 

Council shall obtain and keep in force third party liability insurance related to its activities with 

commercially reasonable liability limits and deductibles. To the extent practicable, the Council shall 

cause its members to be named as insured under such policy(ies). 

Section XIX 

MISCELLANEOUS 

A. No Assignment.  No party hereto may assign its rights or interests hereunder to any other person 

party and attempt to make any such assignment be deemed void ab initio. 

B. Savings.  If any provision hereof shall be invalidated by a court of law, all other provisions hereof 

shall remain in full force and effect. 

C. Counterparts.  This agreement may be executed in counterparts by the parties with the effect the 

same as if all parties hereto had signed the same document. 

[Balance of page intentionally blank, signature pages follow] 

SKAGIT COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 	 Page 12 
GOVERANCE AGREEMENT 



CITY OF ANACORTES 

Laurie Gere, Mayor 

Attest: 

Steve Hoglund, Finance Director 

Approved as to form: 

Bradford E. Furlong, WSBA #12924 

City Attorney 

Date 

SKAGIT COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 	 Page 13 
GOVERANCE AGREEMENT 



CITY OF BURLINGTON 

Date 

Steve Sexton, Mayor 

Attest: 

Crystil Robinson, Finance Director 

Approved as to form: 

Scott Thomas, WSBA #23079 

City Attorney 

SKAGIT COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 	 Page 14 
GOVERANCE AGREEMENT 



CITY OF MOUNT VERNON 

Jill Boudreau, Mayor 

Attest: 

Alicia Huschka, Finance Director 

Approved as to form: 

Kevin Rogerson, WSBA1431664 
City Attorney 

Date 

SKAGIT COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 	 Page 15 
GOVERANCE AGREEMENT 



CITY OF SEDRO WOOLLEY 

Mike Anderson, Mayor 

Attest: 

Patsy Nelson, Finance Director 

Approved as to form: 

Eron M. Berg, WSBA #29930 

City Attorney 

Date 

SKAGIT COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 	 Page 16 
GOVERANCE AGREEMENT 



TOWN OF CONCRETE 

Jason Miller, Mayor 

Attest: 

Andrea Fichter, Clerk/Treasurer 

Approved as to form: 

David Day, WSBA #8361 
Town Attorney 

Date 

SKAGIT COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 	 Page 17 
GOVERANCE AGREEMENT 



TOWN OF HAMILTON 

Joan Cromley, Mayor 

Attest: 

Angela Evans, Town Clerk 

Approved as to form: 

	 WSBA # 
Town Attorney 

Date 

SKAGIT COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 	 Page 18 
GOVERANCE AGREEMENT 



TOWN OF LA CONNER 

Ramon Hayes, Mayor 

Attest: 

Maria De Geode, Finance Director 

Approved as to form: 

Bradford E. Furlong, WSBA #12924 

Town Attorney 

Date 

SKAGIT COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 	 Page 19 
GOVERANCE AGREEMENT 



TOWN OF LYMAN 

Date 
Debra Heinzman, Mayor 

Attest: 

Debbie Boyd, Clerk/Treasurer 

Approved as to form: 

	 , WSBA # 
Town Attorney 

SKAGIT COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 	 Page 20 
GOVERANCE AGREEMENT 



BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
SKAGIT COUNTY 

Ron Wesen, Commissioner 

Ken Dahlstedt, Commissioner 

Sharon Dillon, Commissioner  

Date 

Date 

Date 

Attest: 	 Recommended: 

Print Name: 	 Print Name: 

Clerk of the Board 	 Department Head 

Approved as to form: 

Print Name: 

Civil Deputy Prosecuting Attorney 

Approved as to indemnification: 

Print Name: 	 

Risk Manager 

Approved as to budget: 	 For contracts under $5,000: 

Authorization per Resolution R20030146 

Print Name: 	 Print Name: 

Budget & Finance Director 	 County Administrator 

SKAGIT COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 	 Page 21 
GOVERANCE AGREEMENT 



SKAGIT PUD #1 

Al Littlefield, President 

Attest: 

Vanessa Dales, Treasurer 

Approved as to form: 

Peter Gilbert, WSBA #28894 

Skagit PUD #1 Attorney 

Date 

SKAGIT COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 	 Page 22 
GOVERANCE AGREEMENT 



PORT OF ANACORTES 

Bob Hyde, Executive Director 

Attest: 

Jill Brownfield, Administration and 

Finance Services Manager 

Approved as to form: 

Frank Chmelik, WSBA #13969 

Port Attorney 

Date 

SKAGIT COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 	 Page 23 
GOVERANCE AGREEMENT 



PORT OF SKAGIT COUNTY 

Date 

Patricia Botsford-Martin, Executive Director 

Attest: 

Kristin Garcia, Director of Finance 

Approved as to form: 

Bradford E. Furlong, WSBA #12924 

Port Attorney 

SKAGIT COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 	 Page 24 
GOVERANCE AGREEMENT 



SKAGIT TRANSIT 

Date 	  

Dale O'Brien, Executive Director 

Attest: 

Motoko Pleasant, Manager of Finance 

and Administration 

Approved as to form: 

Richard Langabeer, WSBA #3171 

Skagit Transit Attorney 

SKAGIT COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 	 Page 25 
GOVERANCE AGREEMENT 



SWINOMISH TRIBAL COMMUNITY 

Date 

Brian Cladoosby, Chairman 

Attest: 

Barbara James, Treasurer 

Approved as to form: 

Alix Foster, WSBA #4943 

Swinomish Tribal Attorney 

SKAGIT COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 	 Page 26 
GOVERANCE AGREEMENT 



SAMISH INDIAN NATION 

Torn Wooten, Chairman 

Attest: 

Tamara Rogers, Treasurer 

Approved as to form: 

Craig Dorsay, WSBA #9245 
Samish Indian Nation Attorney 

Date 

SKAGIT COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 	 Page 27 
GOVERANCE AGREEMENT 



Exhibit A 

BYLAWS OF THE SKAGIT COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 

Approved May 21, 2014 

[on following page] 

SKAGIT COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 	 Page 28 
GOVERANCE AGREEMENT 



BYLAWS OF THE 
SKAGIT COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 

PREAMBLE 

These Bylaws are made pursuant to authority granted by Chapter 36, Laws of 1959 as amended, 

and RCW 36.64.090, and to carry out the Skagit Council of Governments Agreement ratified on the 

day 	 , 2014 (the "Agreement"). 

ARTICLE I 

Purpose 

The purpose of the Skagit Council of Governments ("SCOG") shall be to exercise the authority 

delegated granted to it by the parties in the Agreement. 

ARTICLE II 
Organization 

The agency shall be organized into a conference, consisting of representatives of all voting 

member agencies as defined by the Agreement. SCOG shall be governed by a Board of Directors 

("Board") consisting of representatives of the voting members; a Transportation Policy Board ("TPB") 

shall establish transportation policy as authorized by the Agreement. The Board of Directors may 

establish such other committees as it may deem in the best interests of SCOG. 

Section 1. 	Representation on the Board and TPB of the Skagit Council of Governments 

shall consist of elected officials from the voting member agencies and representatives of 

associate members, as defined in the Agreement. 

ARTICLE III 
Officers 

Section 1. 	The officers of the Skagit Council of Governments shall be a Chairperson and Vice- 

Chairperson of the Board of Directors. 

Section 2. 	Elections: The Chair and Vice-Chair of the Skagit Council of Governments shall be 

elected by a majority vote the Board of Directors voting on the question. Nomination of candidates 

for the Chair and Vice-Chair shall be presented to the Board of Directors and the officers elected, at 

its first regular meeting of each calendar year; provided, that the officers of SCOG in office when 

this Agreement becomes effective shall remain in office until new officers are elected in 

conformance with Section III (2). 

Section 3. 	Term: The Chair and Vice-Chair shall serve for one year and their terms of office shall 

upon their election. When the chair's term expires the vice-chair shall become chair and a new vice-

chair shall be elected. In the event of a vacancy in the Chair, the Vice-Chair shall succeed to said 

office for the unexpired portion of the term. In the event there is a vacancy in the Vice-Chair, the 

Chair shall appoint a new Vice-Chair for the unexpired portion of the term. In the event there is a 

vacancy in the office of the Chair and Vice-Chair, the Board of Directors shall elect from its 



membership a new Chair and Vice-Chair to serve the unexpired portion of the terms. 

ARTICLE IV 

Duties of Officers 

Section 1. 	Chair. The Chair shall preside over the meetings of the Board, and shall be 

responsible for the preparation of the agenda for said meetings. The Chair shall ensure that the 

functions of SCOG are carried out to the best of his or her ability. The Chair shall have the 

responsibility to direct the Executive Director and the staff, and shall make such reports as needed. 

Section 2. 	Vice-Chair. The Vice-Chair shall preside and perform the duties of the Chair in the 

absence of the Chair. 

ARTICLE V 

The Board of Directors 

Section 1. 	Regular Meeting Date: The Board shall convene in a regular meeting once each month 

at a consistent date and determined by the Board to be mutually convenient to the members. The Place 

of the regular meeting shall be set by the Board at its preceding regular meeting. 

Section 2. 	Composition: The Board shall be composed of members, as provided for in the 

Agreement. Each voting member of all entities shall be represented in the Board by its duly elected 

chief executive or by an elected official designated by the governing body of the member. Each voting 

member shall also select an alternate representative in the same manner. Alternates shall also be an 

elected official. Other members that do not have elected officials on their governing body shall 

designate their representatives. Each voting member of SCOG shall be entitled to one seat on the 

Board; with the exception of Skagit County which shall have three (3) seats, one for each 

Commissioner. If the officially designated member-representative or the officially designated alternate 

member-representative is unable to attend a specific meeting, then the member-representative may 

designate, for that meeting only, an additional alternative member representative. This additional 

alternate will have all rights, privileges and authorities exercised by the member-representative and 

his/her appointed alternate. 

Section 3. 	Notice: Written notice and the agenda of all Board meetings shall be delivered, 

mailed, or transmitted electronically to all board members at least five calendar days prior to the 

meeting and distributed in compliance with Chapter 42.30 RCW and posted on the SCOG web site. 

Special meetings may be called by the Chair or upon the written request of a majority of voting 

members in accordance with RCW 42.30.080. Notice of special meetings must be given in compliance 

with RCW 42.30.080. The notice must state the time, place, and purpose of the meeting. 

Section 4. 	Purpose: The purpose of the Board is to provide governance for SCOG. 

Section 5. 	Duties. The Board has the functions and authorities as defined in the Agreement 

and those activities reasonably related thereto. 

SKAGIT COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 	 - 2 - 
BYLAWS 



Section 6. 	Quorum: A quorum of the Board shall be a simple majority of the total voting 

members. 

Section 7. 	Voting: Each member shall have one vote on the Board; with the exception of Skagit 

County which shall have three votes, one for each Commissioner present or represented. 

Section 8. 	All actions of the Board shall be by majority vote of the members present or 

represented (tie votes shall result in non-passage of the question) unless otherwise provided by law 

or in these Bylaws, and shall be taken at the regular or special meetings of the Board of Directors as 

provided for by these Bylaws; except that these Bylaws may be amended at any regular meeting only 

by two-thirds vote of the voting membership; provided, that the proposed amendments have been 

submitted in writing at a previous regular meeting. Bylaws may be suspended at any meeting by the 

unanimous vote of the members present, provided, such attendance constitutes at least two-thirds 

of the voting membership. 

Section 9. 	Policy Boards. The Board may create policy boards or committees to assist SCOG in 

carrying out the authorities and functions pursuant to the Agreement. 

Section 10. 	Committees: In addition to the Revolving Loan Fund Committee appointed by the 

Board of Directors in Article V, Section 11 below, the Board may appoint such other committees as it 

may determine at its discretion, from time to time, for such purpose as the Board may deem 

appropriate and for such actions as may be delegated to such committee. Such committees shall be 

composed and formed as the Board may direct. 

Section 11. 	Revolving Loan Fund Committee: The Board shall appoint a Revolving Loan Fund 

Committee (RLF) to provide oversight and direction to the revolving loan fund program. The RLF 

Committee shall have authority pursuant to the RLF management plan. Membership of the Revolving 

Loan Fund Committee shall include three (3) representatives from the Board and two (2) other 

members appointed by the Board. RLF Committee members shall generally serve terms of three (3) 

years. In determining membership of the Revolving Loan Fund Committee the Board shall consider 

representation from businesses, banking, and other areas of importance to the success of businesses. 

The Revolving Loan Fund Committee shall normally meet monthly at a time and location as 

determined by the Committee. 

Section 12. 	Associate Members. Any jurisdiction of general purpose government not a party to 

the Agreement, and any jurisdiction of special purpose government, may be admitted to associate 

membership by a majority vote of the Board. Associate members may serve on the policy boards and 

committees or subcommittees of the Board as a non-voting member, at the Board's discretion. 

Section 13. 	Participation by Telephone: When extraordinary circumstances prevent 

attendance by a member or alternate, such member or alternate may participate in a meeting by 

telephone conference or other electronic communications media so long as all members may 

simultaneously hear each other and participate during the meeting. Participation by such means 

shall constitute presence in person at a meeting for purposes of establishing a quorum, voting, and 

for all other purposes. 

SKAGIT COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 	 - 3 - 
BYLAWS 



ARTICLE VI 

The Transportation Policy Board 

Section 1. 	Regular Meeting Dates: The Transportation Policy Board (TPB) shall convene in a 

regular meeting once each month at a consistent date and determined by the TPB to be mutually 

convenient to the members. The Place of the regular meeting shall be set by the board at its 

preceding regular meeting. 

Section 2. 	Composition: The TPB shall be composed voting member agencies, as provided 

for in the Agreement. Each member shall be represented on the TPB by its duly elected chief 

executive or by an official designated by the governing body of the member. The representative of 

major employer will be recommended by the governing board of the Economic Development 

Association of Skagit County (EDASC), whom shall be confirmed and appointed by the TPB. WSDOT 

shall designate a high-level staff person to serve on the TPB. WSDOT shall convey to the TPB Chair 

in January of each year who their designated members shall be. Appointment to, representation 

by, and allocation of votes among, each of the following entity types shall be determined by each 

entity group by majority vote: Towns, Ports and Tribes. Should the members of any entity group 

not agree on a method of appointment, representation and voting by July 11, 2014 the SCOG Board 

shall determine the appointment, representation and voting allocation for such entity{ies). The 

final action with respect to the appointment, representation and voting allocation for the foregoing 

entity groups shall be included in SCOG Bylaws. Thereafter, those Bylaws provisions pertaining to 

appointment, representation and voting allocation for those entity groups may only be altered 

upon approval of a majority of the members of the entity group. 

In accordance with RCW 47.80.040 as currently adopted or as amended, any members of the 

Washington State House of Representatives or Senate whose districts are wholly or partly within 

the boundaries of the regional transportation planning organization are considered ex officio, 

nonvoting members of the TPB. 

Section 3. 	Board Officers: The TPB shall elect from its membership a chair and vice-chair. The 

term of office for the chair and vice chair shall be one year. When the chair's term expires the vice-

chair shall become chair and a new vice-chair shall be elected. The primary duties of the chair shall 

be to preside over the meetings of the Board. In absence of the chair, the vice chair shall preside at 

the meetings. In his or her absence, a chair pro-tem shall be selected from the Board members 

present. 

Section 4. 	Notice: Written notice and the agenda of all regular TPB meetings shall be delivered, 

mailed, or transmitted electronically to all board members at least five days prior to the meeting. 

Special meetings may be called by the Chair or upon the written request of a majority of voting 

members in accordance with RCW 42.30.080. Notice of special meetings must be given in compliance 

with RCW 42.30.080. The notice must state the time, place, and purpose of the meeting. 

Section 5. 	Purpose: The purpose of the TPB shall be to exercise on behalf of the Skagit Council 

of Governments the authority pursuant to the Agreement and under federal and state laws as the 

Skagit Metropolitan Planning Organization and the Regional Transportation Planning Organization for 

SKAGIT COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 	 - 4 - 
BYLAWS 



Skagit County. The TPB shall function as the Sub-Regional Transportation Policy Board as per the 

Skagit Island Regional Transportation Planning Organization ("SIRTPO") Agreement. Should the TPB 

cease to function as the Sub-Regional Policy Board for the SIRTPO, it shall nonetheless continue to 

function as the Regional Transportation Planning Organization for Skagit County. 

Section 6. 	Duties. The TPB has the functions and authorities as defined in the Agreement. 

Section 7. 	Quorum: A quorum for the TPB shall consist of a simple majority of its total 

votes pursuant to the Agreement, provided that there is at least one County representative 

present. 

Section 8. 	Voting: Each member/representative shall have votes as prescribed in the 

Agreement and for Towns, ports and Tribes established by the process set forth herein. Actions will be 

decided by a simple majority of the quorum. 

Section 9. 	Committees: The TPB may appoint such other committees as it may determine at its 

discretion, from time to time, for such purpose as the TPB may deem appropriate and for such actions 

as may be delegated to such committee. Such committees shall be corn posed and formed as the TPB 

may direct but shall not: (1) act on behalf of the TPB; (2) take testimony; or (3) take public comment. 

Section 10. 	Participation by Telephone: When extraordinary circumstances prevent 

attendance by a member or alternate, such member or alternate may participate in a meeting by 

telephone conference or other electronic communications media so long as all members may 

simultaneously hear each other and participate during the meeting. Participation by such means 

shall constitute presence in person at a meeting for purposes of establishing a quorum, voting, and 

for all other purposes. 

ARTICLE VII 

Executive Director 

The Board shall retain an Executive Director to operate the Council and to implement the mission, goals, 

objectives, policies, and guidelines established by the Council. Subject to Board oversight, the Executive 

Director is authorized to establish and implement business, management, administrative, and 

employment policies, and to employ such personnel as the Executive Director determines necessary to 

effectively manage and operate the Council. The Executive Director may delegate this authority to 

appropriate SCOG staff to facilitate efficient management and operation of the agency. The Executive 

Director shall be appointed, removed and/or evaluated by the Board. 

Section 1. 	The Executive Director shall be responsible for overall supervision and management 

of the business of the Skagit Council of Governments including, without limitation of the foregoing: 

keeping a written record of all actions of the Board, TPB and other policy boards established in 

accordance with these Bylaws; receiving monies payable to the Skagit Council of Governments and 

disbursement thereof as authorized by the Board of Directors; maintaining accurate and complete 

accounts of all receipts and disbursements; supervising all studies and programs authorized by the 

Skagit Council of Governments; supervising all staff, including the hiring and firing of staff; and 

performing such other duties or authorities as may be assigned to the Executive Director from time to 

SKAGIT COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 	 - 5 - 
BYLAWS 



time by the Board, the TPB, or the Chair. 

Section 2. 	The Executive Director shall have authority to execute contracts or expenditures with 

a value of ten thousand dollars ($10,000) or less in the name of the Council which are in conformance 

with the approved budget or other Board (Board or TP8) authorization without prior approval. 

Contracts or expenditures $10,000 or less and greater than $4,999 shall also include approval by the 

chair of the Board. A contract in which the Skagit Council of Governments is party and which is in an 

amount greater than ten thousand dollars ($10,000) shall require the prior approval of the Board or 

TPB before execution by the Executive Director. 

Section 3. 	The Executive Director is authorized to enter into agreements on behalf of the SCOG 

whenever the Executive Director determines it to be advantageous or when such services are part of 

in SCOG's normal operations and within the budget set by the Board. 

Section 4. 	The Executive Director shall have authority to manage the Revolving Loan 

Fund Program pursuant to the revolving loan fund management plan; provided that the 

Board shall approve all loans. 

Section 5. 	The Executive Director shall prepare a work program and budget, under 

direction of the Board of Directors or committee thereof. 

ARTICLE VIII 

Work Program and Budget 

Section 1. 	The work program and budget for SCOG shall be presented to the Board for 

review, revision, and adoption. The work program shall consist of projects and activities to be 

undertaken by SCOG and Staff during the subject budget year. The work program and budget 

shall be consistent with the transportation work program identified within the unified planning 

and work program (UPWP) adopted by the TPB. 

Section 2. 	The Board of Directors shall control all expenditures in accordance with the adopted 

work program and budget, with the exception of those expenditures included in the transportation 

work program (UPWP) and shall have the power to amend the work program and budget to meet 

unanticipated needs or changed conditions. The TPB shall control the UPWP and expenditures 

therein. 

Section 3. 	The budget shall set the local financial contribution of the members for the following 

year. The amount shall be determined by a method deemed equitable by the Board and approved by 

the Board. The a preliminary budget and dues shall be set and adopted no later than the regular 

meeting in August of each year and a final dues and final budget shall be adopted by the last meeting 

in December of each year. 

SKAGIT COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 	 - 6 - 
BYLAWS 



ARTICLE IX 

Funds, Claims & Expenditures, Financial Reports 

Section 1. 	All funds of the Council shall be deposited with the Skagit County Treasurer to the 

account of the Skagit Council of Governments. Annual contributions of the participating agencies 

shall be made as soon as possible after January 1 of each year and shall be made payable to the Skagit 

Council of Governments in care of the Skagit County Treasurer. Disbursements shall be made only by 

the Skagit County Treasurer upon warrants drawn by the Skagit County Auditor. 

Section 2. 	Expenditures of the Council shall be approved by the Board each month and account 

payable certifications shall be signed by at least three members of the Board of Directors. Approval 

shall be noted in the meeting minutes. 

ARTICLE X 
Public Participation 

The Agency shall seek involvement in its planning process of the general public, community and 

neighborhood organizations in urban and rural areas, large and small private sector interests, and local, 

regional and state government and shall comply with applicable federal or state and/or regulations. 

ARTICLE XI 

Open Meetings 

To ensure appropriate notice, public involvement, and effective regional decision-making, all 

meetings of the Skagit Council of Governments will be conducted consistent with SCOG's adopted 

Public Participation Plan. The Board and TPB shall comply with the Washington Open Public 

Meetings Act (Chapter 42.30 RCW) and the Washington Public Records Act (Chapter 42.56 RCW). 

The Executive Director shall prepare for Board's approval a public records policy as required by RCW 

42.56.040. 

ARTICLE XII 

Amendments to Bylaws 

These bylaws may be amended at any regular meeting of the Board of Directors by two-thirds vote of 

the voting membership; provided, that the proposed amendments shall have been submitted in writing 

at a previous regular meeting of the Board. Amendment of Article VI the TPB must be reviewed and 

agreed to by the TPB. Bylaws may be suspended at any meeting by the unanimous vote of the 

members present, provided, such attendance constitutes at least two-thirds of the voting membership. 

[Balance of page intentionally left blank] 

SKAGIT COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 	 - 7 - 
BYLAWS 



ADOPTED . 

AMENDED . 

SCOG, Chair 

Transportation Policy Board, Chair 
ATTEST: 

Kevin Murphy, Executive Director 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Bradford E. Furlong, WSBA # 12924 

Legal Counsel 

SKAGIT COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 	 - 8 - 

BYLAWS 



CITY OF ANACORTES 

By 	 Date 	  

Print Name 	  

Its 

CITY OF BURLINGTON 

By 	 Date 	  

Print Name 	  

Its 

CITY OF ANACORTES 

By 	 Date 	  

Print Name 	  

Its 

CITY OF MOUNT VERNON 

By 	 Date 	  

Print Name 	  

Its 	  

CITY OF SEDRO WOOLLEY 

By 	 Date 	  

Print Name 	  

its 

SKAGIT COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 	 - 9 - 
BYLAWS 



TOWN OF CONCRETE 

By 	 Date 	  

Print Name 	  

Its 

TOWN OF HAMILTON 

By 	 Date 	  

Print Name 	  

Its 

TOWN OF LA CONNER 

By 	 Date 	  

Print Name 	  

Its 

TOWN OF LYMAN 

By 	 Date 	  

Print Name 	  

Its 

SKAGIT COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 	 - 10 - 

BYLAWS 



SKAGIT COUNTY 

By 	 Date 	  

Print Name 	  

Its 

SKAGIT PUD #1 

By 	 Date 	  

Print Name 	  

Its 

PORT OF ANACORTES 

By 	 Date 	  

Print Name 

Its 	  

PORT OF SKAGIT COUNTY 

By 	 Date 	  

Print Name 	  

Its 

SKAGIT COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 	 - 11 - 

BYLAWS 



SKAGIT TRANSIT 

By 	 Date 	  

Print Name 	  

Its 

SWINOMISH TRIBAL COMMUNITY 

By 	 Date 	  

Print Name 	  

Its 

SAMISH INDIAN NATION 

By 	 Date 	  

Print Name 	  

Its 	  

SKAGIT COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 	 - 12 - 
BYLAWS 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

JUN 1 1 2014 

7:00 P.M. COUNCIL C,AMBERS 
AGENDA NO. 	  

Planning Department 
Sedro-Woolley Municipal Building 

325 Metcalf Street 
Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284 

Phone (360) 855-0771 
Fax (360) 855-0733 

MEMO: 

To: 	Sedro-Woolley City Council 
Mayor Anderson 

From: 	John Coleman, AICP 
Planning Director 

Date: 
	

June 11, 2014 

Subject: Preliminary approval of the amended Plat of Arbor Glen (file #06-SD-02) 

ISSUE  

Should the Council grant preliminary plat approval for the amended Plat of Arbor Glen? 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION / HISTORY 

Please find the attached Hearing Examiner's Findings of Fact, Conclusions & Recommendation for 
a complete history of the application and the review process completed. 

EXHIBITS 

Resolution 	-14 to approve the amended preliminary Plat of Arbor Glen subject to the 
conditions contained in the Hearing Examiner's Findings of Fact, Conclusions & Recommendation. 

RECOMMENDATION  

First Read. No action requested 



RESOLUTION NO. 	 -14 

A RESOLUTION GRANTING PRELIMINARY APPROVAL FOR A MODIFICATION 
OF THE "PLAT OF ARBOR GLEN," A 23-LOT SUBDIVISION AND AUTHORIZING 

THE MAYOR AND HIS DESIGNEE(S) TO SIGN ALL PRELIMINARY PLAT 
APPROVAL DOCUMENTS 

WHEREAS, Rubicon Development, LLC., property owner of 755 Cook Road and 605 Trail 
Road, has applied for a modification of a previously approved 22-lot preliminary plat plan for 
Arbor Glen, now proposed as a 23-lot subdivision; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Sedro-Woolley Planning and Public Works staff reviewed the proposed 
preliminary plat and determined the preliminary plat has met the requirements of SWMC 
chapters 15, 16 and 17; and 

WHEREAS, the Sedro-Woolley Hearing Examiner held an open record public hearing for the 
modification application on Tuesday, May 13, 2014 and public testimony was received and 
considered; and 

WHEREAS, the Hearing Examiner determined that the application was technically compliant 
with SWMC Ch. 16.08 and recommended to the City Council that the proposed modification of 
the proposed preliminary plat of Arbor Glen be approved subject to conditions. The Hearing 
Examiner's Findings, Conclusions and Recommendation is attached hereto as Attachment A. 
Attachment B to this Resolution is the staff report, which contains the plat maps and supporting 
documentation referenced in the Examiner's Findings, Conclusions and Recommendation. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Sedro-Woolley, 
Washington adopts the attached Findings, Conclusions and Recommendation of the Hearing 
Examiner; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Council finds that preliminary plat application # 
06-SD-02, modified Preliminary Plat of Arbor Glen, meets the requirements of SWMC 16.08 
and should be given preliminary plat approval, subject to conditions stated in the Findings, 
Conclusions and Recommendation of the Hearing Examiner which includes modifications to the 
conditions of the SEPA Mitigated Determination of Non-significance issued April 14, 2006. 

Mike Anderson, Mayor 

ATTEST: 	 APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Patsy Nelson, City Clerk/Treasurer 	Eron Berg, City Attorney 



Resolution 	-14 

Attachment A 
Findings, Conclusions and Recommendation of the Hearing Examiner 



ATrikaitiew 
Site Address 	 755 Cook Road and 605 Trail Road 

Assessor's Parcel Nos: 	P76918 and P76919 

Property Owner: 	 Granite Holdings, LLC 

Applicant: 	 Rubicon Development, LLC 

Hearing Examiner #; 	 SW 2014-1 

Planning # 	 06-SD-02 

Hearing Date: 	 May 13, 2014 

Decision Date; 	 May 27, 2014 

Recommendation Summary: 	Approve with Conditions 

This matter came before the Sedro-Woolley Hearing Examiner for hearing on the 13th 
day of May, 2014 on the application of Rubicon Development, for application of an 
alteration of a previously approved subdivision, consisting of the addition of one lot. 

Testimony was received from John Coleman, Sedro-Woolley Planning Director; and 
Bob Ruby, Applicant's Representative. In addition to the Sedro-Woolley Municipal Code 
and Comprehensive Plan, those documents identified in the attached Exhibit List were 
considered by the Hearing Examiner. 

Based upon the foregoing, the hearing Examiner makes the following, 

FINDINGS OF FACT 

1. The proposed Plat of Arbor Glen was submitted to the City on April 11, 2006, 
Granite Holdings, LLC, is the owner of the property on which the proposed plat is to be 
constructed. Rubicon Development, LLC, is the proponent of the plat. Unless the 
context clearly indicates otherwise, Rubicon and their successors and assigns, may be 
referred to in these Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and Order as "Applicant" 
and/or "Developer". 

2. The subject property is located on the northwest corner of the intersection of 
Cook Road and Trail Road. The applicant proposes to subdivide 2.47 acres into 23 
lots, tracts to serve future ROW needs, and street ROW. 

3. The Sedro-Woolley Comprehensive Plan and Zoning Code designation for the 
property at issue is Residential 15 (R-15). The northerly 120 feet of Parcel P76918 was 
zoned Mixed Commercial (MC) subsequent to the date the Plat of Arbor Glen was 
submitted to the City. 

Page i Arbor Glen Plat Alteration 06-SD-02 



3. In the R-15 zone, the minimum net density is four units per acre and the 
maximum gross density is fifteen units per acre. SWMC 17.16.040. 

4. The two parcels comprising the Arbor Glen plat consist of 2.4 acres. A boundary 
line adjustment, approved by the City, was filed on February 20, 2014 under Skagit 
County Auditor's Fee No. 201402200027. The boundary line adjustment was re-
recorded to correct the legal description on April 8, 2014, under Skagit County Auditor's 
Fee No. 201404080024; the corrected legal description was not approved by the City. 

5. The preliminary plat of Arbor Glen, a 22 lot subdivision, was approved by the City 
on June 14, 2006, pursuant to Resolution No. 727-06. The approval included a 
variance, allowing 5 foot side yard setbacks for two-story structures. 

6. The subject property was reviewed under the City's critical areas ordinance at 
the time of original plat application. No wetlands or other critical areas were identified 
on the property. 

7. The subject property is bordered on the north by Cook Road, and on the east by 
Trail Road; Cook Road is a Principal Arterial and Trail Road is a Secondary Arterial 
under the Sedro-Woolley Comprehensive Plan. 

8. Neighboring properties to the west, south, and most of the east are zoned R-15. 
The northern 120 feet of the neighboring property to the east is zoned MC. The 
neighboring property to the north is zoned Public. 

9. SEPA review was conducted on the original plat application, and an MDNS was 
issued on April 14, 2006. The original SEPA checklist identified the action as being for 
the subdivision of 23 lots — the same that is now proposed. An addendum to the MDNS 
was issued March 7, 2014, to amend the scope of the project. The addendum did not 
alter the conditions of the MDNS; however, the Department of Public Works has 
concluded that a 10 foot ROW dedication for expansion of Trail Road and an increase in 
sidewalk widths is not required. 

10. On October 9, 2013, the proponent submitted, pursuant to RCW 58,17.215, an 
application to alter the subdivision. The revised configuration is for 23 lots. The side 
yard setback variance would still apply. 

11. A Notice of Application for the revised project was published in the legal 
newspaper for the City, posted on the project site, and mailed to property owners and 
residents within 500 feet of the subject parcel. A Notice of Public Hearing was 
published in the legal newspaper for the City, and posted on the project site, and mailed 
to property owners and residents within 500 feet of the subject parcel. 

12. Pursuant to SWMC § 15.44.020, the proposed subdivision must comply with the 
City's design review standards. The Planning Department is charged, pursuant to 

Page 2 Arbor Glen Plat Alteration 06-SD-02 



SWMC § 15,44.060, is charged with conducting design review. The Planning 
Department has done so, and recommends that the conditions of approval incorporate 
the following elements: 

A. That the front of the homes constructed on lots 12 — 16 be oriented towards 
Cook Road; 

B. That the front of the homes constructed on lots 19 — 21 be oriented towards 
Trial Road; 

C. That a maximum four foot tall, uniform fence be constructed along the 
frontage of Cook and Trial Roads, with walkways and gates as depicted on 
Sheet 5 of the preliminary plat map be constructed for each lot. 

13. Pursuant to SWMC § 17.16.050, 3 parking spaces are required for each dwelling 
with 3 bedrooms, and 1 additional space is required for each 8 dwelling units. The plat 
will contain 23 residences, and each lot is depicted to show 3 parking spaces. An 
additional 3 spaces are shown on tract 995. 

14. Stormwater infrastructure is proposed to be constructed within the ROW, as 
approved by the City Engineer. 

15. Notice of a public hearing on the plat was published on April 25, 2014. The 
subject property was identified by address, pursuant to RCW 58.17.092. 

16. An open record hearing was held on May 13, 2014, at 10:00 a.m. before the 
Hearing Examiner. 

Based upon the foregoing Findings of Fact, the Hearing Examiner makes the following, 

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 

1. A subdivision of land into five or more lots is characterized as a "subdivision" in 
accordance with RCW 58.17.020 (1). A preliminary approval for a subdivision utilizes a 
Type IV procedure under SWMC § 2.90.070 (G). In Type IV procedures, the hearing 
examiner conducts an open record hearing, and makes a recommendation to the city 
council. 

2. The Plat of Arbor Glen was vested on the date the application was deemed 
complete, on April 11, 2006. On that date, the parcel was zoned R-15, and no portion 
of the property was zoned MC. Therefore, R-15 zoning is applicable to the plat. 

3. Pursuant to RCW 58.17.140, a final plat meeting all of the requirements of 
Chapter 58.17 RCW must be submitted within 10 years of the date of preliminary plat 

Page 3 !Arbor Glen Plat Alteration 06-SD-02 



approval. Because the preliminary plat of Arbor Glen was approved by the City on June 
14, 2006, final plat approval must be submitted on or before June 14, 2016. 

4. Washington law requires an analysis of whether applicable laws adequately 
address a project's specific SEPA impacts. This analysis is conducted by the SEPA 
Responsible Official. Pursuant to SWMC § 2.90.060 (F)(3), appeals of the SEPA 
responsible official are to be heard by the Hearing Examiner. No appeal of the MDNS 
has been lodged. The Hearing Examiner concludes the determination by the SEPA 
Responsible Official was lawful and supported in the record. The conditions set forth in 
the original MDNS, dated April 14, 2006, remain applicable. 

5. Proper notice was given pursuant to RCW 58.17.090. 

6. Subject to the conditions set forth below, the proposed plat satisfies the 
requirements of RCW 58.17 and Chapter 17.16 SWMC. In particular, the Hearing 
Examiner finds that (a) appropriate provisions have been made for the public health, 
safety, and general welfare and for such open spaces, drainage ways, streets, potable 
water supplies, sanitary wastes, parks and recreation, playgrounds, schools and all 
other relevant facts, including sidewalks and other planning features that assure safe 
walking conditions for students who only walk to and from school; and (b) the public use 
and interest will be served by the platting of the subdivision and dedication. 

Based upon the foregoing Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law, the Hearing 
Examiner makes the following Recommendation: 

RECOMMENDATION 

The Hearing Examiner recommends that the alteration to the plat of Arbor Glen be 
approved by the Sedro-Woolley City Council, subject to the following conditions: 

1. The plat shall be developed generally as shown in the preliminary plat drawings, 
except as modifications are required to comply with Sedro-Woolley Municipal Code 
requirements. 

2. Impact fees and General Facilities charges shall be assessed and collected in 
accordance with applicable requirements of the Sedro-Woolley municipal code and at 
the rate adopted by ordinance at the time of building permit issuance; 

2. 	Developer shall submit a lighting plan to the City showing the location of any 
lighting within the project. Lighting shall be shielded so as not to spill onto neighboring 
properties. 

3. Developer shall locate and install fire hydrants as approved by the Fire Chief. 

Page 4 Arbor Glen Plat Alteration 06-SD-02 



4. Developer shall contribute voluntary police impact fees of $202.96 per dwelling 
unit in accordance with the Sedro-Woolley Comprehensive Plan Capital Facilities 
Element; 

5. Developer shall coordinate with Skagit Transit (SKAT) any Transportation 
Improvements as may be lawfully required; 

6, 	Developer shall locate and install mailbox(es) as approved by the Postmaster; 

7. Developer shall coordinate the installation of public water infrastructure 
improvements with Skagit Public Utility District No. 1.; 

8. Developer shall provide playground equipment for the designated play area 
suitable for a variety of age groups as approved by the Planning Director; 

9. Developer shall install 10 foot wide street landscaping in accordance with SWMC 
§ 17.50.050, along Cook and Trail Roads; 

10. Developer shall re-channelize lanes on Trial Road pursuant to SWMC § 
16.08.052 as approved by the City Engineer; 

11. Developer shall dedicate an additional 3 feet for ROW purposes along the 
property's Cook Road frontage; 

12. Hours of construction shall be limited to 7:00 a.m. to 9:00 p.m. weekdays, and 
8:00 a,m, to 9:00 p.m. weekends in accordance with SWMC § 9.46.020; 

13. All construction traffic shall use as approved temporary construction access with 
a 100 foot geotextile and quarry spall construction entrance; 

14. Developer shall comply with Northwest Clean Air Agency regulations during 
construction activities; 

15. Developer shall comply with all applicable local, state, and federal regulations, 
including SWMC Title 13.36 — Stormwater Management Standards; SWMC Title 13.40 
— Stormwater Facilities Maintenance; SWMC Title 15.40 — Public Works Construction 
Standards; SWMC Title 16 — Subdivisions; SWMC Title 17 — Zoning; Sedro-Woolley 
Public works Design Standards; and the Sedro-Woolley Comprehensive Plan; 

16. Construction of all required infrastructure improvements shall be completed prior 
to final plat application, or such improvements shall be bonded by a surety licensed by 
the state of Washington, with a bond approved by the City and in an amount approved 
by the City Engineer; 

17. In accordance with SWMC § 16.08.052, Developer shall create a homeowner's 
association for the purpose of providing for the maintenance of the shared play area, 

Page 5 Arbor Glen Plat Alteration 06-SD-02 



overflow parking spaces, tracts of land owned in common by the Association, and 
stormwater infrastructure within the Plat of Arbor Glen. The Homeowner's Association 
shall be responsible for all maintenance of the above facilities. The documents creating 
such Association shall be approved by the Planning Director, and once approved, shall 
be recorded with the Skagit County Auditor as covenants running with the land. 
Maintenance of the stormwater facilities shall be defined in the operation maintenance 
manual recorded with the covenants and referenced on the plat. 

18. The fronts of the houses on lots 12 — 16 shall be oriented towards Cook Road. 
The fronts of the houses on lots 19 — 21 shall be oriented towards Trial Road. A 
maximum four foot high uniform fence shall be approved by the Planning Directorand 
installed along the frontage of both Cook and Trial Roads. A walkway and gate through 
the fence for each house shall be installed in accordance with the details shown on 
sheet 5 of the plat drawings. 

19. Construction of all landscaping and design elements shall be in accordance with 
Chapter 17.50 SWMC and the planting plan as approved by the Planning Director. 

20. All required easements for the final plat shall appear on the final plat and shall be 
subject to the review and approval of the City Engineer. 

21. If tracts 994 and/or 995 are converted to street ROW to access adjacent property 
in the future, then the three overflow parking spaces to be installed on Tract 995 shall 
be relocated elsewhere. Such spaces may be relocated to to the north side of the road 
built to access the east (adjacent to the south boundary to Tract 996) or as otherwise 
approved by the Planning Director. 

22. Preliminary Plat approval shall expire as provided in RCW.58.17, 

23. The side yard setback variance previously granted by the City through Resolution 
No. 727-06 shall continue to apply. 

RECOMMENDATION MADE this 27th day of May 2014. 

Sedro-Woolley Hearing Examiner 

Page 6 Arbor Glen Plat Alteration 06-SD-02 



Resolution 	-14 

Attachment B 
Staff Report including Exhibits 1-8 (referenced in Hearing Examiner's Findings, 

Conclusions and Recommendation) 



AllUtAtirEtiT  
CITY OF ,EDRO- 1  OOLLEY 

PLANNING DEPARTMENT 
325 Metcalf Street 

Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284 
Phone (360) 855-0771 

Fax (360) 855-0733 

TRANSMITTAL & REPORT MEMORANDUM 

HEARING DATE: May 13, 2014 

To: 	 Sedro-Woolley Hearing Examiner 

RE: 
	

06-SD-02 — Preliminary Plat Approval for modifications to the 
Proposed Plat of Arbor Glen 

IF; IC ef_*-- 1___,L)-n CN 

FROM: 
John Coleman, Planning Director 

February 22, 2006 

April 11, 2006 

Staff Recommends Approval with Conditions 

APPLICATION DATE: 

APPLICATION COMPLETE: 

RECOMMENDATION: 

PROPERTY OWNER: 

PROJECT PROPONENT: 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL 

Granite Holdings, LLC 
901 Metcalf Street PMB 34 
Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284 

Rubicon Development, LLC 
901 Metcalf Street PMB 34 
Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284 

The proposal is to subdivide two undeveloped properties into 23 residential lots. The 
proposal is a modification of an approved subdivision design that has yet to be constructed. 
The original preliminary plat approval was for 22 lots, including a variance to reduce side 
yard setbacks from 8 feet to 5 feet. The new proposal is for 23 lots; the street configuration is 
similar and the side yard setback variance will still apply. The complete revised application 
was received November 27, 2013. The subdivision will require construction of a road, 
stormwater system and utilities necessary to serve the proposed lots. 

Site Address: 755 Cook Rd. & 605 Trail Rd. Parcel ID Nos.: (P76918 & P76919 



FINDINGS OF FACT 

1. Subdivisions of land into five or more properties are classified as "subdivisions" (also 
termed "long plats"). Per SWMC 2.90.010(C) preliminary approval for a subdivision is 
treated as a Type IV decision by the City Council following a Hearing Examiner open 
record hearing and recommendation. 

2. City regulations concerning subdivisions are found in the Sedro-Woolley Municipal 
Code (SWMC) Chapter 16.04 —General Provisions and Chapter 16.08 —
Subdivisions. Title 17 — Zoning, Chapter 2.88 — Environmental Policy and Chapter 
15.44 — Design Review also apply to long plats in Sedro-Woolley. 

3. The Comprehensive Plan and Zoning Code designation for this property is Residential 
15 (R-15), with the north 120 feet of parcel P76918 zoned Mixed Commercial (MC). 
The parcel was zoned R-15, without any MZ zoning, when the application was vested. 
Therefore only the zoning regulations of the R-15 zone are applicable to the plat. Chapter 
17.16 SWMC includes the regulations for the R-15 zone and Chapter 17.20 SWMC for 
MC. In the R-15 zone, fifteen units per acre are allowed. 

4. The two underlying parcels total approximately 2.4 acres. A portion of the southern 
portion of parcel P76919 was given to the adjoining property owner to correct a building 
encroachment situation. That property was exchanged via boundary line adjustment 
(Auditor File #201402200027) approved by the city February 14, 2014. That BLA was 
adjusted (without city review) and re-recorded (AF #201404080024) on April 8, 2014. 

5. The Plat of Arbor Glen was Submitted in April 11, 2006 and assigned file #06-SD-02. 
The Plat of Arbor Glen application is vested under the rules in place on that date. 

6. On June 14, 2006 the Sedro-Woolley city Council passed Resolution #727-06 approving 
the Plat of Arbor Glen, a 22-lot subdivision with a variance to allow 5-foot side setbacks 
for two- story structures. The resolution (Exhibit 3) and the original Planning 
Commission Findings of Fact and Recommendation (Findings) for the original 
application (Exhibit 4) are included as exhibits to this report. 

7. Per RCW 58.17.140, final plat must be submitted within nine years of preliminary plat 
approval if the plat was given preliminary plat approval before December 31, 2007. Final 
Plat approval for the Plat of Arbor Glen must be submitted by June 14, 2015. The 
preliminary plat approval is still valid and the application may be modified under the 
vested rules. 

8. On October 9, 2013, Bob Ruby, acting as representative for Rubicon Development, LLC, 
submitted an application to modify the approved Plat of Arbor Glen (Exhibit 1). The 
remaining application materials necessary for staff to review the proposed plat revisions 
was received November 27, 2013. The Revised Preliminary Plat map of Arbor Glen 
date-stamped April 22, 2014 is attached as Exhibit 2. 

9. The revised proposal is for 23 lots; the street configuration is similar to the original plat 
and the side yard setback variance will still apply. The subdivision will require 

06-SD-02 — Modification to Preliminary Plat of Arbor Glen 
Page 2 



construction of a road, stormwater system and utilities necessary to serve the proposed 
lots. The play area must conform to the rules in place at the time of vesting (800 square 
feet minimum). 

10. The plat must meet development regulations in place at the time of vesting. Procedurally, 
the plat approval process shall be to the currently adopted procedural rules in Chapter 
2.90 SWMC. 

11. The subject property was reviewed for compliance under the Sedro-Woolley Critical 
Areas Ordinance as codified under Title 17.65 at the time of the original plat application. 
No wetlands or critical areas were found. 

12. The project is bordered to the north by Cook Road and the east by Trail Road. Cook 
Road is classified as a Principal Arterial and Trail Road is classified as a Secondary 
Arterial in the Transportation Element of the Sedro-Woolley Comprehensive Plan. 

13. The neighboring properties to the west, south and most of the east are zoned R-15. The 
northern 120 feet of the neighboring property to the east is zoned MC. The neighboring 
properties to the north — across Cook Road — is zoned Public. 

14. Long plats are subject to SEPA review (Chapter 2.88 SWMC) and require a SEPA 
checklist to be submitted along with the application. A SEPA MDNS was issued April 
14, 2006. The SEPA checklist for this the original proposal was for 23 lots and did not 
need to be modified for the revised proposal. An Addendum to the SEPA MDNS was 
issued March 7, 2014 (Exhibit 6) to amend the scope of the project to include one more 
unit. The addendum did not change the conditions of the SEPA MDNS issued in April 
2006; the conditions of that MDNS are still applicable to the project. The original SEPA 
is included as Exhibit D to the original Findings (Exhibit 4 of this document). The 
requirement for a 10 foot ROW dedication on Trail Road has been waived by the 
Engineering Department. Also, requirement to increase sidewalk widths has also been 
waived by the Engineering Department. 

15. A Notice of Application for the revised project was published in the local newspaper, 
posted at the project site and mailed to the property owners and residents within 500 feet 
of the subject parcel. The notice required a two week comment period ending January 6, 
2014. Two written comments (Exhibit 5) were received: a) Larry Jensen (date-stamped 
December 27, 2013); and b) John Lee (email dated December 26, 2014). 

16. Pursuant to SWMC 15.44.060, the Planning Department reviewed the project for 
compliance with the Design Review standards and Guidelines. The applicant has 
proposed to orient the front of the houses on proposed lots 12 — 16 towards Cook Road 
and lots 19 — 21 towards Trail Road. A four-foot (maximum) tall, uniform fence is also 
proposed along the frontage of both Cook and Trail Roads. Sheet 5 of the plat maps for 
the proposal (Sheet 5 of Exhibit 2) includes a typical detail of a walkway and gate 
through said fence to the city sidewalk. The Planning Department recommends that the 
conditions of approval incorporate the above elements. 

06-SD-02 — Modification to Preliminary Plat of Arbor Glen 
Page 3 



17. Parking regulations in the R-15 zone are for three independently mobile parking spots for 
each 3-bedroom unit and one additional parking space of every eight units. In accordance 
with this requirement, the plat maps show three independently mobile parking spaces on 
each lot. The plat includes 23 units; therefore three additional visitors' parking spaces 
are necessary. Those three spaces are accommodated on Tract 995. 

18. Tracts 995 and 994 are reserved for a future road to access the adjacent property to the 
east. Until such time, tract 994 is used for access to Lots 3, 5 and 5 as well as the three 
required additional community parking spaces that are located on Tract 995. Should the 
road be constructed through to the easterly parcel, Tracts 994 and 995 will be part of a 
dedicated right of way to the City of Sedro-Woolley. Those tree visitors' spaces must be 
accommodated on the northern side of the right of way (adjacent to Tract 996). The 
Planning Department recommends that that the conditions of approval incorporate the 
above three-parking space requirement. 

19. The stormwater infrastructure is proposed to be located largely within the city right-of-
way as approved by the City Engineer. 

20. The Hearing Examiner is scheduled to hold a public hearing on the preliminary Plat of 
Arbor Glen at 10:00 AM, May 13, 2014. Based on the information presented to the 
Hearing Examiner and the testimony at that hearing, the Hearing Examiner will make a 
recommendation to the City Council whether to approve, approve with conditions or 
deny preliminary approval of the Plat of Arbor Glen. 

21. On April 25, 2014, in compliance with Chapters 16.04, 16.08 and 2.90 SWMC, Notice of 
Public Hearing (Exhibit 7) for the Preliminary Plat Arbor Glen was sent to all property 
owners and residents within 500 feet of the subject parcels, posted at the project site and 
published in the Skagit Valley Herald. 

PLANNING DEPARTMENT RECOMENDATION 

Based on the above Findings of Fact and Exhibits 1 through 9, the Planning Department 
recommends APPROVAL of the modified Preliminary Plat of Arbor Glen, a request to 
subdivide two parcels in the R-15 Zone into twenty-three (23) new residential lots, including 
the previously approved variance to reduce side yard setbacks from 8 feet to 5 feet subject 
to the following conditions: 

1. Comply with the mitigation measures included in the SEPA mitigated determination of 
non-significance (MDNS) issued April 14, 2006 and as set forth below. Note, item 1) has 
been waived by the City Engineer and item m) has been modified to only require the 3' 
of additional right-of-way (ROW) dedication along Cook Road: 

a) Impact Fees and General Facilities charges shall be assessed and collected at the rate 
adopted by ordinance at the time of building permit issuance; 

b) Submit a lighting plan indicating the location of any lighting within the project. 
Lighting shall be shielded so as not to spill onto neighboring properties; 

c) Locate and install fire hydrants as approved by the Fire Chief; 

06-SD-02 — Modification to Preliminary Plat of Arbor Glen 
Page 4 



d) Contribute voluntary police impact fees of $202.96 per unit as per the City of Sedro-
Woolley Comprehensive Plan Capital Facilities Element; 

e) Coordinate Public Transportation Improvements, as may be required, with Skagit 
Transit (SKAT); 

f) Locate and install of mailbox(es) as approved by the Postmaster; 
g) Coordinate School District mitigation, as may be required, with the Sedro-Woolley 

School District; 
h) Coordinate installation of public water infrastructure improvements with Skagit 

Public Utility District No. 1; 
i) Provide playground equipment for the designated play area with equipment suitable 

for a variety of age groups as approved by the Planning Director; 
j) Provide 10f1 wide street landscaping pursuant to SWMC 17.50.050, along Cook and 

Trail Roads; 
k) Re-stripe lanes on Trail Road pursuant to SWMC 16.08.052 and as approved by the 

City Engineer; 
1) Increase sidewalk width to 11' along Trail Road frontage, and 8' along Cook Road 

frontage as approved by the City Engineer. 
m) Dedicate and additional -1-0z ROW along Trail Road frontage and 3' along Cook Road 

frontage, 
n) Hours of construction shall be limited to 7:00 a.m. to 9:00 p.m. weekdays and 8:00 

a.m. to 9:00 p.m. weekends as required in SWMC 9.46.020; 
o) All construction traffic shall use an approved temporary construction access with a 

100' geotextile and quarry spall construction entrance; 
p) Comply with Northwest Clean Air Agency Regulations during construction 

activities. 
q) Comply with all local, state and federal regulations, including Sedro-Woolley 

Municipal Code Title 13.36 Stormwater Management Standards; Title 13.40 
Stormwater Facilities Maintenance; Titlel 5.40 Public Works Construction Standards; 
Title 16 Subdivisions, Title 17 Zoning; Sedro-Woolley Public Works Design 
Standards and the Sedro-Woolley Comprehensive Plan. 

2. Construction of all required infrastructure improvements shall be completed prior to final 
plat application or bonding in an amount approved by the City Engineer shall be filed 
with the City. 

3. A homeowner agreement shall be created for the maintenance of the shared play area, 3 
overflow parking spaces, tracts owned in common by Association and stormwater 
infrastructure within the Plat of Arbor Glen and shall be approved by the Planning 
Department prior to recording. Maintenance of the stormwater facilities will be defined 
in the operation maintenance manual recorded with the CC&Rs and referenced on the 
plat. 

4. Orient the front of the houses on proposed lots 12 — 16 towards Cook Road and lots 19 —
21 towards Trail Road. Plans for a four-foot (maximum) tall, uniform fence as proposed 
along the frontage of both Cook and Trail Roads shall be subject to design approval by 
the Planning Department. Sheet 5 of the plat maps (Exhibit 2) includes a typical detail of 
a walkway and gate through said fence to the city sidewalk. 

06-SD-02 — Modification to Preliminary Plat of Arbor Gien 
Page 5 



5. If in the future Tracts 994 and 995 are converted to a street (public right-of-way) to 
access the property to the east of the Plat of Arbor Glen, then the three overflow parking 
spaces on Tract 995 shall be provided elsewhere. Those three spaces may be on the north 
side of the road built to access the east (adjacent to the south boundary to Tract 996) or 
as otherwise approved by the Planning Department. 

6. Construction of all landscaping and design elements shall be in accordance with Chapter 
17.50 SWMC and the Planting Plan as approved by the Planning Department. 

EXHIBITS 

1. Revised Preliminary Plat Application; 
2. Revised Preliminary Plat map of Arbor Glen date-stamped April 22, 2014, (5 Sheets); 
3. Resolution 727-06 approving preliminary plat June 14, 2006 
4. Original Findings of Fact and Decision/Recommendation (including Appendixes A-I); 
5. Public comments (2): 

a. John Lee (email) December 26, 2013 
b. Larry Jensen December 27, 2013; 

6. Addendum to SEPA MDNS issued March 7, 2014; and 
7. Notice of Public Hearing published April 25, 2014. 
8. Affidavit of Mailing Notice of Public Hearing 

06-SD-02 — Modification to Preliminary Plat of Arbor Glen 
Page 6 



Pre-application date: Pre-application File #: 
py-br)r- (-LIP tr% Proposed name of Subdivision: 

it'pc) - 	 64 I email:  mowire 	r_14 co  frp, vex  

-1- EXHIBIT 
goarrame 

gizoi5e-0 
're% +Jr 1G-  It" 17— --- 

P-TonnsTurrent Planning Fonns\ Long Plats\ Long Plat Application 20 10.doc 

LONG PLAT APPLICATION 
ATE STAMP: 

061 - I) — 2_, 	(Sev_illicutivd  %1`k 34,cite_5 

Location (cross street names and addresses, if they exist): 
126"4 	15,5 CD6L toad (ipc  

Assessor's Parcel number(s): 	P769.1q 0„,4 	P 	1t 9 

Building, --inning and Engineering 
Sedro-N,,,olley Municipal Building 

325 Metcalf Street 
Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284 

71 
	 ow-TRA, 

HI  III  
OCT - 9 2013 

Township: 	 Range: 	1-1 E 

u.hieer. Deus kc5e4y,P vA-, I LC...), 	 AA./ 

901 Me.-co. 	. 	Sti  

tleAcUvLss,  

clot ke 1-co,U) 	,) 413c1 	S-- t/J 

Section: 	23 

Applicant Name: 

Applicant Address: 

Applicant Phone: 

Owner: 

Owner Address: 

Owner Phone: .36n-<-1C- 	'464  

ec.s5, 16 ie._ -CLAAu-ve_. I am applying for the following variances or other permits at the same time: 

bark 	R-Ls-:  

codes. T 
I requ 
ap icable city pplicant b s the burden of proving the application should be granted. 

I am the legal owner of the property listed above and that the 
o represent me in this application for development. 

Owner' 
app 

Date  Catrt....dte. WikahAS, LW__ 	kb 1 i3„,  Name 

c 

SIGNATURE 

ccordance with the Sedro-Woolley subdivision ordinance and other 

f-exae `R‘AleepA 	  
DATE RECEIVED 

a prova 

APPLICATION NUMBER: 



Part 2 

Zoning and Comprehensive Plan Designation 	R-ks- 	) 	Va4 j 	Colm.weAd'e2c"--,  I 

Total site size in acres 	2_ 	Critical Areas by type and acres: 

Number of lots proposed 

   

	Number of housing units proposed  23,  

   

Flood zone: 	acy14 # X 	 51-13  A- Cr..ym p 1 el e.. 
eas tot-is. 

I have submitted  10 copies of the preliminary plat,  1 copy of EPA checklist (for review, upon 
approval 13 copies of the SEPA Checklist will be required), toget er wit t e current filing fee and 
SEPA fee. 

Describe existing conditions on and adjacent to site: 	(SocIre_. s'InotmiL cA:1 	 i-cate) v  

Purpose: 	The purpose of the Subdivision (Long Plat) regulations: 
To regulate the division of land and to promote the public health, safety and general welfare in 
accordance with standards established by the city and state to: 
A. Prevent the overcrowding of land; 
B. Lessen congestion in the streets and highways; 
C. Promote effective use of land; 
D. Promote safe and convenient travel by the public on streets and highways; 
E. Provide for adequate light and air; 
F. Provide for open spaces, drainage ways, streets or roads, alleys, other public ways, transit stops, 

potable water supplies, fire protection, sanitary wastes, parks and recreation, playgrounds, 
schools and school grounds, sidewalks or other facilities to assure safe walking conditions for 
students who walk to and from school; and other public requirements; 

G. Provide for proper ingress and egress; 
H. Provide for expeditious review and approval of proposed divisions which conform to zoning 

standards and local plans and policies, including the purposes stated herein; 
I. Adequately provide for the housing and commercial needs of the citizens of the city; and 
J. Require uniform monumenting of land divisions and conveyance by accurate legal description. 

Process: 	Preliminary plat applications shall be processed simultaneously with applications for 
rezones, variances, planned unit developments, site plan approvals, and similar quasi-judicial or 
administrative actions to the extent that procedural requirements applicable to these actions permit 
simultaneous processing. 

No public hearing on a subdivision proposal shall be scheduled prior to the issuance of a 
declaration of non-significance or mitigated declaration of non-significance by the SEPA official. 

P:Worrns\Current Planning Fonns\Long Plats\Long Plat Application 2010.doc 	 - 2 - 



Application Checklist: 

❑ A. 	Pre-application date: 	  

B. 	State Environment Policy Act (SEPA). The applicant shall submit a SEPA Checklist or 
environmental impact statement (EIS), including a site plan and associated fees, with an 
application for a subdivision. The SEPA Checklist or EIS shall be reviewed by the SEPA 
official. Upon determination by the Planning Department that the SEPA Checklist is complete 
and accurate, thirteen (13) copies of the checklist will be required. No public hearing on a 
subdivision proposal shall be scheduled prior to the issuance of a determination of 
nonsignificance or mitigated determination of nonsignificance by the SEPA official. 

Fees. See current fee schedule. The applicant will also be billed for mailing and 
publication costs. 

111 	D. 	Complete Application Required. The planning director notifies applicant when the 
application is complete. 

rQ 	E. 	Application Map. Ten copies of an accurately scaled and dimensioned map of the plat 
prepared by a land surveyor licensed by the state of Washington and showing the following: 

**Every preliminary plat shall consist of one or more maps, on both mylar and in digital format 
approved by the City Engineer, together with written and digital data including the following: 

❑ The name of the proposed subdivision; n North point and scale; the location of existing property lines: streets, building, if any; 
watercourses and all general features; 

❑ The legal description of the land contained within the subdivision; 
n The names and addresses of all persons, firms and corporations holding interest in the 

lands, including easement rights and interest; 
n The proposed names, locations, widths and other dimensions of proposed streets, alleys, 

easements, parks, lots, building lines, if any, and all other information necessary to interpret 
the plat, including the location of existing utility and access easements which are to remain; 

n The location of streets in adjoining plats and the approximate location of adjoining utilities 
and proposed extensions into the plat; 

n The names of adjoining plats; 
n The name, address and telephone number and seal of the registered land surveyor who 

made the survey or under whose supervision it was made; 
n The date of the survey; 
n All existing monuments and markers located by the survey; 
❑ The zoning classification applicable to the land within the subdivision; 
n The conditions of or the limitations on dedications, if any, including slope rights; 
n Contour intervals as required, based upon city datum with intervals of five feet or less 

utlizing U.S.G.S, or better datum. 
El  Location of significant physical features such as buildings, bodies of water, power lines, 

slopes, trees, and section lines within or adjacent to the proposed plat; 
n Location and description of existing and proposed drainage, sewer, and water facilities 

within or adjacent to the proposed plat; 
n Location and outline of any sensitive areas, as defined under Section 17.65.040, using the 

delineation and classification methods and definitions provided for the specific sensitive 
area under the provisions of Chapter 17.65; 

P:TonnslCurrent Planning Fonns\Long Plats\Long Plat Application 2010.doc 	 - 3 - 



r--7  If a replat, the layout for the original plat in dotted lines, wilt replat status reflected in the 
plat name; 

ri  Vicinity map at a smaller scale, to include the location of any natural resource lands within 
three hundred feet of the edge of the proposed plat. 

nj 	F. 	Mailing labels: See separate form for instructions. 
kir 	G. 	Posting: See attached form for instructions. 
[j] CaD Copies of covenants, restrictions and collective maintenance agreements, if applicable. 

I. 	Environmental checklist or EIS. 
❑ J. 	Survey information of all features within 100 feet of the boundary of the proposed 

subdivision. 
❑ K.  Evidence of water availability. PUD letter 
❑ L.  Evidence of sewer availability. 
❑ M.  Required materials identified in the pre-application meeting. 
❑ N.  Other information deemed necessary by the planning director, planning commission or 

city council 
❑ .Lin,  Landscaping Plan 
❑ P. 	Street Profiles 

Special Studies: 
❑ Q. 	Traffic 
❑ R. 	Stormwater 
❑ S. 	Critical areas 

Criteria: 	The proponent bears the burden or proving that the application should be granted. The 
project permit must be supported by convincing proof that it conforms to the applicable elements of the 
city's development regulations and comprehensive plan. The proponent must also prove that any 
significant adverse environmental impacts have been adequately mitigated. 

Describe how the following provisions will be met with the proposed subdivision: 

❑ Public health, safety and general welfare: 	  

❑ Open spaces: 	  

❑ Drainage ways: 	  

❑ Streets, alleys, other public ways: 	  

❑ Water supplies: 	  

❑ Sanitary wastes: 	  

P:\Forms\Current  Planning Forms\Long Plats\Long Plat Application 20 I 0.doc 	 -4 - 



❑ 	 Fire protection facilities: 	  

❑ 	 Parks, playgrounds: 	  

Applicable local and state rules which will be used in the review of all subdivision applications: 

Applications shall be processed according to the procedures set forth in Chapter 2.90 SWMC, and the 
additional procedures established in Chapter 16.08 SWMC and state law (Chapter 43.21C RCW, and 
Chapter 36.70B RCW). 

Chapter 16.04 SWMC — General Provisions, Chapter 16.08 SWMC — Subdivisions; Chapter 2.88 
SWMC — State Environmental Policy Act; Chapter 15.40 SWMC — Public Works Construction 
Standards; Chapter 2.90 SWMC — Consolidated Planning Procedures; and Title 17 SWMC — Zoning. 

Also applicable to subdivisions are the Public Works Department Standards manual and the Sedro-
Woolley Design Standards and Guidelines manual. These documents are adopted by reference in the 
Sedro-Woolley Municipal Code. 

P:Wonns\Current Planning Forms1Long Plats\Long Plat Application 2010.doc - 5 - 



City of Sedro-Woolley 
Mailing Procedure 

1. 	Obtain a list of names and addresses of residents and property owners within 500 
feet of the edge of the subject property. In determining the outside edge, include all 
other adjacent property owned by the applicant. The source of the names and 
addresses must be the Skagit County Assessor's records. 

72 	Obtain a map showing the subject property, the 500 foot radius, and all properties on 
•LY/ 	the mailing list. This is available at the Assessor's office. 

3.  Prepare 3 sets of postage-paid envelopes using these lists. 
4. Prepare additional envelopes for residents of the property if the owner does not live 

on site. If the name of the resident is unknown, address the envelope to "resident". 
Example: Resident, 123 State St., Sedro-Woolley, WA. 98284. 

5. Fill out the affidavit below and have it notarized. 
6. Bring the list, postage-paid addressed envelopes, map, and notarized affidavit to the 

city Planning Department. 

AFFIDAVIT OF CORRECT NAMES AND ADDRESSES 

	 , do hereby certify 
Affiant 

That the attached list of property owners, addresses and parcel numbers for 
the proposed project, 	  

Name of proposed project 

Is a true and correct copy provided for me by the Skagit County Assessor's 
Office for land within 500 feet of the property lines of P 	  

Site parcel number 

Signed: 	  

Date: 

Subscribed and sworn to before me on this 

 

day of 	 , 20 

 

       

Print Name: 	  

Notary for the State of Washington, 

Residing at 	  

My Commission expires: 	  

P:1Fonns1Current Planning Fonns\Long Plats\Long Plat Application 2010.doc 	 - 6- 



NARRATIVE FOR THE PROPOSED 
PLAT OF ARBOR GLEN 

September 26, 2013 

The proposed plat of Arbor Glen is a 23 lot Single Family Residential development within the City of 
Sedro Woolley, WA. The plat will consist of 2.486 acres, located at the southeast corner of the 
intersection of Cook Road and Trail Road. A Preliminary Plat was completed, approved and vested by 
the City of Sedro Woolley for this project in 2006. This modification will rely on that earlier vesting 
and provide for newer review material for the City where required. 

The original SEPA was drafted and circulated to include 23 lots and the preliminary plat was originally 
approved with 22 lots. This modification, with its associated vesting proposes using the information, 
data and conclusions from that SEPA . 

The entry street will meet with City standards and ownership will be turned over to the City. The entry 
point is toward the south of the plat exiting west onto Trail Road. The entry will turn north and 
proceed up the middle of the plat and end with a "T" hammer head intersection. We are requesting to 
retain ownership of Parcel 995. 

The domestic water line together with approval from the local PUD, and the sanitary sewer are 
proposed consistent with the past application or changed consistent with the new detail. This plat 
proposes using the domestic water supply assurance letter from the original application. 

Storm water runoff has been revised compared to the original application. An updated soils report has 
been utilized. Runoff is being proposed as in the present drawings and includes the possibility of 
ultimately utilizing the storm water drain parallel to SR 20. 

This plat proposes using the variance granted from the original application for minimum side yard set-
back to be five feet. This plat will make every effort to provide for more parking than minimally 
required. Many of the proposed residential building structures will be three bedroom units. 
Construction plans call for two-car garages. Two car garages equates to two parking stalls. 
Additionally, drive way aprons will be poured at 25 feet in length. Any structure with these features 
will will have a minimum of four parking spaces without any additional provision for street parking, 
etc. 

Consistent with communication from the City in a letter dated August 30, 3013, the plat is vested and 
as such structures in the north 120 feet will be conforming. Upon final plat approval, the City will 
change the zoning to provide a conforming designation. 



Hum marlyslanylmillgalmal  
Ms S la WM 101 ALL 1153 lettrow LIM NO ■:11 MC [COCA LAS 13111 RE LOOS 14701 
COMER 112C 03101W PM ND 12201441/3 .102330 10 DC mom a Ix ORIS 11000 MOW 
NE CM or nit 

In ON Cr 	011 

SAWA MUDDY IREARMIDA 	 00,DT 

EXHIBIT  2-  
Romer 

tr 
k 

	  N1  
PORTION OF THE NE QUARTER OF THE SE QUARTER. SECTION 23. TOWNSHIP 35 N.. RANGE 4 E. M.M. 	 INNIIIIMEI. i 

PUWAMMIKIL 	 Alaintiala=11 
19,3 15, 162020.2 or MARS C0/3711 VIASMOTCS. WEPT ?AI CST ID MT PICREON 
ALSO Pail MAT 131131 CTS31173 AS Mall 
DEMON AT IC 110121111C3 COMER Of ITC AMC ECSEASED Mom 	

EaRLATAIMINSI 

MILOS 941113 OR 07143 FHTSCAL aisneuanais 614031 EC ALLOYED TO BE LOCA113 2111.121 IMF SIC TAM MEAS. 
I. ITC SEC 3117ACK IS REINCED FROM IC 79 r. OCT MARS SRNS RC ALLAN ICIMICH ThrE 57NUCTUFCS. NO FENCES. 	

MO /TR REM a RE P313T OF MIND 20131:3911 321.40.110 	

onimmommernin 1 

I1C CAM 306 CET or LOT 3. SEDRO 031EAGE. AS PER PLC ISC71713) IN MAC 3 Er PLATS, 

ma EAGERLY ALCM AC 53111 AIMAI OF 033 ROAD NO 11C NOR114 ME OF SAO 	 2. MALLET Cf RECan ORANGE ROAMS. 1.13 STATE MEET. SEDRO-SOSIET. MA 90223 

MD 1TE OCT 
LOlA 

 Cr SON PAR= 

11C 1.37 IMAM A 10/310 Of Si MR 
1111343 03111013TERLY ALCM THE MC OF SAD CURVE TO 114C DST ORM Of PM ROAD 

	
♦ UTRATIES: 	SESIACC IMPGSA1, 	OTY C 3043-11031£7 

STOW SEVat 
1.1113 PURVE11319 	PALO. 1mi 

OTT OF 1010--11331EY 	

141"1‹ i 

1)00 SOURECY ADM NC V.37 ENE C SAO mai. A 043403 CC 20 61101/ 
nit:Na PILAU PMA01.11 110111 SAO SOSIM MCC A MAW 3 MW FUT TOR GAM 79 	

1. PLAT loneet AND DALE Cr APPROVAL 32131. 27 2101.1031 II ALL DEEDS AND CON1RACTS 	
= 

MEG. TO 11C /101111E/ST 0314437 oF MO PARCEL, 

THENCE ROR1142.0 COM SAD 1.431 MOM Cl SAID WEST GNI 10 RC 11711 a BECM910 	 POSER SOURCE 	PUCCT ROUND DERV 	 RCN Mum NOW 	 REPAY 133•0131CASON: 	FRONTCR. 
51111411 X TIE OTT 3 331-1233LET, 0233 OF 7.131 STATE Er 11A30010131 	 GAS: 	 CASCADE NATURAL DAS 03403RATION 	

1111110allj g 
mai It 	 5. 1.4074140115 ASSOGA71011 003401247S =MOM UNDER A. 	  
LOTS. SEEM CREAM, AS PER PLAT CCM= 21 CUM 3 OT PLATS. P.M 31 RECOPOS Or 
3321T CUNTS 40317341131, 01471 114 ROM 336 FEET MD RC SOUDI 134 MI THEW. AM 	 5. TIC LOTS AILIACENT TO VC TRAIL IND COX ROAD WOlTS-C-WAY SMALL NOT HAW A FENCE TALLER MAN FDIC FEET, 
0007/110 REST la FEET TICEPECF, LESS A PORTIOR 7 LOT 1 TSEORO CREAM: AS PER PLAT 	 MO ANA rua DISTALUED MALL DC LVIRDRU FOR 714r DIME MGM CF FRONTAOL LOTS 12-16 Ml LOTS 16-21 SMALL 
PETRICCD 3 

0.02
U  3 Cr PLATS. PAX 320CCRDS Cr SUSI MOM M31130734. MEM 	 NAVE A FRONT EOM COMO 0331 31 11144. ROAD. RCN A SOCRALS 10 11C OTT sALX. 

TIC 3391 3123 	AND NC 1011114 13 	71163C0f. No °SEPT 12C CST lo FEET 
1111793. L0003131 II TOE 1106114MT *MIER Cr 3COM 23, GAMMA SS SCRIM. RANGE 4 
EAST. KC 330 IICRE PARTICULARLY DE:asap) AS RUMS 

110100100M AT 114E 321711 EAST 1:3413 Of Tit SLAT 107111014 Cf LOT 3 PREMISS DISCROCID 
ONE ROOF NORM anew: lo-r KM 111E SOWN IBC OF 5141 PORTION OF SW UM 3 
TO ME PoLUMEST COWS 17 SAID PORTIM LO7 3 AO TNE 33134.10  WIT C WAY Of TRM, 
ROAD 21431 FEET MD DC MAT OF RE0,44N4. noia NMI 01401'061 0104 RC 
E441170.11 MITI C MAY Of TRAL MAO 030 FEET TO TIC 511117110ION YAM TIC FROMM Cr 
M 31:57116 FDIC2 TO 714E PAST. 110401 710R714 MI1'1r EAST CMG is 03110 RICE 10122 
Fat 114363 SOWN OCRS' EAST TO VIE 20111 LAC Cr NAT FOR1101 OF Imo tor 3 A 
DISTANCS a 137 FEET: MKS NORM 614434.  WV 101.36 F1ET TO TIC POT OF 11934400. 

03141306 200 S207. uoRE OR LESS 

STUATE PI 11C an. or scoreo-rsocurr, MINN C SCAM STATE 01 13941031902 
RICA/ PROVIDED RV LAND 1171r CMIPANT OF SKAGT COUNTY. ORDER NO. 12+509-15-71  
007E0 APRIL 11. 2007. 

11110FASEE 
MIR ALIO NOIIC FROMM MC 0610411 11=63. ILO MBA Pi RI 316 37 xIA 1.64311 
ANTED 02 HUM 0011 10 ix GOMM TO MC 1115 PLUM 17131n1 NO T. 	n/n 
NO CO 03333113 usE Or RE MCC ISPOOL SITESS ACCFS. NC 9051 KIWI ND TIC 
1/1 541311911 ILL PUSS NM= SAMOS 1111 SC ei ICME PAIS MCC 711110513 
1713131411 11111 ME ROO 70 al /1.1. MOWN ROM F01 MS 133 MA 0390   MAC MOS Rom 
WIC311 	13121114 1016041111 Man OF CLAM STASIS A10 ACM 99211 NUM 

DI WPCS 114:1001. 11C OR OS PM 6011222 7161 66410143 ID IC IMAM MUM ND NIKO MS 
Ea C -001. 

21341E HUMS. 11.0 

MENfilligraMt 

900a. 
)0 

OMIT OF 
I cony 30 116613 op SAE StRFAM,01 mem 	-._0 st MOM IRO 

AMMO mac sc No 96 rum ADomixe TOT Kat)  9RR  Tle  101006, 64 gal  mx  thu 
W IPS MOM= TO ORME M MAWR NO AMIE= CAS 'At   OF 

101.010,111. 201113-COUR. 70 ISCE An 2:63267 C1 Of Slal ROT MIlIC le13 
MA PCP= Inraca 14 AR 1631104. 

MR 	 3014. 

COPT MSC N AOIOI IC SIM Of 	  

ORSAT o1E 21 C 33267) 	  

StalgUELDINEWI 
1 IBM COPP SC mINE AE o MAIM ORM 09092130 1410 01 9661 ASSESSORS 3 Cr A 11C PROMPT 

130411[11 MSC AS MPS 4.1237 3 1111 MLR RIM ONE FAR II Ka 

116 _37 a _.._ IA  

37 MA U7000 

•= 
DAMS m AMMO 16 _CO - IN 

Off RIMS 

AMOCO IN BC WM OF in OM OF 903-cal/31 71301151 	Da OF 	2011 

MGR OW CLOS 	  

DARN 0041 1310 TO IE M COMO, WA IMCMIL 101410 NO Mr NOW MAIMS ND 
AMOCO 96 Pa OF - 224 

KIM ArT. 	 Munn NO COMM 23117630 DI61111. 

0P707(11104 OAKS 

Sound Development Group 
5VCN014( SUR VEY/NC & LAND DEVLIONNENT MINCES 
P O. Box 7705 • MI Cleveland Menus, Sulfa 202 
Mount Yerr101, WA 28273 
Tel' 360-404-2010 511, 360-404-2013  

PLAT FILE NO. 06 -SD -02 
PLAT OF ARBOR GLEN 

SECTION 23, TOWNSI-1)5 35 N„ RA NCE 4 E, W.N. 
Si<4011 COUNTY, STATE 01 WASH/WT[1N 

SSORO-WOOLLEY 
FOR 

ORAN= HOLDNOB 
MATE 02.30.13 
	

DI 	soots.  
PROJECT No. 13049 13042.000 P.O. 04141 

SURVEYORS CERVIX/LIZ 
11001 0001346 716 SIMI RAY 5 WO URN *ACM SIMEr NO 51204301 Of swam 11 
7313111  35 IMIIL Ma 4 PC 211. NE MN St 031613 661:11013 ME WM 024133 40 InT I 
1224 2041112 11111113 AMMO Of If MN= Re faktnio Or ME OW Or 107601I6). 

111CNAG. E WALE 'KS 
ALS 301221 



	 WOE MR II WM 
— — — DPI 020 40119111' 
	  011/EI041E 

EME/ IMO 
BOY NE1 0 
LIM IMF* 

DM/ NNW YOKE 

OEM On NM 
0 I NOW VOMIT 

- 0900 RIME 
COM Of .40041 

= VIM ON • OM 
EMU MP= 
17010 NMI 
0404 
OVIMICOMM 
04 WO ow 
of ma 

▪ ir AIL OE MOIR LIMO 
O -sorarawan gm= ast 
• EK rsho&pr ar arm u sow • ; 	for maw terwr Of 

UW 

II4000 MOW IMMO 
WOO 1190 EWE 0 WV 
MEOW MO COMM 
REPRO MI 
RIME 51011 
11111910 	 041201111111M 
.01400 	011091110 
00.101 MOW NM 
M000 111101010900 
NOM ammo won 
OMEN 111Mar 
40~ NM UK 
MEIN If OMNI 
041101010-111;WMIENY 
mow opor Amu 
moo M4 ,M IV= 
M/Pfit IV= 
WEIN MEW 
PPM MOM 
RPM EXAM 041 
REP= 4900040 IRMO MLA 

OWNER/DEVELOPER' 
NPR•• IMAM 
9her.... II NEIN 

..... ......... 

1.4 ..... • A.  

se 	 

hD  

.•- 
P76919 

755 IREE ROAD 

NORTH 

MAD MAO WM 
)01= 14 
449 61 4/111 

ME 1-17 

MEI EMT 

   

   

 

39496 

 

NE QUARTER OF THE SE QUARTER. SECTION 2S, TOWNSHIP 314 N.. RANGE 4 E. 71.14. 

ifrfht2 

Es  

RESEARCH 	 PORTION OF THE 
440 OW.4, 0". 40 040 MOM 

910441000 40010 194074710 
MW 90400000 95970 GE 900 ZOO 
001 00:9979491 WOW 0 900 COW 
MW 090.419:01 WOOS 0' 900 000 

IMEALEARIN2 
nc LA-951' wino SEM lit 1141904 711E 	601411 CUM MC ix 133163111I2 =RUG 
mot 14011613. 51115 scum or is MC WE 1110346. XIS 6 WO UAL 	 n-I5 16511191144 16 

1893411XLSOI 
1111 9401  MIS 46611593 1 1110.111115134 404111651/ A AO A 41194 Moo WC 
FROLOC1 on 4E90. 0400 MR 031110E 41- EV (9 P40. IDS 01 
134116 3940403 SU FORM W 530. IX 36-44, 

1ST CI1NOT11a0S NOTE; 
1116 11111011115 6.15C4o 031611116 Wel SUSICT WPM 2040 WOW 6911 

411141041  MEd 090 OM MIX MO 20,66 OW 

Fan 1101446 11 064 
RICK ME 004421 9431 

MAO 193/5101111 USE 
NCI IOW 4404 1.560 

110 

I
fl 

4NIEMW5 
,YN anonym 

li a  

.......... 

	  565110119 

IlicaltataaktEMEgta 
rwy 11111.0M IMP. LEE 

10/1111% 
NV NEM MAW WL Pta 

OMO 

PA if /IN 
961111111 NI MO 

4•414111 
41-410 

ImpeolIll∎  

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 
R-I5 11140104161 15 

rOMII TIELINEADO 
LW 141190101-1E 

1 
, 	 .... 

• - - 

..... — 	 11.5• 	 . 

• • 
	 tRAIL ji}  616  iiMirliElE0P4610 0 	 

SHEET 2 OF 5 

SURVEYORS CERTIFICAT3 
1141 WAFT TRU MS stir iiiro Woo) ono Po VIC 2064 910 546561011 a 690 13. 
140615. OS MOM MCC 4 GA 419 NO 1116 RE 419615 MC 001344 ME 510111 1:0=147 NO MU I 
0€ COMA .7h DE 410500 CV DE SEEM MO 11119466199 Of RC 011 OF 90310-011.. 

1434I9 C 11616. 114.3 
oLs .7042. 

Sound Development Croup 
B4C7NLERIK .5149YING & MW DEVELOPMENT' SaVICES 

P.O. Bar 1705 • 7III Cferefand Aran., SM. 202 
Mount V.wrar, WA 98273 
roq• 360-404-2010 Far: 360-404-2013 

PLAT PILE NO. 00 — SD— 02 
PLAT OF ARBOR GLEN 

SECTION 23, TOWNSHIP 35 N. RANCE 4 E, W.M. 
SPAON COUNTY, STATE OF W4546NO1014 

SEDRO-WOOUEY 
FOn 

OMMEHOUNCO 
133 STATE 57/1557. 509/0-111001LEY, 154 

ONE: 07_)0.13 
	

40: OE 
I 

WELL  
 Eh. EOM 7163467 43. 13049 13049410 



PORTION OF THE NE QUARTER OF THE SE QUARTER. SECTION 23. TOWNSHIP SIS N., RANGE 4 E, A.H. 

ZONING AND SETBACKS: 	TRACT TABLE 

TRACT TYPE TRACT NAME AREA 
6901 SPACE - AMISS 992 1367 SF 

993 1071 SF 
994 2376 SF 

WC! RETANIED 8r OWNER 995 3319 SF 

CM SPACE - LANDSCAPAG 995 1534 St 
997 226 SF 
998 229 SF 

2000 R-15 
SEM= STE 5: REAR ANO FRONT 10: 

SITE INFORMATION: 
971 AREA AMY ROW DEDICA1704k 107453 SF (2.47 ACRES) 
AIR) OF ROW 0EDIC41101t 679 	(am ACRES) 

GWEN SAX Moscone 2289 sr (Pas ACRES) 
ORIGINAL APPROPEO PRELIMIII4R7 PEA7 LAWSGIPAK-  5967 (014 APO) 

OM SPACE AXM ON SF 0211 ACRES) 
LOT ARE• 71,699 SF 0.65 Apaav 
Irma ROWED er amiM 431e sr (am Kris) 

66IL7RA1J0N MERV Ma 4463 MORE FEE X 3•  DEFY 

NORTH 

1 TRACT 993 	TRACT 997 	 R 	
.iRAcr 994. .:- ,.' 	44.9..---\ 	.. 

-5 	• 	 ' - MI 101 	 ... 

LOT 12 	V3w(111—--1 1--TI1F -1 71 r- - i 1-- 7 ".1 4"°' 	1," .-r7-•.' -1 I ', Tmitcr 995 

NW 

L  34:02c2c1Fritt 1 	1-  ,... 	I I LOT 101 1 1 

	

3000 50 Fr 	

LOT 
9  I ' larg 8F2 I 1 LOT97;r1 1 	1 	nislcir  7 	° 	LOT 5 ! 1 

0 L0f1-140.! ""4  ! 1 aw Ac  Ir 1\ wff Ac  0 I c°714  0!  I LOT 	Ar',,  	
c4,crl.  I : 

L i"ca&s2cFrl IR 	i I 	i I 	I il 	I I .07^.1 P t. 
 

as 	 — 50370L:2—  -- r4  

L 	4.,,,a, •:,,,,I,...,INNAISMHEra 	 rilltasei Einane a  
007 AC 

,y2.• 401PERNiMMISIIMOOMMM 	BLIEGIMAI  MINM 

4. 	
Jr_Liiiit L. 1-105111 / 

.; _025721.C.:.1.-'---- 

1-61- 	i ,. 
3000 SQ 
LOT 13 to 

IS 	
t--,-.,i 	. • .41..44.07 

, r-  — — —ea_ 
I LOT 14 
L 1 mrdR„ff 

sr,' gut 

■ 	 a• 	 Mar 	 517 

WIRRIPQ1 

LOT 
LOT 22 1.0Tsct151 r  2r0 	 I . 

992 KEW  :" 

Mt  Tal 	

134w $42c, I _I LOT 20! LCI‘TAR2F1 I 	 
LOT 19 I  k 

DO AVM 
—507—  

077 AC 

551_ 	
::'5t  71—  

tb7"35C2C 	
ne:Fr 	

—LO'is718,  ;It 	

1997 	I 	 I 	j 	1 _1111.C_ —__to—:=1:2_: 
I 	I l'als'ATI I "s''` 

3.7.11■C"_ 	 -1:::0;__\ 	I 	 2-  —I 	 UrW9't"  

IIN Etito 	 0219111 111 	 Woli 

ierufavn 

LOT 1 	ii 

inalocm 	_ 

SIWYORS CERTIJTCL2E 
I IMP COM 144 1115 PM MAT 15 WM If 1A XIX MC ND 1015501 R =AU 
MOP n 10105 MICE 4 ca.* AO 71411 PC COMO MC 060503 ME SOW 7•0117 AO MU I 
MR MUD WIx1K 70410043 OF MC 0771700 24202161111( CM Q 5070-000113. 

volza-CNINE-FEr"---  
PL5 30425 

q. 	  TRAIL ROAD  
PLAT  DIMENSIONAL PLAN 

Sound Development Group 
PAGVEERINSSLRY6374G 4 L1.92 DEVLICAPARia MINCES 
P.O. Box 1705 - 1111 Cleveland Arenu., Sulte 202 
Mount 02000, WA 98273 
Tea 360-404-2010 Fax 360-404-2013 

—J 

SGLL  

52:x PROAECT 470. INwe 130.4.0m 

SHEET 3 OF 5 

PLAT FILE NO. 08—ED-02 
PLAT OF ARBOR GLEN 

SECCON 23, TOWNSHIP 35 It. RANCE 4 E. W.M. 
SKAG/T COUNTY. STATE OF WASHINGTON 

SEORO-WOOLIEY 
FOR 

GRANITE HOLDINGS 
133 STOW MIXT, $7310-110011115 WA 

006: 09.3013 
	

94. 742 

.24.1ar;A_CE 



......... 
........... 

.... ■ ..... 
......... .• 	 • • 

Or: TAZ t96614  
PROJECT WO. 11549 13049.009 	 IA. al 11 

-E 
—S9 

PORTION OF THE NE QUARTER OF THE SE QUARTER. SECTION 23, TOWNSHIP 35 N.. RANGE 4 E, 
Juno{ MO PLAPINGS 	 JAWLSOIRE 

01)+1( Wan Mr PPE MN 
MIMES 	 DPW Wit 017711 

(1.4.  

TRE111197 SWO (+woo...7DR In 
+mem AS wrintwer, Ma /Pomp 
GLOIECHNICAn PPOSPIX ,IPPROM 
Rr 04170.1 °Wm. RAM AW 
014.4.J5 

 net
00+1112il. Pay nen Jo 

TIJWS or Anowr 000 
ale1703 	 REwinuRAPS 
A Tr4041490.  

30909509 POE 
PCP PINT 

39 , 	. 3e 
SCALE 1" 30' 

NORTH 

tor a? 0.L4 

I 	 11-.I 

J.  IN. TRACT 997 

. 	I 
IltACTS095 

- et. 	 .1.0T 4 	I 

LOT tII' 

111 

I  LOTH 	LOT 10  

LOT II 

p 
..................... 

19 
....... 

i NU 	̀'Wgiri taigi iMri EisEiMIWira i r. Voil--"" 

wgrkilesso 	 TRAIL ROAD  !  
I I 	/ 

UTILITY PLAN SHEET 4 OF 5 

6111=21/910ERTIEMON 
RCM COM MI OE sort h1.1 6 CHID WWI MI ALMA MET NO SW:619011 Ct SIII01 11  

MOO 16 WIMI, Wiigt 1051. VC. 010 OW RE CORD NO ZOOM ME 2171.1 TOWEEILT NO IWO I 
RAE CORM WIN TIE 110 0%R 110 TWIST AC PE2E41016 PM 077 OF 4Di1-102111 

WEL E. WARE LOS 
PL5 30405 

Sound Development Group 
SlATIOINC & LAND OfV30,4194T SERY7CFS 

P.O. Box 1705 • 1151 C.Nratnef A.m.., Suits 202 
*Anal Vernon, WI 98273 
Tot 380-404-2050 Vac 360-404-2013 

PLAT FILE NO. 06-SD-02 
PLAT OF ARBOR GLEN 

SECTION 23, TOWNSHIP 45 N., RANGE 4 Or, W.W. 
SKAGIT COUNTS, STATE OF WASHINGTON 

SEDRO-WOOLLEY 

GRANTOIOLDNCS 
ISO STATE snort, SEOR0-000.1.ET, WA 

DATE 09.50.13 

0:1XW109 1•245 OWL I C ASOLLID 
norm 1/: 

DANA .1001 4'4 sr 0+1+4 PM Mr 270 

COSMO MCI( GROWOMMER 

• .....--1-11fATMDIT 	INFILMATKIN  
W.,  Maar 0.4O-ACE 

401 TO SCALE 

TYPE t CATCH BASIN ELBOW  
NOT TO SCALE 



MOT .YES 
ICU - NSW IINJO AT Jr X NI VINSON!' ION. 
SAC /73PO..c tworre MIZORAM A, NEE 
MOO NOt re COOMVOIN 

XII - PM L" ANN Mt NO OW NW NNIS-CFNAI 
Nil E ORM NO Or A P7077.06 WPM Ni IN MR CNN 4' 

MEM 

TOICAL LOT ACCESS FROM 	
ri 

sTutT MONTACi 
LOTS .016, NY+ LOTS Is- 

SCA. r" • .17' 

30 ? 30e 

SCAll = 3o' 
NORTH 

---------- 	 
meow wiciater 

-1 	

• 	'73 

q•. 

	

I 	 1  14I MN 	..— 	 : SW 

	

I 	 T7 . 

	

f 	 t ' 101..21 	
. 	tr 	40,11 

	

LOT IS

, • 	: 	1 

	

, 	 LI .: 	II:' 	
p. 

rR,,cr 996 	 10 	i V 	 L1.1..  	el - 	- 	- ; 	! —1 	--- 4.4.:_.-1, 11  
RIE 	.111Ir 	 Oath 	 St:;./ZEMIIIMIL'in 

ia=rr:=1100.13111EMINXEMOVAlittlMffk}ggagligneAMINFLP_MIKORNEMVPre-41 	. ',7*,,VEISINMtlWAI 
■•••■-■••.-.....■..--. morm■..ur■-■■••■- ••■■■•• 

--- 

. 1,...M. 
-- 4 
	 ;° -,8.-Ar......=.4.=.1,-,    

A 	  21---.. 

	

TRAIL ROAD 
	 1 u 

31111121111111SERTInati1t ...ow CUM 941 INS MUM/ 6 inin 10040 /OWL SAO Ma suporosal Cr an a 
UMW 3$ Mat Ma 4 DA IN IND 114011E WRIT 04)1059403 NE slam MEM 740004 I 
TYPE CortED CI OE MAME Cr If SWIM 00 Rialgten ff nE of c 53■11.100.LLT. 

  

—COTE— a t YORE 
30423 

 

SITE LAYOUT 

Sound Development Group 
ENCINHMIN4 SlAtifinNC F L46L D67101141NT SERVICES 
P.O. Sat 7705 • 1111 Cleveland Avenue, Salle 202 

1YA 96275 
Ten 260-404-2010 fax. 560-404-2015 

SHEET 5 OF 5 

PLAT FILE NO. 06-SD--02 
FLAT OF ABHOR GLEN 

SECTION 23, TOWNSHIP 35 N., RANGE 4 E, 
SKAGIT COUNTY. STATE OF WASMOTON 

anArcriTioumata 
13.3 MS MET. ]0R0-INCOILET, 

DAL NMI] 	 047 TAZ I scALLZSCC.: 
INELEL7 NO. 13041 130.4.1X10 

PORTION OF THE NE QUARTER OF THE SE QUARTER, SECTION 23, TOWNSHIP 35 Dr., RANGE 4 E. X.M. 



PROVED AS TO FORM: ATTEST: 

K. sfiabon/ 
City C rk 	 City Attorney 

rc rk,e, K pri741r--v- 

RESOLUTION NO. 727-06 

'W 77 
Li—  11 

   

A RESOLUTION GRANTING PRELIMINARY APPROVAL FOR THE "PLAT OF 
ARBOR GLEN," A 22-LOT SUBDIVISION AND AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND 

HER DESIGNEE(S) TO SIGN ALL PRELIMINARY PLAT APPROVAL DOCUMENTS 

WHEREAS, Himalaya Homes Inc., a Washington Corporation, has applied for preliminary plat 
approval for a 22-lot subdivision, attached hereto as Exhibit A; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Sedro-Woolley Planning and Public Works staff reviewed the proposed 
preliminary plat and determined the preliminary plat has met the requirements of SWMC 
chapters 15, 16 and 17; and 

WHEREAS, the Sedro-Woolley Planning Commission held an open record public hearing for 
the application on Tuesday, May 16, 2006 and public testimony was received and considered; 
and 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission determined that the application was technically 
compliant with SWMC Ch. 16.20 and recommended approval of the proposed preliminary plat 
with a variance to reduce the side yard setback from 8ft to 5ft to the City Council. A copy of the 
Planning Commissions Findings of Fact, Conclusions and Decision/Recommendation is attached 
hereto as Exhibit B. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Sedro-Woolley, 
Washington adopts the Findings of Fact and Conclusions in the attached Planning Commission 
Findings of Fact, Conclusions and Decision/Recommendation. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Council finds that preliminary plat application # 
06-SD-2, Preliminary Plat of Arbor Glen, meets the requirements of SWMC 16.20 and should be 
given preliminary plat approval with a variance to reduce the side yard setback from 8ft to 5f1, 
subject to conditions stated in the Planning Commission's Findings of Fact, Conclusions and 
Decision/Recommendation and the SEPA Mitigated Determination of Non-significance dated 
April 19, 2006. 

Sharon D. Dillon, Mayor 

Resolution 
Preliminary Plat Approval — Arbor Glen (06-SD-2) 



BEFORE THE PLANNING COMMISSION 
OF THE CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 

In the Matter of: 

ORIGINAL 

Preliminary Plat Approval #06-SD-2 
Himalaya Homes Inc. 
9633 Market Place, Suite 201 
Lake Stevens, WA 98258 

FINDINGS OF FACT, 
CONCLUSIONS AND DECISION / 

RECOMMENDATION 

This matter having come regularly before the City of Sedro-Woolley Planning Commission for a 
public hearing on Tuesday. May 16.2006  under an application filed with the City of Sedro-
Woolley by the applicant requesting Preliminary Plat Approval for a 22-lot subdivision as 
described and located in the Planning Department Staff Report hereby attached and made a part 
of this decision, which property is identified as Parcels P76918 and P76919 . 

Notice having been given to all property owners within 500 feet of said property and all matters 
submitted at the public hearing having been considered together with the testimony, evidence and 
exhibits in open hearing and made a part of the record in this matter, the Planning Commission 
makes the following: 

FINDINGS OF FACT 

1. On February 22, 2006 Himalaya Homes Inc. submitted a subdivision application to divide 
approximately 2.486 acres zoned Residential 15 (R-15) into 22 residential lots. The 
application was assigned permit number 06-SD-2. The application also contained a 
written request to reduce the side yard setback from 8ft for a two story structure to 5ft. 

2. Sedro-Woolley Municipal Code (SWMC) Chapters 2, 15, 16 and 17 apply to this project. 
The application has been reviewed in accordance with the State Environmental Policy 
Act (WAC 197-11-800(6)(b)) and a Mitigated Determination of Non-Significance 
(MDNS) was issued on April 14, 2006. No appeal of the determination was filed. 

Finding of Fact, Conclusions and Decision 
Preliminary Plat Approval # 06-SD-2 
Parcel s P76918 and P76919 

Page 1 of 6 EXHIBIT LI 
To ► IERto..6 EYA•Avse-e i-t-RDET ftr  

OR‘4(1-)itt- A9PRoVikr-1N2O% 



3. The subject parcel was reviewed for compliance under the Sedro-Woolley Critical Areas 
Ordinance as codified under Title 17.65. No critical areas were identified on the subject 
project site. 

4. The Comprehensive Plan and Zoning Code designation for this property is Residential 15 
(R-15). R-15 zoning districts allow one single-family residence per lot (SWMC 
17.16.010) with no minimum lot size (SWMC 17.16.030). 

5. On March 10, 2006 a plan review letter was mailed to Summit Engineering and 
Surveyors requesting addition information and corrections to be made. 

6. On April 11, 2006 a Notice of Complete Application was e-mailed to Himalaya Homes 
Inc. 

7. A Variance to reduce the side yard setback is subject to the review criteria found in 
SWMC 17.60.060 Criteria — Zoning Waivers. 

" . . . the criteria for approving the zoning exception shall be as follows: 

A. No detriment will result to the neighbors or the public in general; 

B. Special circumstances exist that make compliance with the bulk restrictions 
impractical or unreasonable; 

C. Provisions are made so that the purpose and intent of the bulk restrictions are still 
maintained, such as privacy, access and street layout." 

8. Pursuant to SWMC 17.60.060 (A) the applicant is required to document that no detriment 
will result to the neighbors or the public in general. The applicant has provided 
information that ensures City Staff that fire access in those areas of the proposed plat 
where the setback is reduced will be maintained and there will be no detriment to the 
neighbors or the public in general. 

9. Pursuant to SWMC 17.60.060 (B) the applicant is required to document any special 
circumstances that would make compliance with the bulk restrictions impractical or 
unreasonable. The applicant has provided information that there are special 
circumstances which would make compliance with an eight foot side yard setback 
impractical or unreasonable. 

of Fact, Conclusions and Decision 
Plat Approval # 06-SD-2 

	
Page 2 of 6 

Palled s P76918 and P76919 



10. Pursuant to SWMC 17.60.060 (C) Provisions are to be made so that the purpose and 
intent of the bulk restrictions are still maintained, such as privacy, access and street 
layout. The applicant has provided information indicating they will not allow fences, 
shrubs and/or bushes within the reduced setback area so as to maintain fire access to roofs 
and second stories. The applicant has further stated these restrictions will be included in 
the proposed development's CCRs and recorded on the face of the plat so as to be 
disclosed during purchases and sales. 

11. On April 14, 2006 a Notice of Application and SEPA MDNS was issued and published in 
the local paper on April 19, 2006. One comment was received and no appeals of the 
SEPA determination were filed. 

12. On April 24, 2006 a Notice of Public Hearing was mailed to adjacent property owners 
within 500ft and published in the local paper. 

13. On April 25, 2006 the subject property was posted with Notice of Pending Land Use 
signs by the applicant. 

14. On May 12, 2006 a written comments were submitted by John Lee, 820 Cook Road, 
Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284. 

15. The following exhibits were provided to the Planning Commission and are hereby made 
apart of the record. 

A. Preliminary Plat Application 
B. Preliminary Plat Map 
C. SEPA Checklist 
D. Notice of Application and MDNS 
E. Notice of Public Hearing 
F. Affidavit of Mailing 
G. Affidavit of Posting 
H. Post Master Comments 
L Public Comments 

a. John Lee, 820 Cook Road, Sedro-Woolley 

Finding of Fact, Conclusions and Decision 
Preliminary Plat Approval # 06-SD-2 

	
Page 3 of 6 

Parcel s P76918 and P76919 



CONCLUSIONS 

The Planning Commission, having duly considered the matter and all testimony and evidence 
presented at the public hearing and submitted while the record was open, makes the following 
conclusions: 

1. Sedro-Woolley Municipal Code (SWMC) Chapters 2, 15, 16 and 17 apply to this project. 
The application has been reviewed in accordance with the State Environmental Policy 
Act (WAC 197-11-800(6)(b)) and a Mitigated Determination of Non-Significance 
(MDNS) was issued on April 14, 2006. No appeal of the determination was filed. 

2. The application was determined complete on April 11, 2006 and is considered vested 
under the rules and regulations in effect on April 11, 2006. 

3. City staff reviewed the application pursuant to the design criteria and technical standards 
for subdivisions in SWMC Chapters 15, 16 and 17 and found the application to be in 
conformance. 

4. A variance to reduce the side yard setback is subject to the review criteria found in 
SWMC 17.60.060. Staff reviewed the applicants request to reduce the side yard setback 
from 8ft to 5ft within portions of the proposed project and has determined that no 
detriment will result to the neighbors or the public in general; there are special 
circumstances which would make compliance with an eight foot side yard setback 
impractical; and provisions are being made so that the purpose and intent of the bulk 
restrictions will still be maintained. 

5. Public notice was property conducted pursuant to SWMC 2.90. 

6. Written comments were timely received by John Lee of 820 Cook Road, Sedro-Woolley 
on May 12, 2006 and are hereby made part of the record. 

7. This is an open record hearing authorized pursuant to SWMC 16.08.024 and 2.90.010(3). 

Finding of Fact, Conclusions and Decision 
Preliminary Plat Approval # 06-SD-2 

	
Page 4 of 6 

Parcel s P76918 and P76919 



DECISION / RECOMMENDATION 

BASED UPON 	FOREGOING Findings of Fact and Conclusions, the City of Sedro- 
Woolley Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City Council APPROVAL  of the 
Preliminary Plat of Arbor Glen, a 22-lot subdivision, subject to the following conditions. 

1. Comply with the mitigation measures included in the SEPA MDNS issued April 14, 2006 
and as set forth below: 

a) Impact Fees and General Facilities charges shall be assessed and collected at the 
rate adopted by ordinance at the time of building permit issuance; 

b) Submit a lighting plan indicating the location of any lighting within the project. 
Lighting shall be shielded so as not to spill onto neighboring properties; 

c) Locate and install fire hydrants as approved by the Fire Chief; 

d) Contribute voluntary police impact fees of $202.96 per unit as per the City of 
Sedro-Woolley Comprehensive Plan Capital Facilities Element; 

e) Coordinate Public Transportation Improvements, as may be required, with Skagit 
Transit (SKAT); 

f) Locate and install of mailboxe(s) as approved by the Postmaster; 

g) Coordinate School District mitigation, as may be required, with the Sedro-
Woolley School District; 

h) Coordinate installation of public water infrastructure improvements with Skagit 
Public Utility District No. 1; 

i) Provide playground equipment for the designated play area with equipment 
suitable for a variety of age groups as approved by the Planning Director; 

j) Provide 10ft wide street landscaping pursuant to SWMC 17.50.050, along Cook 
and Trail Roads; 

k) Re-stripe lanes on Trail Road pursuant to SWMC 16.08.052 and as approved by 
the City Engineer; 

1) Increase sidewalk width to 11' along Trail Road frontage, and 8' along Cook 
Road frontage as approved by City Engineer. 

m) Dedicate an additional 10' ROW along Trail Road frontage and 3' along Cook 
Road frontage 

Finding of Fact, Conclusions and Decision 
Preliminary Plat Approval # 06-SD-2 	 Page 5 of 6 
Parcel s P76918 and P76919 



n) Hours of construction shall be limited to 7:00 a.m. to 9:00 p.m. weekdays and 
8:00 a.m. to 9:00 p.m. weekends as required in SWMC 9.46.020; 

o) All construction traffic shall use an approved temporary construction access with 
a 100' geotextile and quarry spall construction entrance; 

p) Comply with Northwest Clean Air Agency Regulations during construction 
activities. 

q) Comply with all local, state and federal regulations, including Sedro-Woolley 
Municipal Code Title 13.36 Stormwater Management Standards; Title 13.40 
Stormwater Facilties Maintenance; Title15.40 Public Works Construction 
Standards; Title 16 Subdivisions, Title 17 Zoning; Sedro-Woolley Public Works 
Design Standards and the Sedro-Woolley Comprehensive Plan. 

2. Submit a play area design which includes equipment suitable for a variety of age groups 
for approval by the City Planning Director prior to final plat approval. 

3. In all locations where the side yard setback is reduced from 8ft to 5ft only grass shall be 
allowed between the structures. No fences, shrubs, bushes or other physical obstructions 
shall be allowed to be located within the side yard areas. This restriction shall be 
recorded on the face of the final plat prior to recording as well as stated in the CCRs. 

4. Locate and Install post office boxes at the corner of Sali Drive and Trail Road pursuant to 
the Post Master comments received April 17, 2006. 

5. Construction of all required infrastructure improvements, including, but not limited to, 
streets, curbs, gutters, sidewalks, landscaping, street lighting and play areas shall be 
completed prior to final plat application or bonding in an amount approved by the City 
Engineer shall be filed with the City. 

DECIDED / RECOMMENDED this  16174  day of MAY  , 2006 

Dan Lefeber 
Planning Commission Chairman 



John Coleman 

From: 	 john@johnjleecpa.com  

Sent: 	 Thursday, December 26, 2013 9:24 AM 

To: 	 John Coleman 

Subject: 	 22 lotsd 

Public comment: 

I support the plans for 22 lots on the corner of Trail Road and Cook Road. New single family homes will enhance our 

neighborhood, help the sales tax and utility tax for the city, help local businesses like Food Pavilion and the new 

Pharmacy on Hwy 20 as well as local restaurants and drive ins. 

John Lee 
820 & 829 Cook Road Sedro-Woolley, WA 

EXHIBIT  5  

mcp 
1 



LARRY JENSEN 

15356 PRODUCE LANE 

MOUNT VERNON WA. 98273 

360-428-7893 OFFICE 

CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 

PLANNING DEPARTMENT 

325 METCALF STREET. 

SEDRO-WOOLLEY WA. 98284 

RE:FILE #06-SD-02-PLAT OF ARBOR GLEN (attached letter) 

Dear Planning Dept., 

I am writing this letter in support of the proposed development. I assume I was 

notified as I have an interest in a couple of properties in the vicinity. 

I think the development is good for the community and good for the tax base of 

the city and I personally would like to see it approved. 



ADDENDUM TO THE MITIGATED DETERIVIINATION OF NONSIGNIFICANCE 
(MDNS) 

FOR PRELIMINARY PLAT OF SALI JUELLES (NOW ARBOR GLEN) 

ADDENDUM SUMMARY: This addendum modifies the SEPA review conducted for the preliminary 
plat of Sali belles (now named Arbor Glen), originally approved for 22 residential lots in the Residential 
15 (R-15) zone. The project includes the construction of a new local access road and the utilities 
necessary to serve the residences. The application includes a variance request (approved in 2006) to 
allow a reduction of the standard 8-foot side setback for 2-story buildings to 5 feet. This addendum 
addresses the applicant's request to subdivide the property into 23 lots instead of the originally approved 22 
lots and modifies the SEPA DNS issued for the project issued April 14, 2006. The original SEPA checklist 
proposed 23 lots, but the applicant only sought approval for 22 at that time. Because the current request to 
construct 23 lots is consistent with the original checklist, no modifications to the checklist are required 

PROPONENT: Rubicon Development, LLC, 901 Metcalf Street 1134, Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284. 

PROJECT LOCATION: 755 Cook Road and 605 Trail Road in the City of Sedro-Woolley. 

LEAD AGENCY: Sedro-Woolley Planning Department, Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284. 

FINDINGS: The lead agency for this proposal has determined that it does not have a probable significant 
adverse impact on the environment. An environmental impact statement (EIS) is not required under 
RCW 43.21C.030(2)(C). This addendum adds information about the proposal but does not substantially 
change the analysis of significant impacts or alternatives in the existing environmental document. This 
decision was made after review of a completed environmental checklist and other information on file 
with the lead agency. Changes to the conditions of the MDNS issued April 14, 2006 are neither proposed 
nor necessary. This information is available to the public on request. 

COMMENT PERIOD: Since an addendum does not contain "significant" new information, a comment 
period is not required. 

APPEAL PERIOD: There is no administrative appeal of a final environmental threshold determination. 
All appeals shall be commenced pursuant to the provisions of RCW 43.21C and WAC 197-11. 

CONTACT PERSON: John Coleman, Planning Director 
SEPA RESPONSIBLE OFFICIAL: John Coleman, Planning Director 
ADDRESS: 325 Metcalf Street, Secho-Woolley, WA 98284 
PHONE: (360) 855-0771 

Date: March 7, 2014 Signature: 
oleman, Planning Director 

EXHIBIT co_ 



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
Tuesday May 13, 2014 at 10:00AM  
Sedro-Woolley Municipal Courtroom 

325 Metcalf Street, Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284 

Application: 06-SD-02, Preliminary Plat of Arbor Glen 

Applicant: Rubicon Development, LLC, 901 Metcalf St. #34, Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284 

Contact: 	Rubicon Development, LLC, ATTN: Bob Ruby 
901 Metcalf St. #34, Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284 

Address: 	755 Cook Road and 605 Trail Road, Sedro-Woolley 

Project: 	The proposal is to subdivide two undeveloped properties into 23 residential lots. 
The proposal is a modification of an approved subdivision design that has yet to 
be constructed. The original preliminary plat approval was for 22 lots, including a 
variance to reduce side yard setbacks from 8 feet to 5 feet. The new proposal is 
for 23 lots; the street configuration is similar and the side yard setback variance 
will still apply. The complete revised application was received November 27, 
2013. The subdivision will require construction of a road, stormwater system and 
utilities necessary to serve the proposed lots. File #06-SD-02. 

Public Comment: Interested persons may appear and provide testimony at the hearing and 
request a copy of the decision. Written testimony may also be submitted until 
9:00 AM of the date of the public hearing to: John Coleman, Planning Director, 
City of Sedro-Woolley, 325 Metcalf Street, Sedro-Woolley, Washington, 98284, 
or by email: jcoleman0,ci.sedro-woolley.wa.us.  

Documents are available for review at: The City of Sedro-Woolley Planning Department, 
Monday through Friday, 8:00 AM to 5:00 PM. Project documents are available 
for review at no cost; copies will be provided at the requestor's cost. For more 
information, contact the Sedro-Woolley Planning Department at (360) 855-0771. 
A staff report will be available seven days prior to the hearing. 

Hearing Examiner: The Sedro-Woolley Hearing Examiner will hold an open record public 
hearing on the Preliminary Plat of Arbor Glen at 10:00AM, Tuesday, May 13, 
2014 at the Sedro-Woolley Municipal Courtroom, 325 Metcalf Street. Based on 
the information presented to the Hearing Examiner and the testimony at that 
hearing, the Hearing Examiner will make a recommendation to the City Council 
whether to approve, approve with conditions or deny preliminary approval of the 
proposed Plat of Arbor Glen. 

Notice Published: Friday, April 25, 2014 
	

EXHIBIT 
'TO 	ek 	rKA-0A eg- 
g c-pcNa_y_ 



Permit Technician 
oolley 

Jo 
City 

AFFIDAVIT OF MAILING 

STATE OF WASHINGTON) 

COUNTY OF SKAGIT ) 
CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 

I, JoAnn Lazaron, of the Sedro-Woolley Planning Department of Sedro-Woolley, Washington, 
do hereby swear that on April 25, 2014, I mailed a true and correct copy of the attached "Notice 
of Public Hearing" to the following names and addresses: 

SEE ATTACHED SHEETS 
The proposal is to subdivide two parcels of R-15 zoned property into 23 lots. File #06-SD-02 

Said notices were enclosed in sealed envelopes, addressed as above with postage fully affixed 
and deposited in the United States Post Office at Sedro-Woolley, Washington on said date. 

EXHIBIT 8  
-ro t-k-ar-Lc--,, exo'nvitwerz-
F.,src:R._-r 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

JUN 1 1 2014 

7:00 P.M. COUNCIL ElAMBER1, 
AGENDA NO. 	  

Building and Planning Departments 
Sedro-Woolley Municipal Building 

325 Metcalf Street 
Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284 

Phone (360) 855-0771 
Fax (360) 855-0733 

MEMO: 

To: 
	

City Council 
Mayor Anderson 

From: 	John Coleman, AICP 
Planning Director 

Date: 	June 11, 2014 

Subject: Proposed modification to the Municipal Code regarding sidewalk dining in the Central 
Business District — (1st  Read) 

ISSUE 

Should the Council amend Chapter 10.44 SWMC to allow the use of public sidewalks in front of 
restaurants in the Central Business District to be used for sidewalk dining? 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION / HISTORY 

In 2012 and 2013 the Council approved ordinances that allowed the use of sidewalks and the public 
parking spaces in front of restaurants in the Central Business District (CBD) to be used as private 
dining areas. Those ordinances were both temporary and have expired. There has not been support 
from the community to continue the program to allow dining areas in the parking spaces, but there is 
still strong interest in sidewalk dining. 

The City Council Business Development Committee discussed sidewalk dining at its May 23 
meeting and requested that staff draft an ordinance to address the issue. The attached ordinance 
would modify Chapter 10.44 — Stopping, Standing and Parking, to permanently allow sidewalk dining 
in the CBD under certain conditions. The proposed ordinances would not allow dining areas over the 
on-street parking spaces. 

ATTACHMENT 

Attachment 1 — Proposed Ordinance 

REQUESTED ACTION  

1st  Read - no action requested 



Attachment 1 

Proposed Ordinance 



ORDINANCE NO. 	 -14 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE SEDRO-WOOLLEY MUNICIPAL CODE TO 
ALLOW SIDEWALK PRIVATE DINING AREAS FOR RESTAURANTS IN THE 

CENTRAL BUSINESS DISTRICT 

WHEREAS, the Sedro-Woolley formerly enacted a pilot program to allow sidewalk ding 
and dining areas over on-street parking spaces in the Central Business District (CBD); 
and 

WHEREAS, the City of Sedro-Woolley Planning Commission thoroughly reviewed the 
impacts and benefits of sidewalk cafes made final recommendations for amendments to 
chapters 10.44 and 17.04 of the SWMC to enable the safe and lawful development of a 
sidewalk cafe program in Sedro-Woolley; and 

WHEREAS, a SEPA environmental checklist was reviewed and an MDNS was issued 
on May 31, 2012; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to RCW 36.70A.106, a notice of intent to adopt a development 
regulation was sent to the Washington State Department of Commerce; 

WHEREAS, on June 27, 2012 the City Council reviewed the Planning Commission's 
findings and recommendations and approved Ordinance 1747-12, an ordinance amending 
the Sedro-Woolley Municipal Code to allow street and sidewalk private dining areas 
(sidewalk cafes) for restaurants in the CBD as well as adopting the Planning Commission 
findings found in the Findings of Fact, Conclusions and Recommendations dated May 30, 
21012; and 

WHEREAS, Ordinance 1747-12 allowed for a pilot program for sidewalk cafes that 
lasted from May 15 and September 25 of 2012 and Ordinance 1771-13 continued that 
pilot program until December 31, 2013; and 

WHEREAS, after reviewing the results of the sidewalk cafes pilot program, the City 
Council finds that there is no interest in the "over on-street parking dining areas" but 
there is still strong interest in sidewalk dining area and therefore a permanent program 
allowing sidewalk dining in the CBD is in the best interest of the community; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds the proposed amendments to the Sedro-Woolley 
Municipal Code to be consistent with and to implement the intent of the Sedro-Woolley 
Comprehensive Plan; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council has concluded that it is in the best interest of the public 
health, safety and welfare to adopt this ordinance; 

Page 1 of 3 



WHEREAS, the City Council adopts the forgoing as its findings of fact justifying its 
adoption of this Ordinance; 

NOW THEREFORE THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SEDRO-
WOOLLEY DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. 

A new section 10.44.155 is added to the Stopping, Standing and Parking Chapter of the 
Sedro-Woolley Municipal Code: 

10.44.155 Sidewalk Cafés.  
Intent. Allowing the use of public sidewalks in front of a business in the Central Business 
District, excluding State Routes, as a private outdoor dining area, when in conformance  
with the criteria in this section. Sidewalk cafés are defined in the zoning code Title 17  
SWMC and are intended to be an attribute to the downtown business district and artistic 
and aesthetic embellishment is expected.  

A. Sidewalk cafés located on the sidewalk may be placed within the right-of-way year 
round.  
B. Uses. Sidewalk dining areas may be approved for the following uses:  

1. Private outdoor dining areas.  
E. Sidewalk dining areas shall only be located in front of the business and shall not 
exceed the width of the business space.  
F. Sidewalk dining areas placed on the sidewalk shall allow an unimpeded, minimum  
five foot (5') clear walkway outside of the dining area for passing pedestrians.  
G. Maintenance.  

1. The business owner is responsible for maintaining the safety and physical  
upkeep of the sidewalk dining area structure.  
2.  
3. The business owner is responsible for sweeping the sidewalk area inside and 
around the sidewalk dining area.  
4. Chairs must be removed by close of business each day. Tables must be  
permanently affixed or removed by close of business each day.  

H. Conformance with Washington State Liquor Control Board policy. Businesses may 
serve beer, wine or spirits in a sidewalk dining area if compliant with the Washington 
State Liquor Control Board rules and policies.  
I. Insurance and Liability. The applicant shall comply with all requirements of SWMC 
12.44.050.  

Section 2.  EFFECTIVE DATE. This ordinance shall take effect five (5) days after the 
approval by the City Council and publication as provided by law. 

Page 2 of 3 



Section 3.  SEVERABILITY. If any provision of this ordinance or its application to any 
person or circumstance is held invalid, the remainder of the ordinance or the application 
of the provision to other persons or circumstances is not affected. 

PASSED by majority vote of the members of the Sedro-Woolley City Council this 
	day of 	 2014, and signed in authentication of its passage this 
	day of 	 2014. 

Mike Anderson, Mayor 

Attest: 

Patsy Nelson, Finance Director 

Approved as to form: 

Eron Berg, City Attorney 

Published: 

Page 3 of 3 


